
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Executive 
Committee 
 
 
 
Wed 28th July 
2010 
7.00 pm 
 
Council Chamber 
Town Hall 
Redditch 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

Access to Information - Your Rights 
 

The Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 
1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend 
Local Authority meetings 
and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the 
Freedom of Information Act 
2000, has further broadened 
these rights, and limited 
exemptions under the 1985 
Act. 

Your main rights are set out 
below:- 

• Automatic right to attend 
all Council and 
Committee meetings 
unless the business 
would disclose 
confidential or “exempt” 
information. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
agenda and public reports 
at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
minutes of the Council 
and its Committees (or 
summaries of business  

 

undertaken in private) for 
up to six years following a 
meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
lists of background 
papers used in the 
preparation of public 
reports. 

• Access, upon request, to 
the background papers 
on which reports are 
based for a period of up 
to four years from the 
date of the meeting. 

• Access to a public 
register stating the names 
and addresses and 
electoral areas of all 
Councillors with details of 
the membership of all 
Committees etc. 

• A reasonable number of 
copies of agenda and 
reports relating to items to 
be considered in public 
must be made available 
to the public attending 
meetings of the Council 
and its Committees etc. 

• Access to a list specifying 
those powers which the 
Council has delegated to its 
Officers indicating also the 
titles of the Officers 
concerned. 

• Access to a summary of the 
rights of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council and 
its Committees etc. and to 
inspect and copy 
documents. 

• In addition, the public now 
has a right to be present 
when the Council 
determines “Key Decisions” 
unless the business would 
disclose confidential or 
“exempt” information. 

• Unless otherwise stated, all 
items of business before the 
Executive Committee are 
Key Decisions.  

• (Copies of Agenda Lists are 
published in advance of the 
meetings on the Council’s 
Website: 
www.redditchbc.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries on this Agenda or any of the decisions taken or wish to 

exercise any of the above rights of access to information, please contact  
Ivor Westmore  

Committee Support Services  
 

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH 
Tel: 01527 64252 (Extn. 3269) Fax: (01527) 65216 

e.mail: ivor.westmore@redditchbc.gov.uk                Minicom: 595528 
 



Welcome to today’s meeting. 
Guidance for the Public 
 
 
Agenda Papers 

The Agenda List at the front 
of the Agenda summarises 
the issues to be discussed 
and is followed by the 
Officers’ full supporting 
Reports. 
 
Chair 

The Chair is responsible for 
the proper conduct of the 
meeting. Generally to one 
side of the Chair is the 
Committee Support Officer 
who gives advice on the 
proper conduct of the 
meeting and ensures that 
the debate and the 
decisions are properly 
recorded.  On the Chair’s 
other side are the relevant 
Council Officers.  The 
Councillors (“Members”) of 
the Committee occupy the 
remaining seats around the 
table. 
 
Running Order 

Items will normally be taken 
in the order printed but, in 
particular circumstances, the 
Chair may agree to vary the 
order. 
 
Refreshments : tea, coffee 
and water are normally 
available at meetings - 
please serve yourself. 
 

 
Decisions 

Decisions at the meeting will 
be taken by the Councillors 
who are the democratically 
elected representatives. 
They are advised by 
Officers who are paid 
professionals and do not 
have a vote. 
 
Members of the Public 

Members of the public may, 
by prior arrangement, speak 
at meetings of the Council or 
its Committees.  Specific 
procedures exist for Appeals 
Hearings or for meetings 
involving Licence or 
Planning Applications.  For 
further information on this 
point, please speak to the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Special Arrangements 

If you have any particular 
needs, please contact the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Infra-red devices for the 
hearing impaired are 
available on request at the 
meeting. Other facilities may 
require prior arrangement. 
 
Further Information 

If you require any further 
information, please contact 
the Committee Support 
Officer (see foot of page 
opposite). 

Fire/ Emergency  
instructions 
 
If the alarm is sounded, 
please leave the building 
by the nearest available 
exit – these are clearly 
indicated within all the 
Committee Rooms. 
 
If you discover a fire, 
inform a member of staff 
or operate the nearest 
alarm call point (wall 
mounted red rectangular 
box).  In the event of the 
fire alarm sounding, leave 
the building immediately 
following the fire exit 
signs.  Officers have been 
appointed with 
responsibility to ensure 
that all visitors are 
escorted from the 
building. 
 
Do Not stop to collect 
personal belongings. 
 
Do Not use lifts. 
 
Do Not re-enter the 
building until told to do 
so.  
 
The emergency 
Assembly Area is on 
Walter Stranz Square. 

 
 
 



 
 
 

Declaration of Interests: 
Guidance for Councillors 
 
 
DO I HAVE A “PERSONAL INTEREST” ? 
 
• Where the item relates or is likely to affect your  registered interests 

(what you have declared on the formal Register of Interests) 
OR 
 
• Where a decision in relation to the item might reasonably be regarded as affecting your 

own well-being or financial position, or that of your family, or your close associates more 
than most other people affected by the issue, 

 
you have a personal interest. 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare the existence, and nature, of your interest and stay 
 
• The declaration must relate to specific business being decided - 

a general scattergun approach is not needed 
 
• Exception - where interest arises only because of your membership of another public 

body, there is no need to declare unless you speak on the matter. 
 
• You can vote on the matter. 
 
 
IS IT A “PREJUDICIAL INTEREST” ? 
 
In general only if:- 
 
• It is a personal interest and 
 
• The item affects your financial position (or conveys other benefits), or the position of your 

family, close associates or bodies through which you have a registered interest (or 
relates to the exercise of regulatory functions in relation to these groups) 

 
 and 
 
• A member of public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably believe the 

interest was likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare and Withdraw 
 
BUT you may make representations to the meeting before withdrawing, if the public have similar 
rights (such as the right to speak at Planning Committee). 



 
 

 
 
 

Executive 

Committee 

 

 

 

28th July 2010 

7.00 pm 

Council Chamber, Town Hall 

 

Agenda Membership: 

 Cllrs: Carole Gandy (Chair) 
Michael Braley (Vice-Chair) 
Peter Anderson 
Juliet Brunner 
Greg Chance 
 

Brandon Clayton 
Malcolm Hall 
Jinny Pearce 
Debbie Taylor 
 

1. Apologies  To receive the apologies of any Member who is unable to 
attend this meeting. 
  

2. Declarations of Interest  To invite Councillors to declare any interests they may have 
in items on the agenda. 
  

3. Leader's Announcements  1. To give notice of any items for future meetings or for 
the Forward Plan, including any scheduled for this 
meeting, but now carried forward or deleted; and 

 
2 any other relevant announcements. 
 
(Oral report) 
  

4. Minutes  

(Pages 1 - 12)  

Chief Executive 

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Executive Committee held on the 16th June 2010. 
 
(Minutes attached) 
  

5. Deputation - REDI  To receive a deputation from users concerned about the 
potential closure of the REDI Centre. 
 
All Wards  

6. REDI Centre Options  

Head of Leisure and 
Cultural Services 

To consider an update on the options for the future of REDI 
Centre. 
 
(Report to follow) 
 
(Central Ward)  



 
 
Executive 
Committee  

 

 

28th July 2010 
 
 

7. Council Plan 2010 / 2013  

(Pages 13 - 58)  

Director of Policy, 
Performance and 
Partnerships 

To consider the adoption of the Council Plan 2010 to 2013 
incorporating the vision, values, priorities, the strategic action 
plan and key performance indicators. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
All Wards  

8. Review of Redditch 
Borough Council's 
Sheltered Housing Stock 
further to Community 
Consultation  

(Pages 59 - 74)  

Head of Housing 

To consider proposals further to a review of Redditch 
Borough Council's Sheltered Housing Stock.  To seek 
approval for proposed revised categories, funding of 
improvement works and other costs and to provide Members 
with an update on the action plan. 
 
(Report attached – Appendices available in Members’ 
Rooms and via the Council’s Website) 
 
All Wards  

9. Capital Programme 
Outturn 2009/10  

(Pages 75 - 84)  

Head of Finance and  
Resources 

To consider the Capital Programme Outturn 2009/10. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

10. Write Off Policy Update  

(Pages 85 - 104)  

Head of Finance and  
Resources 

To consider an update to the Council’s Write Off Policy. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

11. Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

(Pages 105 - 120)  

Chief Executive 

To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 23rd June 2010. 
 
There are no recommendations to consider. 
 
(Minutes attached) 
 
  

12. Minutes / Referrals - 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, Executive 
Panels, Neighbourhood 
Groups etc.  

Chief Executive 

To receive and consider any outstanding minutes or referrals 
from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Executive 
Panels, Neighbourhood Groups, etc. since the last meeting 
of the Executive Committee, other than as detailed in the 
items above. 
 
  



 
 
Executive 
Committee  

 

 

28th July 2010 
 

13. Shared Services Board  
(Pages 121 - 126)  

Chief Executive 

To consider the minutes arising from the most recent 
meeting of the Shared Services Board held on 24th June 
2010. 
 
(The minutes of this meeting are NOT FOR PUBLICATION 
as they relate to contemplated consultations or negotiations 
in connection with labour relation matters arising between the 
authority and employees of the authority.) 
 
(Minutes attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

14. Advisory Panels - update 
report  

(Pages 127 - 130)  

Chief Executive 

To consider, for monitoring / management purposes, an 
update on the work of the Executive Committee’s Advisory 
Panels and similar bodies, which report via the Executive 
Committee. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
  

15. Action Monitoring  
(Pages 131 - 134)  

Chief Executive 

To consider an update on the actions arising from previous 
meetings of the Committee. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
  

16. Urgent Business - Record 
of Decisions  

To note the following decision taken in accordance with 
SO36 since the last meeting of the Executive Committee:  

Invalid Planning Applications – Introduction of Administration 
Fee 
(Development Control Manager)(Decision Reference 483) 

The case for urgency - normally the opportunity for 
introducing new charges is associated with the review that 
occurs for the start of each financial year. However in this 
case it is recommended that the charging begin on 1st 
October 2010, half way through the current financial year, in 
order to maximise revenue but still provide a reasonable time 
period to advise the public of the changes. In order to start on 
1st October, Officers need to consult for 6 weeks from early 
August. 

 
It was therefore RESOLVED that, 
 
with effect from 1st October 2010, 25% of the planning 
application fee received be withheld to cover the 
administration costs associated with an application that 
is not proceeded with. 



 
 
Executive 
Committee  

 

 

28th July 2010 
 

 
(No separate report) 
  

17. Exclusion of the Public  If, in the opinion of the Chief Executive, it is necessary to 
consider excluding the public from the meeting in relation to 
any items of business on the grounds that exempt 
information is likely to be divulged, it may be necessary to 
move the following resolution: 

“that, under S.100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, 
as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following matter(s) on 
the grounds that it/they involve(s) the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in the relevant 
paragraphs (to be specified) of Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) 
of the said Act, as amended.” 
 
  

18. Confidential Minutes / 
Referrals (if any)  

To consider confidential matters not dealt with earlier in the 
evening and not separately listed below (if any). 
 
  

  

 
 



 
 

 

 

Executive 
Committee 

  

 

16th June 2010 
 

 

 Chair 
 

 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Carole Gandy (Chair), Councillor Michael Braley (Vice-Chair) 
and Councillors Peter Anderson, Greg Chance, Brandon Clayton, 
Malcolm Hall and Debbie Taylor 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillors Brenda Quinney and Roger Hill 
Michael Collins (Vice-Chair, Standards Committee) 
 

 Officers: 
 

 R Bamford, H Bennett, K Cook, K Dicks, C Felton, J Godwin, H Halls, S 
Hanley, G Lavery, J Pickering, G Revans, D Taylor, L Williams and M 
Williams 
 

 Committee Services Officer: 
 

 D Sunman 
 

 
20. APOLOGIES  

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

21. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

22. LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chair advised that the following item of business, scheduled on 
the Forward Plan to be dealt with at this meeting, had been 
rescheduled to a later meeting of the Committee: 
 
• Shopmobility – Business Case Review 
 
The Chair also advised that the following items of business, 
scheduled on the Forward Plan to be dealt with at this meeting, had 
been removed from the Forward Plan: 
 
• Redditch Borough Council Logo 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

 
16th June 2010 

 
• Core Strategy 
 
The Chair also advised that she had accepted the following matter 
as urgent business: 
 
Item 19 – REDI Centre – Options 
 

23. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 
26th May 2010 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by 
the Chair. 
 

24. QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE MONITORING - QUARTER 4 - 
JANUARY TO MARCH 2010  
 
The Committee received a report on the Council’s performance for 
quarter 4 of the 2009/10 financial year. 
 
Officers reported that data had been provided for 59 indicators for 
the quarter.  Of these, 35 had improved in performance and 15 had 
declined.  In addition 9 indicators had remained static but 6 of these 
were already at optimum performance and, therefore, no 
improvement was possible. 
 
Members were informed that data from external sources had not 
been received for a further 12 indicators and that the time lag for 
receipt of such data could be up to 12 months.  The performance 
indicator set for 2010/11 had been revised to exclude these long 
term indicators.  However, they would be included in the 
Sustainable Community Strategy for future reporting. 
 
Members noted the improvements in performance for the quarter. 
 
Officers undertook to provide Councillor Chance with additional 
information on the percentage of Council Tax collected by the 
Authority in the year (BV009) and One Stop Shop: customer 
satisfaction (WMO 003) and all members of the Executive 
Committee with information relating to adult participation in sport 
and active recreation (NI008) both countywide and nationally. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the update on key performance indicators for the period 
ending March 2010 be noted. 
 

Page 2



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

 
16th June 2010 

 
25. QUARTERLY BUDGET MONITORING - QUARTER 4 - JANUARY 

TO MARCH 2010  
 
The Committee considered a report which showed the Council’s 
financial outturn for the 2009/10 financial year. 
 
Members were informed that the report showed the actual income 
and expenditure for the 2009/10 financial year compared to the 
budgets for General Fund Services and the Housing Revenue 
Account. 
 
Officers undertook to provide Councillor Chance with additional 
information regarding Item 8 Debit; and all members of the 
Executive Committee a breakdown of amounts held in specific 
reserves from public donations. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

26. QUARTERLY MONITORING OF THE BENEFITS SERVICE 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN - QUARTER 4 - JANUARY TO MARCH 
2010  
 
The Committee considered a report on the performance of the 
Benefits Service during quarter 4 of the 2009/10 financial year 
together with an update on progress against the Benefits Service 
Improvement Plan. 
 
Officers reported that work was ongoing to progress the aims of the 
Improvement Plan in partnership with the Performance 
Development Team (PDT) from the Department of Work and 
Pensions.  In particular the main areas to be improved were the 
management and collection of overpaid Housing Benefit, adopting a 
Take-Up Strategy, accessibility of the service and setting 
challenging service standards and performance targets. 
 
Members were informed that the overpayment recovery process 
had been mapped and an Overpayments Officer appointed.  
Officers reported that overpayments amounting to £116,139 had 
been recovered during the quarter. 
 
A Take-Up Strategy had been created that would help local people 
maximise their income.  Consultation had taken place with 
stakeholders including Job Centre Plus, Age UK and the Citizens 
Advice Bureau and the strategy would be promoted through a 
variety of scheduled events and activities.  Services users had been 
asked for their views on all aspects of service provision and closer 

Page 3



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

 
16th June 2010 

 
working relationships were being sought with voluntary and 
community organisations. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

27. QUARTERLY MONITORING OF FORMAL COMPLAINTS AND 
COMPLIMENTS - QUARTER 4 - JANUARY TO MARCH 2010  
 
Members considered a report which provided them with an 
overview of the Council’s Formal Complaints Procedure for quarter 
4 of the 2009/10 financial year including the number of complaints 
at each stage of the procedure. 
 
Officers reported on the number of compliments recorded during 
the period and also gave details of Ombudsman Enquiry response 
times and outcomes. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report on complaints and compliments for the period 
January to March 2010 be noted. 
 

28. PETITION SCHEME  
 
The Committee received a report regarding the adoption of a 
Petition Scheme as required under the Local Democracy, Economic 
Development and Construction Act 2009. 
 
Members were informed that the rationale behind the reduction in 
the number of signatures on a petition to trigger a debate at full 
Council was to enable residents of the Parish of Feckenham to 
petition the Council. 
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
1) the draft Petition Scheme in respect of non-executive 

functions be approved, as reported to the meeting, 
subject to an amendment to reduce the number of 
signatures required for a debate at full Council to 650; 
and that the number of signatures required to call a 
Senior Officer to account at a meeting of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee be amended to 200; 

 
2) the Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services 

be designated as the Petitions Officer and instructed to 
report annually to Council on the operation of the 
Scheme; 

Page 4



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

 
16th June 2010 

 
 
3) the Monitoring Officer be instructed to incorporate the 

Petition Scheme in the Council’s Constitution and make 
consequential amendments; and 

 
RESOLVE that 
 
4) the draft Petition Scheme in respect of executive 

functions be approved; and 
 
5) a further report be submitted to the Committee in due 

course in respect of on-line petitions. 
 

29. WORCESTERSHIRE PARTNERSHIP - TERMS OF 
ENGAGEMENT  
 
Members considered a protocol that had been agreed by all 
members of the Worcestershire Partnership with regard to future 
budget decisions. 
 
The Chief Executive reported that significant reductions in public 
sector funding were anticipated in the future. 
 
Members were informed that a protocol had been developed which 
sought to ensure that all Partners take a more joined up approach 
to budget decisions and their potential impact on communities. 
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
the protocol be endorsed, as reported, subject to an 
amendment to paragraph 6 as follows: 
 
‘Engage with businesses and the third sector where appropriate 
and jointly consult stakeholders, including the public, before major 
decisions are made.’’ 
 

30. CHURCH HILL - REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT  
 
[During consideration of this item Members discussed matters that 
necessitated the disclosure of exempt information.  It was therefore 
agreed to exclude the press and public prior to any debate on the 
grounds that information would be revealed relating to the financial 
or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information).] 
 

Page 5



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

 
16th June 2010 

 
31. BUSINESS CENTRE REVIEW  

 
The Committee received a report on the performance of the 
business centres administered by the Council, which also clarified 
their role and purpose. 
 
Members were informed that the report circulated to this Committee 
had included all amendments suggested following pre scrutiny by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 2nd June 2010 and 
outlined in the referral from that Committee. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the Borough Council continue to own / lease and manage 

all three business centres; 
 
2) the aim of the business centres be to provide 

accommodation and support to as many businesses as 
possible, having a mixture of maturities, that realises the 
Borough Council’s wider objectives to boost enterprise 
and employment across the Borough as a whole (the 
business centres should be viewed as an economic 
development asset, contributing to the process of 
creating and supporting a prosperous community);   

 
3) in the first instance, Officers be instructed to improve 

occupancy and business support, with regard to helping 
start, grow, retain and attract businesses (Appendix 5 to 
the report outlines the matters which Officers shall 
consider in this respect); 

 
4) Officers be instructed to investigate how the business 

centres’ expenditure can be reduced and income better 
maximised (Appendix 5 outlines the matters which 
Officers shall consider in this respect); 
 

5) the recommendations be reviewed in three years, as key 
factors may have changed in that time – or earlier if urgent 
matters arise which need examining or changing;  

 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
6) further authority be delegated to the Head of Planning & 

Regeneration,  Business Centres Manager, or Economic 
Development Manager, in consultation with the relevant 
Portfolio Holder, so that occupancy and performance 
can be improved, as detailed in Appendix 6 to the report. 
 

Page 6



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

 
16th June 2010 

 
32. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 28th April 2010 be noted. 
 

33. MINUTES / REFERRALS - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE, EXECUTIVE PANELS, NEIGHBOURHOOD 
GROUPS ETC.  
 
There were no minutes or referrals under this item. 

34. ADVISORY PANELS - UPDATE REPORT  
 
In relation to the Independent Remuneration Panel, the Chair 
informed Members that a report on a proposal for a joint 
Worcestershire Panel was being prepared for submission to the 
next full Council meeting. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

35. ACTION MONITORING  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

36. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
under S.100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended 
by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006, the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following matter(s) on the grounds that it/they involve(s) the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
relevant paragraphs 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) of the said 
Act, as amended. 
 
Church Hill District Centre – Redevelopment Report (as 
detailed at Minute 30 below); and 
 
REDI Centre – Options update (as detailed at Minute 38 below) 

37. CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES / REFERRALS (IF ANY)  
 
There were no confidential minutes of referrals. 
 

Page 7



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

 
16th June 2010 

 
38. REDI CENTRE - OPTIONS  

 
 [During consideration of this item Members discussed matters that 
necessitated the disclosure of exempt information.  Councillor 
Chance queried the reason that the item had been designated as 
confidential and was advised that it contained information relating to 
the financial or business affairs of particular persons / 
organisations, disclosure of which was not in the public’s or the 
Council’s best interest. It was therefore agreed to exclude the press 
and public prior to any debate.] 
 

 
 
 

 Chair 
 
 

The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm 
and closed at 9.05 pm 

Page 8



Page 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 12



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
EXECUTIVE  28th July 2010  

 

 

COUNCIL PLAN 2010-2013 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Carole Gandy, Leader of the 

Council 
Relevant Head of Service Hugh Bennett, Director of Policy, 

Performance and Partnerships 
Non-Key Decision  

 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 To agree the Council Plan for 2010-2013 which includes a high level action 

plan for the Council’s new priorities. 
  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that 
 

the Council Plan 2010-2013 attached at Appendix 1 be approved. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Executive and Full Council have approved three priorities:- 
 

• An Enterprising Community 
• Safe 
• Clean and Green 
 

With a fourth overaching priority: A Well Managed Organisation. 
 
3.2 The Council Plan sets out the targets relating to these priorities and the 

proposed strategic actions over the next three years.  The same format has 
been followed to the previous year’s corporate plan, but there are three 
additional appendices: a scorecard that sets out on one page of A4 the 
Council’s priorities and enablers that support these; a strategic action plan 
(which is used by officers to develop the Improvement Plan, which will be 
reported to Executive this year by exception); and a summary of the key 
performance indicators and targets selected for the priorities. 

 
3.3 In line with the new Comprehensive Area Assessment guidance the 

‘Financial’ perspective” of the scorecard (Appendix 1) has been extended to 
encompass ‘Performance’ and the sections under this perspective are now 
‘Managing Finances’, ‘Governing the Business’, ‘Managing Resources’ and 
‘Managing Performance’.  ‘Value for Money’ pervades all of these priorities.   

Agenda Item 7Page 13



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
EXECUTIVE  28th July 2010  

 

 

The Process perspective includes sections on the ‘Shared Services’ project 
and Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier (WETT).   

  
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Council Plan should reflect strategic discussions on the budget, but 

represented by measures and planned actions, rather than money. 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 These are as set out in the Medium Term Financial Plan approved at Full 

Council.  
 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 
 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 None arising directly from this report. 
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1  The Council plan outlines four Council wide priorities, key deliverables in 

support of each of these and specific actions and measures in relation to 
each key deliverable.    

  
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
  
9.1  The Council Plan will be supported by the Council’s strategic risk register.   
 
9.2 There are no Health & Safety considerations. 
 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The Council Plan contains a number of key performance indicators in 

relation to the Customer Service Centre and a series of planned actions to 
support the development of a customer culture across the Council. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
EXECUTIVE  28th July 2010  

 

 

11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 None arising directly from this report, but the Council Plan does contain key 

performance indicators relating the equalities agenda. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
12.1 None arising directly from the report, but again, the Council Plan contains 

key performance indicators relating to value for money, in particular, Shared 
Services and Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier. 

 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
13.1  The Council Plan contains targets for reducing the Council’s CO2 

emissions. 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  
14.1 The Council Plan contains a target for increasing productivity by reducing 

sickness absence and improved human resource practices, including: 
workforce planning, the employee survey and corporate training. 

 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
15.1 The Council Plan is the business plan for the whole Council and forms a key 

part of the Council’s governance arrangements. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  
16.1 The second priority is “Safe” and contains a range of actions and targets in 

support of this. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
17.1 The Council Plan contains an action to review the Sustainable Community 

Strategy and therefore map the Council’s and our partners current 
interventions in the Borough designed to reduce health inequalities.  Once 
mapped, the Redditch Partnership will need to agree a range of additional 
interventions. 

 
 
 

Page 15



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
EXECUTIVE  28th July 2010  

 

 

18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
18.1 As part of the 2011/2012 strategic planning process we will need to align the 

formats and production of the two council plans for Bromsgrove District 
Council and Redditch Borough Council, in order to make their production 
more efficient.  

 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
19.1  None directly in relation to this report, but the priorities are based on 

community engagement work. 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

At Portfolio Holder 
Briefing. 
 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Yes 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

N/a 

 
 
 
 

Page 16



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
EXECUTIVE  28th July 2010  

 

 

21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All 
  
22. APPENDICES 
  

Appendix 1  Council Plan 2010-2013  
 
 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Corporate Plan 2009-2012  
 

24. KEY 
 

CMT – Corporate Management Team 
KPIs – Key Performance Indicators 
MTFP – Medium Term Financial Plan 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Hugh Bennett, Director of Policy, Performance and Partnerships 
email: h.bennett@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 881400 

 

Page 17



Page 18



 
1 

Page 19



 
2 

  
C
O
N
T
E
N
T
S
 

  
1.
 
T
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
V
is
io
n 
 

3 
 

2.
 
N
ot
e 
fr
om

 th
e 
C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

5 
 

3.
 
W
ha
t i
s 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n?
 

6 
 

4.
 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
- 
In
tr
od
uc
in
g 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 

7 
 

5.
 
W
ho
 W

e 
A
re
? 

9 
 

6.
 
O
ur
 P
rio
rit
ie
s 
20
10
-2
01
3 

11
 

 
7.
 
W
ha
t W

e 
D
o?
 

12
 

 
8.
 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 W

or
ki
ng
 

13
 

 
9.
 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

14
 

 
10
. H

ow
 W

e 
W
ill
 D
el
iv
er
 O
ur
 P
rio
rit
ie
s 

16
 

 
11
. R

is
k 
M
an
ag

em
en
t 

36
 

 
12
. E

qu
al
iti
es
 

37
 

 
13
. P

er
fo
rm

an
ce
 M
an
ag

em
en
t F

ra
m
ew

or
k 

39
 

  
  

       

Page 20



 
3 

 1.
 

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l’s
 V
is
io
n
 

 “T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l i
s 
co

m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 e
n
su

ri
n
g
 t
h
at
 R

ed
d
it
ch

 r
em

ai
n
s 
a 
vi
b
ra
n
t 
p
la
ce

 t
o
 

liv
e,
 w

o
rk
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
. W

it
h
 t
h
is
 in

 m
in
d
, w

e 
h
av

e 
d
ra
w
n
 u
p
 a
 n
ew

 v
is
io
n
 o
f 
R
ed

d
it
ch

 
as

 ‘a
n
 e
n
te
rp

ri
si
n
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y,
 w

h
ic
h
 is

 s
af
e,
 c
le
an

 a
n
d
 g
re
en

’. 
T
h
is
 p
la
n
 s
et
s 
o
u
t 
h
o
w
 w

e 
w
ill
 w

o
rk
 w

it
h
 o
u
r 
p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 m

ak
e 
th
is
 v
is
io
n
 a
 

re
al
it
y.
” 

  T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
fo
r 
20
10
-1
3 
is
 th
e 
`b
ed
ro
ck
` 
fo
r 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
w
or
k,
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
es
 a
nd
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 o
ve
r 
th
e 
ne
xt
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
s:
 fr
om

 w
ha
t w

e 
st
an
d 
fo
r 
an
d 

re
pr
es
en
t (
ou
r 
vi
si
on
 a
nd
 p
rio
rit
ie
s)
 to
 w
ha
t w

e 
ai
m
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 (
ou
r 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
ac
tio
n 

pl
an
) 
an
d 
ho
w
 w
e 
w
ill
 k
no
w
 if
 w
e 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
su
cc
es
sf
ul
 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
ed
 g
re
at
 o
ut
co
m
es
 

fo
r 
th
e 
pe
op
le
 o
f R

ed
di
tc
h 
(o
ur
 c
or
po
ra
te
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 in
di
ca
to
rs
 a
nd
 v
al
ue

 fo
r 
m
on
ey
 

st
ra
te
gy
).
   

C
on
tin
ui
ng

 th
e 
bu
ild
in
g 
an
al
og

y,
 w
e 
ha
ve
 m

uc
h 
to
 lo
ok
 fo
rw
ar
d 
to
 a
s 
a 
C
ou
nc
il 
ov
er
 

th
e 
ne
xt
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
s.
 In
 fa
ct
 o
ne
 o
f o

ur
 m
aj
or
 p
ro
je
ct
s 
is
 th

e 
tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 
of
 A
bb
ey
 

S
ta
di
um

, o
ne
 o
f o

ur
 fo
ur
 le
is
ur
e 
ce
nt
re
s,
 to
 in
co
rp
or
at
e 
a 
st
at
e-
of
-t
he
 a
rt
 s
w
im
m
in
g 

po
ol
 a
nd
 r
ev
am

pe
d 
le
is
ur
e 
of
fe
rin
g 
fr
om

 2
01
2 
- 
in
 ti
m
e 
fo
r 
th
e 
O
ly
m
pi
cs
 -
 a
nd
 p
ro
vi
di
ng

 
a 
m
od
er
n 
sw

im
m
in
g 
fa
ci
lit
y 
th
e 
pe
op
le
 o
f R

ed
di
tc
h 
fu
lly
 d
es
er
ve
. 

W
e 
ha
ve
 e
m
ba
rk
ed
 o
n 
th
e 
re
ju
ve
na
tio
n 
of
 th

e 
C
hu
rc
h 
H
ill
 s
ho
pp
in
g 
ce
nt
re
, a

nd
 a
re
 

bu
sy
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
up
 in
te
re
st
 fr
om

 th
e 
pr
iv
at
e 
se
ct
or
 to
 d
ev
el
op
 a
 s
ite
 th
at
 e
m
er
ge

d 
du
rin
g 

ou
r 
ne
w
 to

w
n 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t i
n 
th
e 
19
70
s,
 b
ut
 n
ow

 n
ee
ds
 r
ev
ita
lis
in
g 
fo
r 
th
e 
21

st
 

ce
nt
ur
y.
  

W
e 
ha
ve
 h
ig
h 
ho
pe
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t o
f W

in
ya
te
s 
an
d 
ha
ve
 s
up
po
rt
ed
 a
 

su
cc
es
sf
ul
 £
85
0,
00
0 
bi
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 a
nd
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s,
 th
e 
lo
ca
l a
nd
 c
ou
nt
y 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
ps
. T

he
 e
xt
er
na
l f
un
di
ng

 w
ill
 b
e 

sp
en
t o

n 
im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
 to
 th

e 
ph
ys
ic
al
 a
pp
ea
ra
nc
e 
an
d 
se
cu
rit
y 
in
 p
ar
ts
 o
f t
hi
s 
W
ar
d.
 

A
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r 
pr
oj
ec
t, 
it 
w
ill
 a
ls
o 
ai
m
 to
 b
oo
st
 c
om

m
un
ity
 p
ar
tic
ip
at
io
n 
an
d 
in
vo
lv
em

en
t i
n 

th
e 
w
or
k 
to
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t. 
 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 k
ee
n 
to
 r
ai
se
 th

e 
pr
of
ile
 o
f R

ed
di
tc
h.
 O
ur
 p
rio
rit
y 
of
 `
en
te
rp
ris
in
g 

co
m
m
un
ity
` 
is
 b
ei
ng
 p
ro
gr
es
se
d 
w
ith
 a
m
bi
tio
us
 p
la
ns
 to

 d
ev
el
op
 th

e 
to
w
n 
ce
nt
re
 

th
ro
ug
h 
a 
T
ow

n 
C
en
tr
e 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. U

nd
er
 th
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
`C
le
an
 a
nd
 G
re
en
`,
 w
e 
ha
ve
 

en
te
re
d 
th
e 
B
rit
ai
n 
in
 B
lo
om

 c
om

pe
tit
io
n 
w
hi
ch
 g
ro
w
s 
- 
ex
cu
si
ng

 th
e 
pu
n 
– 
ou
r 

re
pu
ta
tio
n 
fo
r 
gr
ee
n 
sp
ac
es
 a
nd
 c
ol
ou
rf
ul
 fl
or
al
 b
ed
s.
 W

hi
le
 fo
r 
`S
af
e`
, w

e 
w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 

to
 s
up
po
rt
 e
ffo

rt
s 
to
 fu
rt
he
r 
re
du
ce
 c
rim

e 
le
ve
ls
 a
nd
 m

ak
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
a 
sa
fe
 p
la
ce
 to
 li
ve
.  

  

Page 21



 
4 

T
he
re
 is
 in
de
ed
 m

uc
h 
to
 b
e 
pr
ou
d 
ab
ou
t i
n 
R
ed
di
tc
h.
 I 
si
nc
er
el
y 
ho
pe
 y
ou
 e
nj
oy
 

re
ad
in
g 
ou
r 
P
la
n 
an
d 
am

bi
tio
ns
 fo
r 
th
e 
ne
xt
 fe
w
 y
ea
rs
. 

 

 
 C
ou

nc
ill
or
 C
ar
ol
e 
G
an
dy
  

Le
ad
er
 o
f R

ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou

gh
 C
ou

nc
il 

      
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

            
   
 

    
 

Page 22



 
5 

2.
 

N
o
te
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e 
C
h
ie
f 
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
  

  R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 c
om

m
itt
ed
 to
 p
ro
vi
di
ng

 e
ffe

ct
iv
e 
an
d 
ef
fic
ie
nt
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
  

W
e 
w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 to
 s
ee
k 
im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
, m

ai
nt
ai
ni
ng
 h
ig
h 
st
an
da
rd
s 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 

va
lu
e 
fo
r 
m
on
ey
 fo

r 
ou
r 
re
si
de
nt
s,
 b
ot
h 
in
 o
ur
 s
er
vi
ce
s,
 a
nd
 in
 th
e 
w
ay
 w
e 
de
liv
er
 th

em
.  
 

 A
s 
C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
fo
r 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
il,
 I 

am
 w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 m

y 
ne
w
 s
in
gl
e 
m
an
ag
em

en
t t
ea
m
 to
 d
ev
el
op
 a
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 

of
 s
ha
re
d 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
cr
os
s 
bo
th
 c
ou
nc
ils
.  
S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
is
 a
bo
ut
 m
ak
in
g 
be
tte
r 
us
e 
of
 

ex
is
tin
g 
re
so
ur
ce
s,
 in
 o
rd
er
 to
 b
et
te
r 
m
ee
t t
he
 n
ee
ds
 o
f o

ur
 r
es
id
en
ts
.  
W
e 
em

ba
rk
ed
 o
n 

th
is
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
in
 a
dv
an
ce
 o
f t
he
 c
re
di
t c
ru
nc
h,
 w
hi
ch
 m

ea
ns
 w
e 
ar
e 
no
w
 w
el
l p
la
ce
d 

to
 r
es
po
nd
 to
 th
e 
an
tic
ip
at
ed
 r
ed
uc
tio
ns
 in
 p
ub
lic
 s
pe
nd
in
g;
 h
ow

ev
er
, I
 e
xp
ec
t t
he
 n
ex
t 

fiv
e 
ye
ar
s 
to
 b
e 
a 
di
ffi
cu
lt 
tim

e 
fo
r 
lo
ca
l g
ov
er
nm

en
t, 
as
 w
e 
ba
la
nc
e 
th
e 
ne
ed
 to
 r
ed
uc
e 

th
e 
pu
bl
ic
 s
ec
to
r 
bo
rr
ow

in
g 
re
qu

ire
m
en
t, 
w
hi
ls
t t
ry
in
g 
to
 m
ai
nt
ai
n 
se
rv
ic
es
 to
 o
ur
 

re
si
de
nt
s.
   

 F
in
al
ly
, i
t i
s 
im
po
rt
an
t t
o 
re
m
in
d 
ev
er
yo
ne
 th

at
 th

e 
S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
ag
en
da
 is
 n
ot
 a
bo
ut
 

a 
m
er
ge

r 
of
 th

e 
tw
o 
C
ou
nc
ils
, b

ut
 s
im
pl
y 
a 
w
ay
 o
f l
oo
ki
ng
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 

pr
ov
id
ed
 in
 p
ur
su
it 
of
 e
ac
h 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 a
re
 o
f h

ig
h 
qu

al
ity
, c
os
t e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
an
d 

re
sp
on
si
ve
 to

 c
us
to
m
er
 n
ee
ds
. 

  

 
 K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

              
   
  

Page 23



 
6 

3.
 

W
h
at
 is
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l P
la
n
?
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
fo
rm

s 
on
e 
lin
k 
in
 a
 c
ha
in
 o
f p

la
ns
 a
nd
 s
tr
at
eg
ie
s 
th
at
 li
nk
 to
 

ea
ch
 o
th
er
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 a
 v
is
io
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
C
ou
nt
y 
of
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
.  
T
he
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 

se
t o

ut
 in
 e
ac
h 
pl
an
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 a
nd
 c
om

pl
em

en
t t
ho
se
 s
et
 in
 th

e 
le
ve
l a
bo
ve
 

th
em

 in
 th

e 
hi
er
ar
ch
y.
   

 T
h
e 
h
ie
ra
rc
h
y 
o
f 
p
la
n
s 
an

d
 s
tr
at
eg

ie
s 

 

 

 

R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
fo
r 
20
10
 to
 2
01
3 
is
 e
ffe

ct
iv
el
y 
th
e 

bu
si
ne
ss
 p
la
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
s 
ho
w
 th

e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 

w
or
k 
to
w
ar
ds
 a
ch
ie
vi
ng

 th
e 
ov
er
al
l v
is
io
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 s
et
 o
ut
 in
 th
e 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
w
hi
ch
 w
as
 d
ev
el
op
ed
 o
n 
th
e 
ba
si
s 
of
 

ex
te
ns
iv
e 
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 
w
ith
 o
ur
 r
es
id
en
ts
. 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
id
en
tif
ie
s 
ou
r 
co
nt
rib
ut
io
n 
to
 th
is
 v
is
io
n,
 a
nd
 g
iv
es
 

fir
m
 c
om

m
itm

en
ts
 o
n 
ho
w
 th

e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n 
its
 o
w
n 
vi
si
on
 o
f 

“A
n 
en
te
rp
ris
in
g 
co
m
m
un
ity
 w
hi
ch
 is
 s
af
e,
 c
le
an
 a
nd
 g
re
en
”.
  T

he
 

C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
th
re
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
ar
ea
s:
  

 
E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om

m
un
ity
. 

 
S
af
e.
 

 
C
le
an
 a
nd
 G
re
en
. 

It 
al
so
 e
xp
la
in
s 
w
ha
t t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 b
e 
do
in
g 
to
 k
ee
p 
its
 o
w
n 
ho
us
e 
in
 

or
de
r,
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
w
e 
co
nt
in
ue
 to
 b
e 
a 
w
el
l m

an
ag

ed
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
n.
 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
w
ill
 b
e 
up
da
te
d 
on
 a
n 
an
nu
al
 b
as
is
.  
A
 s
ep
ar
at
e 

A
nn
ua
l R

ep
or
t w

ill
 r
ep
or
t o
n 
ou
r 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 a
ga
in
st
 o
ur
 ta
rg
et
s 

de
m
on
st
ra
tin
g 
ou
r 
'd
ire
ct
io
n 
of
 tr
av
el
' a
ga

in
st
 o
ur
 p
rio
rit
ie
s.
 T
he
 P
la
n 

se
ts
 o
ut
 o
ne
 to
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
 ta
rg
et
s,
 d
em

on
st
ra
tin
g 
th
at
 c
on
tin
ue
d 

im
pr
ov
em

en
t o
f t
he
 B
or
ou
gh
 is
 n
ot
 a
 q
ui
ck
 fi
x,
 b
ut
 th

e 
re
su
lt 
of
 

fo
cu
ss
ed
, l
on
g-
te
rm

 a
m
bi
tio
n.
 

In
 d
ev
el
op
in
g 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n,
 w
e 
ha
ve
 ta
ke
n 
in
to
 a
cc
ou
nt
 n
ot
 o
nl
y 

th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y,
 b
ut
 a
ls
o 
th
e 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 

of
 o
ur
 r
es
id
en
ts
 a
nd
 th
e 
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 fe
at
ur
es
 o
f R

ed
di
tc
h 
as
 a
 fo
rm

er
 

N
ew

 T
ow

n.
 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
pr
ed
om

in
an
tly
 a
dd
re
ss
es
 th

e 
sh
or
t a
nd
 m
ed
iu
m
 te
rm

 
(u
p 
to
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
s)
 a
im
s 
an
d 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 o
f t
he
 B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il,
 b
ut
 

re
co
gn

is
es
 w
he
re
 is
su
es
 a
re
 li
ke
ly
 to

 b
e 
on
go

in
g 
in
 th

e 
lo
ng
 te
rm

.  
T
he
 

P
la
n 
al
so
 o
ut
lin
es
 h
ow

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 p
ro
ac
tiv
el
y 

m
an
ag
e 
its
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 in
 o
rd
er
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 it
s 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 a
nd
 s
et
s 
ta
rg
et
s 

w
hi
ch
 th

e 
pu
bl
ic
 c
an
 u
se
 to
 m

ea
su
re
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
.  
 

T
he
 P
la
n 
se
ek
s 
th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 to
 a
dd
re
ss
 th

e 
is
su
es
 a
nd
 v
ie
w
s 
of
 a
 w
id
e 

va
rie
ty
 o
f s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s,
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
re
si
de
nt
s,
 M
em

be
rs
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 

an
d 
pa
rt
ne
r 
or
ga

ni
sa
tio
ns
. 

  

C
o
u
n
ci
l P
la
n
 

an
d
 M
T
F
P
 

S
er
vi
ce
 B
u
si
n
es
s 
P
la
n
s 

T
ea
m
 P
la
n
s 
an
d
 P
er
so
n
al
 

D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
P
la
n
s 
(P
D
R
s)
 

S
u
st
ai
n
ab
le
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

Page 24



 
7 

4.
 

R
ed
d
it
ch
 –
 In
tr
o
d
u
ci
n
g
 t
h
e 
B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

  F
ig
u
re
 1
: 
M
ap
 o
f 
R
ed
d
it
ch
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

 

 
           

E
co

n
o
m
y 

R
ed
di
tc
h 
en
jo
ys
 e
xc
el
le
nt
 tr
an
sp
or
t l
in
ks
 lo
ca
lly
 w
ith
 v
er
y 
lit
tle
 c
on
ge

st
io
n,
 

in
cl
ud
in
g 
a 
st
ro
ng
 n
et
w
or
k 
of
 d
ua
l c
ar
ria
ge

w
ay
s 
an

d 
A
-r
oa
ds
.  
T
he
 n
ea
rb
y 

M
42
 a
nd
 M
5 
m
ot
or
w
ay
s 
pr
ov
id
e 
ac
ce
ss
 fu
rt
he
r 
af
ie
ld
 a
nd
 B
irm

in
gh

am
 

A
irp
or
t f
ac
ili
ta
te
s 
na
tio
na
l a
nd
 in
te
rn
at
io
na
l t
ra
ve
l. 
 P
ub
lic
 tr
an
sp
or
t i
s 

pr
ov
id
ed
 v
ia
 a
 tr
ai
n 
an
d 
bu
s 
ne
tw
or
k.
 

F
ro
m
 th

e 
01
 A
pr
il 
20
10
 th
e 
R
eg

io
na
l S

pa
tia
l S

tr
at
eg

y 
(R
S
S
) 
co
ns
is
ts
 o
f t
he
 

R
eg

io
na
l E

co
no
m
ic
 S
tr
at
eg

y 
(R
E
S
) 
an
d 
th
e 
W
es
t M

id
la
nd
s 
R
eg

io
na
l 

S
pa
tia
l S

tr
at
eg
y 
(W

M
R
S
S
) 
Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
08
, w

hi
ch
 in
co
rp
or
at
es
 R
S
S
 P
ha
se
 

O
ne
.  
T
he
 P
ha
se
 T
w
o 
re
vi
si
on
 o
f t
he
 R
S
S
 s
et
s 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t t
ar
ge

ts
 fo
r 

lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 
to
 m

ee
t; 
ho
w
ev
er
, t
he
 C
oa
lit
io
n 
G
ov
er
nm

en
t h

as
 

an
no
un
ce
d 
th
at
 R
S
S
 is
 to
 b
e 
ab
ol
is
he
d.
  R

ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh

 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 

th
er
ef
or
e 
lo
ok
 to
 a
cc
om

m
od
at
e 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t t
o 
m
ee
t a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 lo
ca
lly
 

de
te
rm

in
ed
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t t
ar
ge

ts
. 

 T
he
re
 is
 a
 s
tr
on
g 
m
an
uf
ac
tu
rin
g 
ba
se
 to
 R
ed
di
tc
h’
s 
ec
on
om

y.
  T

he
 

pr
op
or
tio
n 
of
 in
di
vi
du
al
s 
em

pl
oy
ed
 in
 m

an
uf
ac
tu
rin
g 
in
du
st
ry
 (
25
%
) 
is
 

co
ns
id
er
ab
ly
 h
ig
he
r 
th
an
 b
ot
h 
th
e 
C
ou
nt
y 
an
d 
W
es
t M

id
la
nd
s 
re
gi
on
 

av
er
ag

e.
  R

ed
di
tc
h 
ha
s 
fe
w
er
 in
di
vi
du
al
s 
em

pl
oy
ed
 in
 d
is
tr
ib
ut
io
n,
 h
ot
el
s 

an
d 
re
st
au
ra
nt
s 
co
m
pa
re
d 
to
 o
th
er
 a
re
as
 o
f W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
.  
T
he
 e
co
no
m
ic
 

do
w
nt
ur
n 
ov
er
 th

e 
la
st
 y
ea
r 
is
 a
ffe
ct
in
g 
ev
er
yo
ne
; h

ow
ev
er
, R

ed
di
tc
h 
ha
s 

be
en
 h
it 
ha
rd
es
t w

he
n 
co
m
pa
re
d 
to
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 a
s 
a 
w
ho
le
. 

          

Page 25



 
8 

G
eo

g
ra
p
h
y 

 T
he
 B
or
ou
gh

 o
f R

ed
di
tc
h 
is
 s
itu
at
ed
 in
 th
e 
W
es
t M

id
la
nd
s 
R
eg

io
n 

ap
pr
ox
im
at
el
y 
24
 k
m
 (
15
 m

ile
s)
 s
ou
th
 o
f B

irm
in
gh
am

. I
t l
ie
s 
w
ith
in
 th

e 
ad
m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e 
bo
un
da
ry
 o
f W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
is
 a
dj
ac
en
t 

to
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t t
o 
its
 n
or
th
 a
nd
 w
es
t, 
S
tr
at
fo
rd
-u
po
n-
A
vo
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t t
o 
 

th
e 
ea
st
 a
nd
 W

yc
ha
vo
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t t
o 
th
e 
so
ut
h.
 T
he
 B
or
ou
gh
 h
as
 a
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 

of
 7
9,
60
0 
w
ith
 a
 h
ig
he
r 
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
 o
f y
ou
ng
 p
eo
pl
e 
(a
ge

 0
-1
9 
ye
ar
s)
 

co
m
pa
re
d 
to
 th
e 
re
st
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nt
y.
  M

os
t o
f t
he
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
(9
3%

) 
liv
es
 

w
ith
in
 th

e 
to
w
n 
of
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
w
hi
ch
 a
cc
ou
nt
s 
fo
r 
ap
pr
ox
im
at
el
y 
ha
lf 
th
e 

ge
og
ra
ph
ic
al
 a
re
a 
of
 th

e 
B
or
ou
gh
.  

 R
ed
di
tc
h,
 a
lth
ou
gh
 a
 N
ew

 T
ow

n,
 h
as
 r
et
ai
ne
d 
m
an
y 
im
po
rt
an
t e

co
lo
gi
ca
l 

an
d 
la
nd
sc
ap
e 
fe
at
ur
es
, w

ith
 th

e 
na
tiv
e 
flo
ra
 r
et
ai
ne
d 
an
d 
la
rg
el
y 
un
al
te
re
d 

fr
om

 th
at
 o
f a

n 
ec
ol
og

ic
al
 s
ur
ve
y 
in
 1
96
6.
  P

on
ds
, h
ed
ge

s 
an
d 
gr
ee
n 

sp
ac
es
 a
ll 
he
lp
 to
 h
ol
d 
to
ge
th
er
 th

e 
im
po
rt
an
t e

co
lo
gi
ca
l i
nf
ra
st
ru
ct
ur
e.
  

R
ed
di
tc
h 
ha
s 
5.
7 
he
ct
ar
es
 o
f o

pe
n 
sp
ac
e 
pe
r 
1,
00
0 
po
pu
la
tio
n.
 

 

 

L
ei
su

re
 

 C
ul
tu
ra
l a
ttr
ac
tio
ns
 w
ith
in
 th

e 
B
or
ou
gh
 in
cl
ud
e 
th
e 
F
or
ge
 M
ill
 N
ee
dl
e 

M
us
eu
m
, B

or
de
sl
ey
 A
bb
ey
, A

rr
ow

 V
al
le
y 
P
ar
k 
w
hi
ch
 c
en
tr
es
 a
ro
un
d 
th
e 
12
 

he
ct
ar
e 
(3
0 
ac
re
) 
la
ke
 a
nd
 a
dj
ac
en
t C

ou
nt
ry
si
de
 C
en
tr
e.
  T

he
 to
w
n 
ce
nt
re
 

of
fe
rs
 th
e 
P
al
ac
e 
T
he
at
re
 a
s 
w
el
l a
s 
a 
m
ul
ti-
sc
re
en
 c
in
em

a 
an
d 
th
er
e 
is
 a
 

w
id
e 
ra
ng
e 
of
 s
po
rt
s 
fa
ci
lit
ie
s 
ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
sp
or
ts
 c
en
tr
es
, 

sw
im
m
in
g 
po
ol
s,
 fo
ot
ba
ll 
pi
tc
he
s,
 g
ol
f c
ou
rs
es
 a
nd
 a
 s
ka
te
 p
ar
k.
  T

he
 to
w
n 

al
so
 h
as
 n
um

er
ou
s 
pl
ay
 fa
ci
lit
ie
s 
w
ith
in
 it
s 
ne
ig
hb
ou
rh
oo

ds
 a
nd
 r
es
id
en
ts
 c
an
 

ac
ce
ss
 a
 fu

ll 
ra
ng
e 
of
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 c
ov
er
in
g 
A
rt
s,
 S
po
rt
s 
an
d 
P
la
y 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t. 
 

 

 
     

 

Page 26



 
9 

5.
 

W
h
o
 W
e 
A
re
?
 

 T
he
re
 a
re
 2
9 
E
le
ct
ed
 M
em

be
rs
 o
f R

ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il.
 F
ec
ke
nh
am

 
P
ar
is
h 
C
ou
nc
il 
is
 th

e 
on
ly
 P
ar
is
h 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ith
in
 th

e 
B
or
ou
gh

.  
S
in
ce
 J
un
e 

20
02
 th

e 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
op
er
at
ed
 a
n 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 (
“L
ea
de
r 

an
d 
C
ab
in
et
”)
 a
nd
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
st
ru
ct
ur
e.
   
O
ve
ra
ll 
co
nt
ro
l o
f t
he
 

C
ou
nc
il 
m
ov
ed
 to

 th
e 
C
on
se
rv
at
iv
es
 in
 M
ay
 2
00
8 
fo
r 
th
e 
fir
st
 ti
m
e 
si
nc
e 

19
82
. 

 C
ur
re
nt
ly
, n

in
e 
C
ou
nc
ill
or
s 
si
t o
n 
th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
, s
ix
 o
f w

ho
m
 

ha
ve
 a
 s
et
 o
f r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
tie
s 
re
fe
rr
ed
 to
 a
s 
a 
“P
or
tfo
lio
”.
   
D
ec
is
io
ns
 a
re
 

m
ad
e 
by
 th

e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 c
ol
le
ct
iv
el
y 
an
d 
P
or
tfo
lio
 h
ol
de
rs
 d
o 
no
t 

ha
ve
 d
el
eg

at
ed
 a
ut
ho
rit
y 
to
 m

ak
e 
de
ci
si
on
s 
on
 b
eh
al
f o
f t
he
 C
om

m
itt
ee
.  

 P
or
tfo

lio
 H
ol
de
rs
 a
re
 a
pp
oi
nt
ed
 a
nn
ua
lly
 b
y 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
be
tw
ee
n 
th
em

 
co
ve
r 
al
l a
re
as
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
w
or
k 
an
d 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
y.
  “
P
or
tfo
lio
” 
in
di
ca
te
s 
a 

sp
ec
ifi
ed
 a
re
a 
of
 r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty
 a
llo
tte

d 
by
 fo
rm

al
 r
es
ol
ut
io
n,
 fo
r 
th
e 
pu
rp
os
es
 

lis
te
d 
be
lo
w
: 

 • 
M
on

ito
rin
g 
C
ou
nc
il 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
. 

• 
M
on

ito
rin
g 
th
e 
im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 C
ou
nc
il 
po
lic
y 
an
d 
de
ci
si
on
s.
 

• 
A
ct
 a
s 
co
ns
ul
te
e 
fo
r 
M
em

be
rs
 a
nd
 O
ffi
ce
rs
. 

• 
A
ct
 a
s 
“S
po
ke
sp
er
so
n”
 fo
r 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
(b
ut
 n
ot
 e
xc
lu
si
ve
ly
).
 

• 
A
ct
 a
s 
“R
ap
po
rt
eu
r”
 to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
an
d 
as
 a
 c
ha
nn
el
 fo
r 

fe
ed
ba
ck
 fr
om

 r
ep
re
se
nt
at
iv
es
 o
f o

ut
si
de
 b
od
ie
s.
 

• 
U
nd
er
ta
ke
 a
 h
ig
he
r 
le
ve
l o
f i
nv
ol
ve
m
en
t w

ith
 th

e 
Lo
ca
l S

tr
at
eg
ic
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. 

 

 

 T
he
 s
ix
 P
or
tfo

lio
s 
an
d 
th
e 
fu
nc
tio
ns
 th
ey
 c
ov
er
 a
re
: 

 • 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
L
ea
d
er
sh
ip
 a
n
d
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 in
c.
 V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
ec
to
r 
– 

 
C
llr
 C
ar
ol
e 
G
an
dy
 

T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
re
la
tio
ns
hi
ps
 w
ith
 o
th
er
 p
ar
tn
er
s 

an
d 
st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
, b
ot
h 
lo
ca
lly
 w
ith
in
 th

e 
C
ou
nt
y,
 r
eg
io
na
lly
 a
nd
 

na
tio
na
lly
. 

 
• 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
af
et
y 
&
 R
eg
u
la
to
ry
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
– 
C
llr
 J
ul
ie
t B

ru
nn
er
 

T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
th
e 
ar
ea
s 
of
 C
rim

e 
&
 D
is
or
de
r,
 S
af
er
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es
 a
nd
 th
e 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
fu
nc
tio
n.
 

 • 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 
– 
C
llr
 M
ic
ha
el
 B
ra
le
y 

T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
in
te
rn
al
 s
ys
te
m
s 
an
d 
su
pp
or
t s
er
vi
ce
s,
 

in
cl
ud
in
g 
A
dm

in
is
tr
at
io
n,
 A
ud
it,
 F
in
an
ce
, H

um
an
 R
es
ou
rc
es
, I
T
 

S
er
vi
ce
s,
 A
ss
et
 M
an
ag

em
en
t a
nd
 C
us
to
m
er
 S
er
vi
ce
s.
 

 • 
H
o
u
si
n
g
, L
o
ca
l E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t 
an
d
 H
ea
lt
h
 –
 C
llr
 B
ra
nd
on
 C
la
yt
on
 

T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
H
ou
si
ng

 M
an
ag

em
en
t r
ol
e 
as
   

La
nd
lo
rd
, S

tr
at
eg
ic
 H
ou
si
ng

 r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
tie
s,
 H
ea
lth
-r
el
at
ed
 

S
er
vi
ce
s,
 S
us
ta
in
ab
ili
ty
, B

et
te
r 
E
nv
iro
nm

en
t, 
La
nd
sc
ap
e,
 C
le
an
si
ng
, 

W
as
te
 M
an
ag

em
en
t, 
O
pe
n 
S
pa
ce
 a
nd
 L
oc
al
 A
ge
nd
a 
21
. 

 
• 

L
ei
su
re
 a
n
d
 T
o
u
ri
sm

 –
 C
llr
 P
et
er
 A
nd
er
so
n 

T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
C
ul
tu
re
 a
nd
 R
ec
re
at
io
n,
 C
om

m
un
ity
 T
ra
in
in
g,
 

E
du
ca
tio
n,
 L
ea
rn
in
g 
an
d 
S
ki
lls
, t
he
 V
ol
un
ta
ry
 S
ec
to
r 
an
d 
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

C
en
tr
es
. 

 • 
P
la
n
n
in
g
, E
co
n
o
m
ic
 D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
an
d
 T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 –
 C
llr
 J
in
ny
 

P
ea
rc
e 

T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
P
la
nn
in
g,
 E
co
no
m
ic
 D
ev
el
op

m
en
t a
nd
 P
ub
lic
 

T
ra
ns
po
rt
. 

 
 

Page 27



 
10

 

C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
 T
E
A
M
  S
T
R
U
C
T
U
R
E
 

 

 

K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

C
h
ie
f 
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 

(H
ea
d
 o
f 
P
ai
d
 S
er
vi
ce
) 

 

Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
ri
n
g
 

 
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 D
ir
ec
to
r 

(S
ec
ti
o
n
 1
51
 O
ff
ic
er
) 

 
 

Jo
h
n
 

G
o
d
w
in
 

 
H
ea
d
 o
f 

L
ei
su
re
 

an
d
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
 

H
u
g
h
 B
en
n
et
t 

 
D
ir
ec
to
r 
o
f 
P
o
lic
y,
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 a
n
d
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s 

G
u
y 

R
ev
an
s 

 
H
ea
d
 o
f 

E
n
vi
ro
-

m
en
ta
l 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
 

T
er
es
a 

K
ri
st
u
n
as
 

 
H
ea
d
 o
f 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

C
la
ir
e 
F
el
to
n
 

H
ea
d
 o
f 

L
eg
al
,  

E
q
u
al
it
ie
s 
 

&
 

D
em

o
cr
at
ic
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
 

(M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

O
ff
ic
er
) 

 

Jo
h
n
 S
ta
n
ila
n
d
 

 
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 D
ir
ec
to
r 

S
u
e 
H
an
le
y 

 
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 D
ir
ec
to
r 
&
 

D
ep
u
ty
 C
h
ie
f 

E
xe
cu
ti
ve

 
 

R
u
th
 

B
am

fo
rd
 

  
H
ea
d
 o
f 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 

an
d
 

R
eg
en
. 

A
m
an
d
a 
 

D
e 
W
ar
r 

 
H
ea
d
 o
f 

C
u
st
o
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

 

A
n
g
ie
 

H
ei
g
h
w
ay
 

 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
 

S
te
ve
 J
o
rd
en
 

  
R
eg
u
la
to
ry
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

 

L
iz
 

T
o
m
p
ki
n
 

 
H
ea
d
 o
f 

H
o
u
si
n
g
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

 

D
eb
 P
o
o
le
 

  
H
ea
d
 o
f 
 

B
u
si
n
es
s 

T
ra
n
sf
o
rm
at
io
n
 

Page 28



 
11

 

6.
 

O
u
r 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
es
 2
01
0-
20
13
 

In
 2
00
8 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
re
vi
ew

ed
 it
s 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
ha
s 
se
t o
ut
 n
ew

 
pr
io
rit
ie
s.
  W

ith
 e
ffe
ct
 fr
om

 1
 A
pr
il 
20
09
, t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
w
er
e:
 

 

• 
E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om

m
un
ity
 

• 
S
af
e 

• 
C
le
an
 a
nd
 G
re
en
 

T
he
se
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
re
m
ai
n 
un

ch
an

ge
d.
 

T
he
se
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
en

co
m
pa

ss
 th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
ai
m
s:
- 

 
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
si
n
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

• 
W
e 
w
an
t R

ed
di
tc
h 
to
 b
e 
a 
vi
br
an
t a

nd
 v
ita
l B

or
ou
gh
 w
he
re
 

its
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
is
 w
el
l e
du

ca
te
d,
 h
as
 h
ig
h 
sk
ill
 le
ve
ls
, i
s 

he
al
th
y 
an
d 
fit
, h

ou
si
ng
 is
 e
xc
el
le
nt
 a
nd
 v
ar
ie
d 
an
d 
th
e 

co
m
m
un
ity
 is
 s
er
ve
d 
by
 a
 p
ro
sp
er
ou
s 
to
w
n 
ce
nt
re
 a
nd
 h
as
 

ac
ce
ss
 to
 fi
rs
t c
la
ss
 le
is
ur
e 
fa
ci
lit
ie
s.
  W

e 
al
so
 w
an
t t
he
 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 
vo
ic
e 
to
 b
e 
in
flu
en
tia
l a
nd
 r
es
pe
ct
ed
 b
y 
re
si
de
nt
s,
 

pa
rt
ne
rs
, o
th
er
 g
ov
er
nm

en
ta
l a
ge

nc
ie
s 
an
d 
su
pp
lie
rs
.  
T
he
 

T
ow

n’
s 
ec
on
om

y 
sh
ou
ld
 p
ro
vi
de
 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
 h
ig
h 
qu
al
ity
 jo
bs
 

fo
r 
re
si
de
nt
s 
w
ith
 g
oo
d 
le
ve
ls
 o
f p

ay
 a
nd
 r
ew

ar
d 
lo
ca
tin
g 
in
 

th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
. 

 

 
S
af
e 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 w
or
k 
in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 o
th
er
 a
ge
nc
ie
s 

th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
C
om

m
un
ity
 S
af
et
y 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 to

 r
ed
uc
e 

cr
im
e 
an
d 
di
so
rd
er
.  
T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 id
en
tif
y 
ke
y 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 to
 

bu
ild
 c
om

m
un
ity
 c
on
fid
en
ce
 a
nd
 a
llo
w
 r
es
id
en
ts
 a
nd
 v
is
ito
rs
 to
 

be
 s
af
e 
an
d 
fe
el
 s
af
e.
   

  

 
 

C
le
an
 a
n
d
 g
re
en

 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 d
ev
el
op
 a
ttr
ac
tiv
e 
op
en
 s
pa
ce
s,
 ta
ki
ng
 

en
fo
rc
em

en
t a
ct
io
n 
ag
ai
ns
t l
itt
er
in
g,
 fl
y 
tip
pi
ng
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 

be
ha
vi
ou
r 
de
tr
im
en
ta
l t
o 
th
e 
en
vi
ro
nm

en
t, 
w
he
re
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
, 

an
d 
su
pp
or
tin
g 
m
ea
su
re
s 
to
 ta

ck
le
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
. 

T
o 
un
de
rp
in
 th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
it 
is
 r
ec
og
ni
se
d 

th
at
 th

e 
C
ou
nc
il 
ne
ed
s 
to
 b
e:
 

 
A
 W
el
l M

an
ag
ed
 O
rg
an
is
at
io
n
 

W
e 
w
an
t R

ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
to
 b
e 
an
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
n 

th
at
 u
se
s 
its
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
in
 o
rd
er
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 it
s 

pr
io
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
va
lu
es
 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
s 
hi
gh
 q
ua
lit
y 
se
rv
ic
es
 th

at
 

m
ee
t t
he
 n
ee
ds
 o
f i
ts
 r
es
id
en
ts
 a
nd
 p
ro
vi
de
 v
al
ue
 fo

r 
m
on
ey
.  
 

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l’s
 V
al
u
es
 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
a 
se
t o
f v
al
ue
s 
th
at
 s
up
po
rt
 th

e 
V
is
io
n 
an
d 

P
rio
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
pr
ov
id
e 
th
e 
fr
am

ew
or
k 
in
 w
hi
ch
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 w
ill
 b
e 

m
ad
e.
  T

he
se
 v
al
ue
s 
ar
e:
 

• 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

 
W
or
ki
ng
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
w
ith
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
in
 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
, p
riv
at
e 
an
d 

vo
lu
nt
ar
y 
se
ct
or
s 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 o
ur
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 

• 
F
ai
rn
es
s 
   

 
E
qu

al
ity
 o
f t
re
at
m
en
t i
n 
th
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 

em
pl
oy
m
en
t f
or
 e
ve
ry
on
e 
in
 th

e 
B
or
ou
gh
. 

• 
Q
u
al
it
y 
o
f 
S
er
vi
ce
 

 
P
ro
vi
di
ng

 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 a
nd
 e
ffe

ct
iv
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 th
at
 a
ch
ie
ve
 

va
lu
e 
fo
r 
m
on
ey
. 

• 
M
o
d
er
n
is
at
io
n
 

 
E
ng

ag
in
g 
w
ith
 r
es
id
en
ts
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s 
on
 h
ow

 w
e 

ca
n 
im
pr
ov
e 
ou
r 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd
 th
e 
w
ay
 in
 w
hi
ch
 w
e 
de
liv
er
 

th
em

.  

It 
is
 th

e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
in
te
nt
io
n 
to
 r
ev
ie
w
 th

es
e 
va
lu
es
 to

 e
ns
ur
e 
th
ey
 

co
nt
in
ue
 to
 r
ef
le
ct
 th

e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
. 

Page 29



 
12

 

7.
 

W
h
at
 W
e 
D
o
 

O
u
r 
S
er
vi
ce

s 
A
ll 
D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
ils
 p
ro
vi
de
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
to
 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
 –
 th

e 
C
ou
nc
il 
is
 o
bl
ig
ed
 to
 

pr
ov
id
e 
so
m
e 
of
 th
em

 b
ut
 h
as
 a
 c
ho
ic
e 
ab
ou
t w

he
th
er
 o
r 
no
t i
t p
ro
vi
de
s 
th
e 

ot
he
rs
.  
T
he
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
pr
ov
id
ed
 b
y 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
in
cl
ud
e:
 

• 
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
l H

ea
lth
 

• 
H
om

el
es
sn
es
s 
an
d 
ho
us
in
g 
ad
vi
ce
 

• 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

• 
P
la
nn
in
g 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

• 
R
ev
en
ue
 C
ol
le
ct
io
n 

• 
W
as
te
 C
ol
le
ct
io
n 

• 
S
tr
ee
t c
le
an
si
ng
 

• 
W
or
ki
ng
 in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 th

e 
P
ol
ic
e 
an
d 
ot
he
r 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
 to
 

im
pr
ov
e 
co
m
m
un
ity
 s
af
et
y 

• 
E
co
no
m
ic
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

• 
C
ou
nc
il 
H
ou
si
ng

 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

• 
C
us
to
m
er
 S
er
vi
ce
 C
en
tr
e 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 s
in
gl
e 
po
in
t o
f c
on
ta
ct
 fo
r 

C
ou
nc
il 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
( 
te
le
ph
on
e 
an
d 
fa
ce
 to
 fa
ce
 )
 

• 
O
ne
 S
to
p 
S
ho
ps
 a
nd
 C
on
ta
ct
 C
en
tr
e 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 s
in
gl
e 
po
in
t o
f 

co
nt
ac
t f
or
 C
ou
nc
il 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

• 
F
re
e 
bu
s 
fa
re
s 
sc
he
m
e 
fo
r 
ol
de
r 
pe
op
le
 a
nd
 th

os
e 
w
ith
 s
pe
ci
fie
d 

di
sa
bi
lit
ie
s 

• 
S
ho
pm

ob
ili
ty
 d
is
ab
ili
ty
 s
co
ot
er
s 
an
d 
w
he
el
ch
ai
rs
 to
 e
na
bl
e 

di
sa
bl
ed
 p
eo
pl
e 
to
 a
cc
es
s 
th
e 
T
ow

n 
C
en
tr
e 

• 
D
ia
l-A

-R
id
e 
tr
an
sp
or
t s
er
vi
ce
 fo

r 
ol
de
r 
an
d 
pe
op
le
 w
ith
 d
is
ab
ili
tie
s 

w
ho
 h
av
e 
di
ffi
cu
lty
 in
 u
si
ng
 p
ub
lic
 tr
an
sp
or
t 

• 
C
om

m
un
ity
 C
en
tr
es
 

• 
T
he
 P
al
ac
e 
T
he
at
re
 

    

• 
F
or
ge

 M
ill
 N
ee
dl
e 
M
us
eu

m
 a
nd
 B
or
de
sl
ey
 A
bb
ey
 V
is
ito
r 
C
en
tr
e 
 

• 
S
po
rt
s 
C
en
tr
es
 a
nd
 s
w
im
m
in
g 
po
ol
s 
 

• 
A
rr
ow

 V
al
le
y 
P
ar
k 
an
d 
M
or
to
n 
S
ta
nl
ey
 P
ar
k 

• 
A
rr
ow

 V
al
le
y 
C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 V
is
ito
rs
 C
en
tr
e 
 

• 
C
re
m
at
or
iu
m
 a
nd
 c
em

et
er
ie
s 

• 
S
up
po
rt
in
g 
an
d 
pr
om

ot
in
g 
th
e 
A
rt
s 
an
d 
Y
ou
th
 T
he
at
re
 

• 
P
la
y 
A
re
as
 a
nd
 m

ul
ti 
ac
tiv
ity
 p
la
y 
ar
ea
s 

• 
P
la
yi
ng

 p
itc
he
s 
an
d 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 c
ha
ng
in
g 
fa
ci
lit
ie
s 

• 
 R
E
D
I C

en
tr
e 

• 
R
ed
di
ca
rd
 le
is
ur
e 
pa
ss
 s
ch
em

e 

• 
M
an
ag

em
en
t o
f f
ou
r 
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
C
en
tr
es
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh

 

• 
C
C
T
V
/L
ife
lin
e 

• 
C
om

m
un
ity
 S
er
vi
ce
s 

• 
La
nd
sc
ap
e 
m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
/im

pr
ov
em

en
ts
 

• 
M
ar
ke
t S

er
vi
ce
s 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 th

e 
on
ly
 D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
il 
w
ith
in
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 

th
at
 s
til
l m

ai
nt
ai
ns
 it
s 
ow

n 
st
oc
k 
of
 r
en
te
d 
ho
us
in
g.
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
al
so
 h
as
 a
 c
om

m
un
ity
 le
ad
er
sh
ip
 r
ol
e.
  T

hi
s 
co
m
m
its
 u
s 
to
 

de
ve
lo
p,
 to

ge
th
er
 w
ith
 o
ur
 p
ar
tn
er
s,
 a
 S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y.
  T

hi
s 

se
ts
 o
ut
 th
e 
ke
y 
is
su
es
 fa
ce
d 
in
 th

e 
B
or
ou
gh
 a
nd
 a
 p
la
n 
to
 ta
ck
le
 th
em

.  
T
he
 

G
ov
er
nm

en
t a

ls
o 
pl
ac
es
 a
 r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty
 o
n 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 
to
 s
ha
pe
 th
ei
r 

co
m
m
un
iti
es
 a
ro
un
d 
th
e 
ne
ed
s 
an
d 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 o
f t
he
ir 
re
si
de
nt
s.
 

Page 30



 
13

 

8.
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 W
o
rk
in
g
 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
a 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
y 
an
d 
a 
lo
ng

 h
is
to
ry
 o
f s
ha
pi
ng
 

th
e 
co
m
m
un
ity
 a
ro
un
d 
th
e 
ne
ed
s 
an
d 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 o
f t
he
 B
or
ou
gh

’s
 

re
si
de
nt
s,
 in
 p
ur
su
an
ce
 o
f i
ts
 r
ol
e 
of
 c
om

m
un
ity
 le
ad
er
sh
ip
.  
It 
al
so
 n
ee
ds
 to
 

w
or
k 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
w
ith
 o
th
er
s 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 th

e 
hi
gh
es
t q
ua
lit
y 
se
rv
ic
es
 to
 lo
ca
l 

re
si
de
nt
s 
an
d 
th
os
e 
w
ho
 w
or
k 
in
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh

.  
T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
re
co
gn

is
es
 th

at
 

it 
ca
nn
ot
 d
o 
th
is
 a
lo
ne
 a
nd
 th

er
ef
or
e 
w
or
ks
 in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
 

fr
om

 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
, p
riv
at
e 
an
d 
vo
lu
nt
ar
y 
an
d 
co
m
m
un
ity
 s
ec
to
rs
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 it
s 

as
pi
ra
tio
ns
. 

 O
ne
 w
ay
 in
 w
hi
ch
 th

e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
or
ks
 w
ith
 o
th
er
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
 is
 th
ro
ug
h 

fo
rm

al
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
or
ki
ng
.  
T
hi
s 
de
liv
er
s 
th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
be
ne
fit
s:
 

 
• 

M
or
e 
ef
fic
ie
nt
 a
nd
 e
ffe

ct
iv
e 
us
e 
of
 r
es
ou
rc
es
, b

y 
im
pr
ov
in
g 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
an
d 
re
du
ci
ng

 d
up
lic
at
io
n 
w
ith
 o
th
er
 s
er
vi
ce
s;
 

• 
Im

pr
ov
in
g 
ho
w
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
ar
e 
de
liv
er
ed
, b

y 
lin
ki
ng
 w
ith
 

co
m
pl
em

en
ta
ry
 s
er
vi
ce
s;
 a
nd
 

• 
Im

pr
ov
in
g 
th
e 
qu

al
ity
 o
f l
ife
 fo
r 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
re
si
de
nt
s 
th
ro
ug
h 
m
ut
ua
l 

su
pp
or
t o
f s
er
vi
ce
s 
th
at
 b
en
ef
it 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh

. 
 In
 s
um

m
ar
y,
 b
y 
w
or
ki
ng
 to
ge
th
er
, m

or
e 
ca
n 
be
 a
ch
ie
ve
d 
th
an
 b
y 
ea
ch
 

or
ga

ni
sa
tio
n 
w
or
ki
ng
 in
 is
ol
at
io
n.
  F

or
 th

is
 r
ea
so
n,
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 

C
ou
nc
il 
is
 c
om

m
itt
ed
 to
 p
la
yi
ng

 a
n 
ac
tiv
e 
ro
le
 in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
. 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 a
 m

em
be
r 
of
 th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
m
ai
n 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
ps
: 

 
• 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. 

 
• 

R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. 

 
• 

R
ed
di
tc
h 
C
om

m
un
ity
 S
af
et
y 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. 

 
• 

H
er
ef
or
d 
an
d 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
ou
nt
y 
S
po
rt
s 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. 

   T
he
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 L
oc
al
 A
re
a 
A
gr
ee
m
en
t (
LA

A
) 
is
 th
e 
th
re
e-
ye
ar
 s
tr
at
eg
y 

ag
re
ed
 b
y 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 C
en
tr
al
 G
ov
er
nm

en
t t
ha
t s
et
s 

ou
t t
he
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
fo
r W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
.  
T
he
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
an
d 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
su
pp
or
t a

nd
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 th
e 
LA

A
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
.  
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
or
ks
 w
ith
 a
 d
iv
er
se
 r
an
ge
 o
f p

ar
tn
er
s 
an
d 
st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
 to
 

ac
hi
ev
e 
its
 p
rio
rit
ie
s.
  T

he
se
 in
cl
ud
e:
 

 
• 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 

• 
W
es
t M

er
ci
a 
C
on
st
ab
ul
ar
y 

• 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
rim

ar
y 
C
ar
e 
T
ru
st
 

• 
H
er
ef
or
d 
&
 W

or
ce
st
er
 F
ire
 a
nd
 R
es
cu
e 

• 
H
er
ef
or
d 
&
 W

or
ce
st
er
 C
ha
m
be
r 
of
 C
om

m
er
ce
 

• 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
N
et
w
or
k 
(B
A
R
N
) 

• 
K
in
gf
is
he
r 
S
ho
pp
in
g 
C
en
tr
e 

• 
N
E
W
 C
ol
le
ge

 
• 

V
ol
un
ta
ry
 a
nd
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
ec
to
r 
O
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
 

• 
B
us
in
es
s 
R
ep
re
se
nt
at
iv
es
 

  

Page 31



 
14

 

9.
  

 

W
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
et
h
er
 t
o
 h
el
p
 s
h
ap
e 
th
e 
fu
tu
re
 o
f 
R
ed
d
it
ch
 

 

 O
ur
 v
is
io
n 
is
 fo
r 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
to
 b
e 
su
cc
es
sf
ul
 a
nd
 v
ib
ra
nt
, 

w
ith
 s
us
ta
in
ab
le
 c
om
m
un
iti
es
 b
ui
lt 
on
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 a
nd
 

sh
ar
ed
 r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty
.  
W
e 
w
an
t p
eo
pl
e 
to
 b
e 
pr
ou
d 
th
at
 

th
ey
 li
ve
 o
r 
w
or
k 
in
 R
ed
di
tc
h 

 

 W
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
et
h
er
 t
o
 h
el
p
 s
h
ap
e 
th
e 
fu
tu
re
 o
f 
R
ed
d
it
ch
 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 b
rin
gs
 to
ge
th
er
 r
ep
re
se
nt
at
iv
es
 fr
om

 p
ub
lic
, p
riv
at
e,
 

co
m
m
un
ity
 a
nd
 v
ol
un
ta
ry
 a
ge

nc
ie
s 
to
 w
or
k 
to
ge

th
er
 e
ffe

ct
iv
el
y 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 a
 

ra
ng
e 
of
 lo
ca
l p
ro
je
ct
s,
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 
in
iti
at
iv
es
.  
It 
ai
m
s 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 

le
ad
er
sh
ip
 a
nd
 g
ov
er
ni
ng
 r
ol
e 
th
ro
ug
h 
sh
ar
in
g 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n,
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 a
nd
 

ef
fo
rt
 to
 e
ffi
ci
en
tly
 a
nd
 e
ffe

ct
iv
el
y 
m
ee
t t
he
 n
ee
ds
 a
nd
 a
sp
ira
tio
ns
 o
f l
oc
al
 

co
m
m
un
iti
es
. 

T
h
e 
R
ed

d
it
ch

 S
u
st
ai
n
ab

le
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
tr
at
eg

y 
 T
he
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y,
 p
ro
du
ce
d 
by
 R
ed
di
tc
h 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
, e

st
ab
lis
he
s 
th
e 
ov
er
al
l s
tr
at
eg
ic
 d
ire
ct
io
n 
an
d 
lo
ng
 te
rm

 v
is
io
n 

fo
r 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh

 a
nd
 o
ut
lin
es
 th
e 
sh
ar
ed
 c
om

m
itm

en
ts
 m
ad
e 
by
 th

e 
P
ar
tn
er
s.
 It
 s
et
s 
th
e 
fr
am

ew
or
k 
w
ith
in
 w
hi
ch
 P
ar
tn
er
s 
w
ill
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n 
ke
y 

ob
je
ct
iv
es
, b

y 
sh
ar
in
g 
re
so
ur
ce
s,
 s
ki
lls
, k
no
w
le
dg

e 
an
d 
ef
fo
rt
 to
 c
ol
le
ct
iv
el
y 

de
liv
er
 th

e 
be
st
 p
os
si
bl
e 
ou
tc
om

es
 fo
r 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
. 

T
he
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
ca
n 
be
 v
ie
w
ed
 a
t 

w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hp
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
.o
rg
.u
k.
 

 T
he
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
is
 in
te
nd
ed
 to
 in
flu
en
ce
 th
e 

st
ra
te
gy
 a
nd
 b
ud
ge
t p

la
ns
 o
f a

ll 
m
em

be
rs
 o
f R

ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. T

he
 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
co
nt
rib
ut
e 
to
 th
os
e 
se
t o
ut
 in
 th
e 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 

S
tr
at
eg
y.
  T

hi
s 
is
 r
ef
le
ct
ed
 a
s 
fo
llo
w
s:
 

  
R
ed
d
it
ch
 S
u
st
ai
n
ab
le
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

T
h
em

es
 

R
ed
d
it
ch
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

C
o
u
n
ci
l’s
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
es
 

 
 

 C
om

m
un
iti
es
 th

at
 a
re
 s
af
e 
an
d 

fe
el
 s
af
e 

 S
af
e 

 
 

 A
 b
et
te
r 
en
vi
ro
nm

en
t –
 fo
r 

to
da
y 
an
d 
to
m
or
ro
w
 

 C
le
an
 a
nd
 g
re
en
 

 
   

 E
co
no
m
ic
 s
uc
ce
ss
 th
at
 is
 

sh
ar
ed
 b
y 
al
l 

  E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om

m
un
ity
 

 
 

 Im
pr
ov
in
g 
he
al
th
 a
nd
 

w
el
lb
ei
ng
 

 S
af
e 

C
le
an
 a
nd
 g
re
en
 

 
 

 M
ee
tin
g 
th
e 
ne
ed
s 
of
 c
hi
ld
re
n 

an
d 
yo
un
g 
pe
op
le
 

 E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om

m
un
ity
 

S
af
e 

C
le
an
 a
nd
 g
re
en
 

 

 S
tr
on
ge

r 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 

 

 E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om

m
un
ity
 

S
af
e 

    

Page 32



 
15

 

   C
o
m
p
re
h
en
si
ve
 A
re
a 
A
ss
es
sm

en
t 

 In
 D
ec
em

be
r 
20
09
 th
e 
C
om

pr
eh
en
si
ve
 A
re
a 
A
ss
es
sm

en
t (
C
A
A
) 
fo
r 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 g
av
e 
a 
“r
ed
 fl
ag
” 
to
 R
ed
di
tc
h,
 id
en
tif
yi
ng

 th
at
 o
ur
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

ed
uc
at
io
na
l a
tta
in
m
en
t w

as
 c
om

pa
ra
tiv
el
y 
lo
w
 a
nd
 th

at
 th
er
e 
w
er
e 
gr
ea
te
r 

he
al
th
 in
eq

ua
lit
ie
s 
in
 R
ed
di
tc
h,
 c
om

pa
re
d 
to
 o
th
er
 a
re
as
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nt
y.
  

A
lth
ou
gh
 th

e 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 n
ot
 d
ire
ct
ly
 r
es
po
ns
ib
le
 fo

r 
ei
th
er
 o
f t
he
se
 

se
rv
ic
e 
ar
ea
s,
 w
e 
ha
ve
 a
 r
ol
e 
to
 p
la
y,
 b
ot
h 
th
ro
ug
h 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
w
or
ki
ng
 a
nd
 

th
ro
ug
h 
se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y 
th
at
 s
up
po
rt
s 
th
es
e,
 fo
r 
ex
am

pl
e,
 im

pr
ov
ed
 le
is
ur
e 

pr
ov
is
io
n 
w
hi
ch
 im

pr
ov
es
 o
ur
 r
es
id
en
ts
’ h
ea
lth
. 

T
he
 B
or
ou
gh

 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 le
ad
in
g 
on
 u
pd
at
in
g 
th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y,
 s
o 
th
at
 it
 m

ap
s 
ho
w
 w
e 
ar
e 
cu
rr
en
tly
 

ta
ck
lin
g 
th
es
e 
is
su
es
 a
nd
 h
ow

 w
e 
ca
n 
w
or
k 
be
tte
r 
w
ith
 o
ur
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 

in
cr
ea
se
 th
e 
fo
cu
s 
on
 e
du
ca
tio
na
l a
tta
in
m
en
t, 
im
pr
ov
in
g 
ou
r 
ch
ild
re
n’
s’
 

as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 a
nd
 o
n 
he
al
th
 o
ut
co
m
es
 fo
r 
ou
r 
re
si
de
nt
s.
  E

qu
al
ly
, w

e 
w
ill
 e
xp
ec
t 

ou
r 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 to
 b
rin
g 
th
er
e 
th
in
ki
ng
, e
xp
er
tis
e 
an
d 
fo
cu
s 
to
 th
e 
ta
bl
e 
on
 h
ow

 
th
ey
 c
an
 ta
ck
le
 th
e 
is
su
es
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
by
 th
e 
C
A
A
. 

A
s 
pa
rt
 o
f o

ur
 r
es
ea
rc
h 
w
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
vi
si
tin
g 
ot
he
r 
ar
ea
s 
th
at
 h
av
e 
a 
tr
ac
k 
re
co
rd
 

in
 s
oc
ia
l r
eg
en
er
at
io
n 
an
d 
w
or
k 
w
ith
 s
pe
ci
al
is
t a

dv
is
er
s 
w
ho

 c
an
 o
ffe

r 
us
 

in
si
gh

t i
nt
o 
w
ha
t h

as
 w
or
ke
d 
el
se
w
he
re
.  
W
e 
ar
e 
al
so
 e
ng

ag
in
g 
w
ith
 lo
ca
l 

sc
ho
ol
 h
ea
ds
 a
nd
 te

ac
he
rs
 a
nd
 fi
na
lly
, w

e 
ar
e 
lo
ok
in
g 
to
 s
ta
rt
 a
 r
an
ge

 o
f 

ac
tio
ns
 n
ow

, f
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e,
 c
ar
ee
rs
 fa
re
s,
 h
ea
lth
 c
he
ck
s 
an
d 
se
ek
in
g 
m
or
e 

sc
ho
ol
 g
ov
er
no
rs
. 

T
he
 n
ew

 C
oa
lit
io
n 
G
ov
er
nm

en
t h
as
 s
ub
se
qu

en
tly
 a
bo
lis
he
d 
C
A
A
; h

ow
ev
er
, 

th
e 
w
or
k 
of
 th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 o
n 
th
e 
“r
ed
 fl
ag
” 
is
su
es
 c
on
tin
ue
s 
as
 th
e 

is
su
es
 a
re
 s
til
l t
he
re
, “
re
d 
fla
g”
 o
r 
no
 “
re
d 
fla
g”
. 

  

Page 33



 
16

 

10
. 
H
o
w
 W
e 
W
ill
 D
el
iv
er
 O
u
r 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
es
 

 
 

E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om

m
un

ity
 

 
S
af
e 

 
C
le
an

 a
nd

 G
re
en

 
 F
or
 e
ac
h 
of
 th
e 
C
ou

nc
il’
s 
pr
io
rit
y 
th
em

es
, a
 s
et
 o
f k
ey
 o
ut
co
m
es
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
de
ve
lo
pe
d.
   
S
om

e 
of
 th
es
e 
ar
e 
cr
os
s-
cu
tti
ng
 th

ro
ug
ho

ut
 

th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 
w
hi
ls
t o

th
er
s 
ar
e 
sp
ec
ifi
c 
to
 a
 s
er
vi
ce
.  
K
ey
 

pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 in
di
ca
to
rs
 h
av
e 
be
en

 d
ev
el
op

ed
 to
 m
ea

su
re
 p
ro
gr
es
s 

ag
ai
ns
t t
ar
ge
ts
 a
nd
 e
na
bl
e 
C
ou
nc
ill
or
s,
 r
es
id
en

ts
 a
nd
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 

tr
ac
k 
ou

r 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 a
ga
in
st
 th
e 
C
or
po
ra
te
 P
la
n.
 

 P
ro
je
ct
s 
an
d 
ta
sk
s 
to
 s
up

po
rt
 th
es
e 
ke
y 
de

liv
er
ab

le
s 
ar
e 
in
cl
ud
ed
 in
 

th
e 
re
le
va
nt
 S
er
vi
ce
 P
la
ns
.  
P
ro
gr
es
s 
ag
ai
ns
t t
he
m
 w
ill
 b
e 
m
on
ito
re
d 

on
 a
 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 b
as
is
 b
y 
th
e 
C
or
po

ra
te
 M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
, O

ve
rv
ie
w
 

an
d 
S
cr
ut
in
y 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 a
nd
 th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
. 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
m
on

ito
rs
 a
nd

 m
an
ag
es
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 a
ga
in
st
 a
 r
an

ge
 o
f 

na
tio
na

l i
nd

ic
at
or
s 
an
d 
lo
ca
l p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 in
di
ca
to
rs
.  

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
in
cl
ud
es
 h
ig
h 
le
ve
l a
ct
io
ns
 a
nd

 in
di
ca
to
rs
 w
ith
 

ot
he

rs
 b
ei
ng
 d
et
ai
le
d 
in
 th
e 
re
le
va
nt
 S
er
vi
ce
 P
la
ns
.  
C
op

ie
s 
of
 th
e 

S
er
vi
ce
 P
la
ns
 c
an
 b
e 
fo
un
d 
on
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
w
eb

si
te
 a
t 

w
w
w
.r
ed

di
tc
hb

c.
go
v.
uk
. 

 T
ho
se
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 in
di
ca
to
rs
 a
nd

 a
ct
io
ns
 th
at
 d
o 
no
t f
ea

tu
re
 in
 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 
P
la
n 
ar
e 
st
ill
 m
on

ito
re
d;
 h
ow

ev
er
 th

ey
 a
re
 o
nl
y 
re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

an
 e
xc
ep

tio
n 
ba
si
s.
  T

hi
s 
pr
io
rit
is
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac
h 
ai
ds
 th
e 
C
ou

nc
il 
in
 

di
re
ct
in
g 
its
 r
es
ou

rc
es
 in
to
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 th

at
 d
ire
ct
ly
 s
up

po
rt
 

ac
hi
ev
em

en
t a
ga
in
st
 o
ur
 p
rio
rit
ie
s.
 

  

 T
he
 k
ey
 o
ut
co
m
es
 fo
r 
th
e 
ne
xt
 o
ne
 to

 th
re
e 
ye
ar
s 
ar
e 
de
ta
ile
d 
ov
er
 

th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
pa

ge
s.
 

 T
he
 ta
bl
e 
sh
ow

s,
 fo

r 
ea
ch
 p
rio
rit
y,
 th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 to
 b
e 
ac
hi
ev
ed

; t
he
 

ke
y 
ob

je
ct
iv
es
 th

at
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 th
os
e 
ou
tc
om

es
; a
nd

 th
e 
ke
y 

ac
tio
ns
 n
ee
de
d 
to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 th

e 
ob

je
ct
iv
es
.  

   

   

Page 34



 
17

 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 A
R
E
A
: 
  

E
n
te
rp
ri
si
n
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
(E
C
) 

K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
s:
   
 

• 
Im

pr
ov
in
g 
ed
uc
at
io
na
l a
tta
in
m
en
t, 
im
pr
ov
in
g 
ou
r 
ch
ild
re
n’
s 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 a
nd
 r
ed
uc
in
g 
he
al
th
 

in
eq

ua
lit
ie
s.
 

• 
B
et
te
r 
ut
ili
sa
tio
n 
of
 o
ur
 C
ou
nc
il 
ho
us
in
g 
st
oc
k.
  

• 
S
up
po
rt
in
g 
lo
ng
 te
rm

 e
co
no
m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
. 

• 
S
up
po
rt
in
g 
ex
is
tin
g 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
. 

• 
F
irs
t c
la
ss
 le
is
ur
e 
fa
ci
lit
ie
s.
  

• 
S
up
po
rt
in
g 
a 
pr
os
pe
ro
us
 to

w
n 
ce
nt
re
.  

• 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
gr
an
t p

ol
ic
y 

 
 

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
: 
 E
C
1 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

Im
pr
ov
in
g 
ed
uc
at
io
na
l a
tta
in
m
en
t, 
im
pr
ov
in
g 

ou
r 
ch
ild
re
n’
s 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 a
nd
 r
ed
uc
in
g 

he
al
th
 in
eq

ua
lit
ie
s.
 

 

   
 

   
  � ���
 

 

 � ���
 

 

In
di
ca
to
rs
 to
 b
e 
de
ta
ile
d 
as
 p
ar
t o
f 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t o
f “
C
lo
si
ng
 th
e 
G
ap
” 
st
ra
te
gy
 

or
 S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 

 
 

 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f a

 n
ew

 S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
w
ith
 a
 fo

cu
s 

on
 a
dd
re
ss
in
g 
th
e 
“r
ed
 fl
ag
” 
is
su
es
. 

 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

S
up
po
rt
 fr
om

 th
e 
Im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

an
d 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t A

ge
nc
y.
 

K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

  

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
: 
E
C
2 

  
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

B
et
te
r 
ut
ili
sa
tio
n 
of
 o
ur
 C
ou
nc
il 
ho
us
in
g 

st
oc
k.
  

 

   
  � ���
 

   
 � ���
 

 

• 
N
I 1
56
 N
o.
 o
f h

ou
se
ho
ld
s 
liv
in
g 
in
 

te
m
po
ra
ry
 a
cc
om

m
od
at
io
n 

15
   

15
   

15
    

Page 35



 
18

 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
H
ou

si
ng
 Q
ua

lit
y 
N
et
w
or
k 
A
ss
es
sm

en
t a
nd
 J
oi
nt
 B
en
ef
its
 / 

H
ou

si
ng
 A
ud

it 
C
om

m
is
si
on

 In
sp
ec
tio
n 

31
 M
ay
 2
01
0 

01
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
0 

 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
R
es
ol
ut
io
n 
of
 lo
ng
 te
rm

 fi
na
nc
in
g 
of
 H
ou
si
ng
 S
er
vi
ce
. 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f T

en
an
t I
nv
ol
ve
m
en
t S

tr
at
eg
y 

31
 A
ug

us
t 2
01
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

    

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
: 
 E
C
3 

  
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

S
up
po
rt
in
g 
lo
ng
 te
rm

 e
co
no
m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
 

    
  � ���
 

     
 � ���
 

 

• 
N
I1
51
 –
 o
ve
ra
ll 
em

pl
oy
m
en
t r
at
e 

(w
or
ki
ng
 a
ge
) 

• 
N
I1
52
 –
 W

or
ki
ng
 a
ge

 p
eo
pl
e 
on
 o
ut
 o
f 

w
or
k 
be
ne
fit
s 

• 
N
I1
53
 –
 W

or
ki
ng
 a
ge

 p
eo
pl
e 
cl
ai
m
in
g 

ou
t o
f w

or
k 
be
ne
fit
s 
in
 th
e 
w
or
st
 

pe
rf
or
m
in
g 
ne
ig
hb
ou
rh
oo
ds
 

• 
N
I1
71
 –
 N
ew

 b
us
in
es
s 
re
gi
st
ra
tio
n 

ra
te
 

• 
N
I1
72
 -
 %

 o
f s
m
al
l b
us
in
es
se
s 
in
 a
n 

ar
ea
 s
ho
w
in
g 
em

pl
oy
m
en
t g
ro
w
th
 

    

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

 M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

 M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

 M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

 

Page 36



 
19

 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
N
or
th
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 E
co
no
m
ic
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t S

tr
at
eg
y 
pr
op
os
al
s 

ap
pr
ov
ed
.  

 

 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
12
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
E
ns
ur
e 
an
 a
de
qu

at
e 
su
pp
ly
 o
f l
an
d 
fo
r 
ec
on
om

ic
 g
ro
w
th
 

20
12
 (
de
pe
nd
en
t o

n 
ne
w
 p
la
nn
in
g 
re
gi
m
e)
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

 

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
: 
 E
C
4 

  
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

S
up
po
rt
in
g 
ex
is
tin
g 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 

    
  � ���
 

     
 � ���
 

 

• 
N
I1
51
 –
 o
ve
ra
ll 
em

pl
oy
m
en
t r
at
e 

(w
or
ki
ng
 a
ge
) 

• 
N
I1
52
 –
 W

or
ki
ng
 a
ge

 p
eo
pl
e 
on
 o
ut
 o
f 

w
or
k 
be
ne
fit
s 

• 
N
I1
53
 –
 W

or
ki
ng
 a
ge

 p
eo
pl
e 
cl
ai
m
in
g 

ou
t o
f w

or
k 
be
ne
fit
s 
in
 th
e 
w
or
st
 

pe
rf
or
m
in
g 
ne
ig
hb
ou
rh
oo
ds
 

• 
N
I1
71
 –
 N
ew

 b
us
in
es
s 
re
gi
st
ra
tio
n 
ra
te
 

• 
N
I1
72
 -
 %

 o
f s
m
al
l b
us
in
es
se
s 
in
 a
n 

ar
ea
 s
ho
w
in
g 
em

pl
oy
m
en
t g
ro
w
th
 

         

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

 M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

 M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

be
lo
w
 G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

 M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 
 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 o
r 

ab
ov
e 
G
re
at
 

B
rit
ai
n 
av
er
ag
e 

 

Page 37



 
20

 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
M
in
im
um

 o
f 3

 b
us
in
es
s 
ev
en
ts
 p
er
 y
ea
r.
  

 
31

 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 
(a
nd

 
an

nu
al
ly
 th

er
ea
fte

r)
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
R
ev
ie
w
 o
pe
ra
tio
n 
of
 b
us
in
es
s 
ce
nt
re
s.
 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

  

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
 E
C
5 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

 T
o 
op
en
 th
e 
pr
op
os
ed
 n
ew

 A
bb
ey
 

S
ta
di
um

 L
ei
su
re
 C
en
tr
e 

    
 � ���
 

 

 
N
I 8
 –
 in
cr
ea
se
 a
du
lt 
pa
rt
ic
ip
at
io
n 
in
 s
po
rt
 

    

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

   

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

     

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

     

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 p
ro
je
ct
 p
la
n 
fo
r 
op
en
in
g 
of
 s
ta
di
um

. 
 J
an
ua
ry
 2
01
2 

£6
.6
m
 a
pp
ro
ve
d 
ca
pi
ta
l s
ch
em

e.
 

S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

  

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
 E
C
6 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

T
o 
de
ve
lo
p 
th
e 
T
ow

n 
C
en
tr
e 
an
d 
C
hu
rc
h 

H
ill
 D
is
tr
ic
t C

en
tr
e 

    
 � ���
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
A
nn
ua
l r
ev
ie
w
 o
f T

ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 

 3
1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
C
om

pl
et
io
n 
of
 e
xi
st
in
g 
pu
bl
ic
 r
ea
lm
 s
tu
di
es
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
of
 w
or
k.
 

 3
1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

Page 38



 
21

 

• 
R
ed
ev
el
op
 C
hu
rc
h 
H
ill
 d
is
tr
ic
t c
en
tr
e.
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

C
ap
ita
l P

ro
gr
am

m
e 

Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

  

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
 E
C
7 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

T
o 
re
vi
ew

 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
gr
an
t p
ol
ic
y 
in
 li
ne
 

w
ith
 s
ho
pp
in
g,
 in
ve
st
in
g 
an
d 
gi
vi
ng

. 

    
 � ���
 

 

 
N
I6
 P
ar
tic
ip
at
io
n 
in
 r
eg
ul
at
or
 v
ol
un
te
er
in
g.
 

 N
I7
 E
nv
iro
nm

en
t f
or
 a
 th
riv
in
g 
th
ird
 s
ec
to
r.
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
S
co
pe
 is
su
es
 r
el
at
in
g 
to
 c
ur
re
nt
 p
ol
ic
y 

31
 A
ug

us
t 2
01
0 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
C
om

pl
et
e 
ne
w
 p
ol
ic
y 

30
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
10
 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
C
on
su
lt 
st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
 o
n 
po
lic
y 

30
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
10
 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 to
 a
do
pt
 p
ol
ic
y 

31
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
0 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

Page 39



 
22

 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 A
R
E
A
: 
  S
af
e 
(S
) 

K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
s:
   
 

• 
R
ed
uc
in
g 
ac
tu
al
 c
rim

e 
le
ve
ls
. 

• 
A
dd
re
ss
in
g 
pe
rc
ep
tio
ns
 o
f c
rim

e.
 

• 
R
ed
uc
in
g 
re
-o
ffe

nd
in
g.
 

• 
D
ev
el
op

in
g 
co
m
m
un
ity
 c
oh
es
io
n.
 

• 
R
ed
uc
in
g 
an
ti-
so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
. 

• 
M
an
ag

in
g 
th
e 
ni
gh

t t
im
e 
ec
on
om

y.
 

 
K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

 K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
 S
1 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

 R
ed
uc
in
g 
ac
tu
al
 c
rim

e 
le
ve
ls
 (
to
ta
l c
rim

e)
 

   
 

   
  � ���
 

   
  

   
   
  � ���
   
 

T
ot
al
 C
rim

e 
(0
9/
10
 b
as
el
in
e 
3,
45
9 
cr
im
es
) 

D
ow

nw
ar
d 

T
re
nd

 
D
ow

nw
ar
d 

T
re
nd

 
D
ow

nw
ar
d 

T
re
nd

 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
R
ev
is
e 
an
d 
up
da
te
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
af
et
y 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 P
la
n.
 

 B
y 
31

st
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
 S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

 
K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

 K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
 S
2 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

 A
dd
re
ss
in
g 
pe
rc
ep
tio
ns
 o
f c
rim

e 
            

   
 

   
  � ���
 

   
  

   
   
  � ���
   
 

N
I1
7 
P
er
ce
pt
io
ns
 o
f a

nt
i-s
oc
ia
l b
eh
av
io
ur
. 

 N
I2
1 
D
ea
lin
g 
w
ith
 lo
ca
l c
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t a
nt
i 

so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
. 

 N
I2
7 
U
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f l
oc
al
 c
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t 

an
ti-
so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
 

 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

Page 40



 
23

 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 a
 c
om

m
un
ity
 s
af
et
y 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
. 

31
st
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

£3
2,
00
0 
A
re
a 
B
as
ed
 G
ra
nt
 

S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
Im

pr
ov
e 
se
cu
rit
y 
in
 th
e 
W
in
ya
te
s 
E
st
at
e 

31
st
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

£5
00
,0
00
 L
A
A
 R
ew

ar
d 
G
ra
nt
 

S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

 
K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

 K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
 S
4 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

 D
ev
el
op

in
g 
co
m
m
un
ity
 c
oh
es
io
n 

   
 

   
  � ���
 

   
  

   
   
  � ���
   
 

N
I0
1 
%
 o
f p

eo
pl
e 
w
ho
 b
el
ie
ve
 p
eo
pl
e 
fr
om

 
di
ffe

re
nt
 b
ac
kg
ro
un
ds
 g
et
 o
n 
w
el
l t
og

et
he
r 

in
 th

ei
r 
lo
ca
l a
re
a.
 

 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 C
om

m
un
ity
 C
oh
es
io
n 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
w
ith
 

B
or
ou
gh
 d
im
en
si
on
. 

 B
y 
31

st
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
 S
ue

 H
an
le
y 

 
K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

 K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
 S
5 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

 T
o 
re
du
ce
 a
nt
i-s
oc
ia
l b
eh
av
io
ur
 

   
 

   
  � ���
 

   
  

   
   
  � ���
   
 

N
I1
7 
P
er
ce
pt
io
ns
 o
f a

nt
i-s
oc
ia
l b
eh
av
io
ur
. 

 N
I2
1 
D
ea
lin
g 
w
ith
 lo
ca
l c
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t a
nt
i 

so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
. 

 N
I2
7 
U
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f l
oc
al
 c
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t 

an
ti-
so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
 

 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

   

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 
P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

 
P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

Page 41



 
24

 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 a
nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a
n 
A
nt
i-S

oc
ia
l B

eh
av
io
ur
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
w
or
ki
ng
 

in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 a
ll 
st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
 (
st
at
ut
or
y 
pl
an
).
 

 B
y 
31

st
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
 S
ue

 H
an
le
y 

  
K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

 K
ey
 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
 S
6 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

M
an
ag

in
g 
th
e 
ni
gh

t t
im
e 
ec
on
om

y 
 

   
 

   
  � ���
 

   
  

   
   
  � ���
   
 

N
I4
1 
P
er
ce
pt
io
ns
 o
f d
ru
nk
 a
nd
 r
ow

dy
 

be
ha
vi
ou
r 
as
 a
 p
ro
bl
em

 (
an
d 
al
so
 L
A
A
 

in
di
ca
to
r 
04
 –
 a
ss
au
lt 
w
ith
 le
ss
 s
er
io
us
 

in
ju
ry
) 

 

D
ow

nw
ar
d 

T
re
nd
 

D
ow

nw
ar
d 

T
re
nd
 

D
ow

nw
ar
d 

T
re
nd
 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
au
di
ts
. 

  O
n-
go

in
g 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
po
lic
y 
re
vi
ew

. 
 31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

  

Page 42



 
25

 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 A
R
E
A
: 
   

C
le
an
 a
n
d
 G
re
en
 (
C
G
) 

K
ey
 O
u
tc
o
m
es
: 
   

• 
C
om

m
un
ity
 E
ve
nt
s 

• 
C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 C
en
tr
e.
 

• 
W
as
te
 R
ec
yc
lin
g 
an
d 
R
ed
uc
tio
n.
 

• 
C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e.
 

• 
La
nd
sc
ap
in
g.
 

• 
D
et
rit
us
. 

 
 

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
C
G
1 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

 C
om

m
un
ity
 E
ve
nt
s 

    
 � ���
 

 

    
   

 

 N
um

be
rs
 a
tte
nd
in
g 

43
,2
48
 

44
,1
12
 

44
,9
95
 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f M

or
to
n 
S
ta
nl
ey
 fe

st
iv
al
 p
ro
je
ct
 p
la
n 
to
 in
cl
ud
e 

co
nf
irm

at
io
n 
of
 a
ct
s,
 c
on
fir
m
at
io
n 
of
 li
ce
ns
es
 a
nd
 in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 h
ea
lth
 

an
d 
sa
fe
ty
 a
gr
ee
d.
 

A
ug

us
t e

ac
h 

ye
ar
. 

 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

              

Page 43



 
26

 

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
C
G
2 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

 C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 C
en
tr
e 

    
 � ���
 

 

    
  � ���
 

 
N
um

be
r 
of
 v
is
ito
rs
. 

34
1,
72
6 

34
8,
56
0 

35
5,
53
1 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
R
ep
or
t t
o 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
on
 C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 C
en
tr
e.
 

• 
P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t e
xe
rc
is
e 
to
 fa
ci
lit
at
e 
an
 a
lte
rn
at
iv
e 
pr
ov
id
er
. 

S
ep
t 2

01
0 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

  

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
C
G
3 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

 D
el
iv
er
 im

pr
ov
ed
 a
nd
 s
us
ta
in
ab
le
 w
as
te
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t s
er
vi
ce
s 

 

    
 � ���
 

 

    
  � ���
 

 

 N
I 1
91
 –
 R
es
id
ua
l h
ou
se
ho
ld
 w
as
te
 p
er
 

ho
us
eh
ol
d 

N
I 1
92
 -
 %

of
 h
ou
se
ho
ld
 w
as
te
 s
en
t f
or
 

re
us
e/
 r
ec
yc
lin
g/
 c
om

po
st
in
g 

 

 <5
75
kg
 

  >2
9.
4%

 

 <1
0/
11
 

ou
ttu
rn
 

 >1
0/
11
 

ou
ttu
rn
 

 <1
1/
12
 

ou
ttu
rn
 

 >1
1/
12
 

ou
ttu
rn
 

  

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 w
as
te
 m

in
im
is
at
io
n 
ca
m
pa
ig
n.
 

3 
ye
ar
 r
ol
lin
g 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
R
ol
l o
ut
 o
f g

ar
de
n 
w
as
te
 s
ch
em

e.
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 

20
11
 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 s
er
vi
ce
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
, b

in
 s
iz
es
 a
nd
 fo

cu
s 
on
 r
ed
uc
in
g 
ro
ad
 

sw
ee
pe
r 
de
tr
itu
s.
 

20
11
/1
2 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

 

Page 44



 
27

 

  

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
C
G
4 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

T
o 
im
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 w
ith
 

re
ga

rd
 to
 m

iti
ga
tio
n 
an
d 
ad
ap
ta
tio
n 
to
 th
e 

C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
A
ge

nd
a 

   
 

   
   
� ���
 

 

   
  

   
  � ���
 

 

N
I 1
85
 –
 C
O

2 
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
fr
om

 L
oc
al
 

A
ut
ho
rit
y 
op
er
at
io
ns
 

   N
I 1
86
 –
 P
er
 c
ap
ita
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
in
 C
O

2 
 

em
is
si
on
s 
in
 th
e 
Lo
ca
l A

ut
ho
rit
y 
ar
ea
 

   N
I 1
88
 –
 P
la
nn
in
g 
to
 a
da
pt
 to
 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an
ge

 

2%
 

(b
as
ed
 o
n 

08
/0
9 

ba
se
lin
e)
 

 
9%

 
re
du
ct
io
n 

on
 2
00
5 

ba
se
lin
e.
 

  
Le
ve
l 2
 

  

4%
 

(b
as
ed
 

on
 0
8/
09
 

ba
se
lin
e)
 

 
T
ar
ge
t t
o 

be
 s
et
 b
y 

C
ou
nt
y 

C
ou
nc
il.
 

  
Le
ve
l 2
 

 

6%
 

(b
as
ed
 o
n 

08
/0
9 

ba
se
lin
e)
 

 
T
ar
ge
t t
o 

be
 s
et
 b
y 

C
ou
nt
y 

C
ou
nc
il.
 

  
Le
ve
l 3
 

 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 a
 lo
ca
l C

lim
at
e 
C
ha
ng

e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
an
d 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 to

 s
up
po
rt
 

th
e 
C
ou
nt
y-
w
id
e 
pl
an
 to

 a
ch
ie
ve
 L
A
A
 ta

rg
et
s 
an
d 
N
at
io
na
l I
nd
ic
at
or
s 

re
la
tin
g 
to
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 

31
 N
ov
em

be
r 
20
11
 

  
H
ug

h 
B
en
ne
tt 

  
K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
C
G
5 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

 La
nd
sc
ap
in
g 

    
 � ���
 

 

    
   

 

 S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 
w
ith
 p
ar
ks
 a
nd
 o
pe
n 
sp
ac
es
. 

 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
B
rit
ai
n 
in
 B
lo
om

. 
Ju
ne

 2
01
0 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

Page 45



 
28

 

• 
G
re
en
 F
la
g 
aw

ar
ds
 (
x3
).
 

Ju
ly
 2
01
0 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
R
e-
m
ea
su
re
 la
nd
sc
ap
e 
(a
ud
it)
 a
nd
 r
ef
in
e 
se
rv
ic
e.
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
10
 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

  
K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
C
G
6 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

 R
ed
uc
in
g 
D
et
rit
us
 

    
 � ���
 

 

    
  � ���
 

 

 N
I 1
95
(a
) 
- 
Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a

nd
 

en
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 
- 
le
ve
ls
 o
f l
itt
er
  

N
I 1
95
(b
) 
- 
Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a

nd
 

en
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 
- 
le
ve
ls
 o
f 

de
tr
itu
s 
 

N
I 1
95
(c
) 
- 
Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a

nd
 

en
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 
– 
le
ve
ls
 o
f g

ra
ffi
ti 

N
I 1
95
(d
) 
- 
Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a

nd
 

en
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 
– 
le
ve
ls
 o
f f
ly
-

po
st
in
g 

N
I 1
96
 –
 Im

pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 

en
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 
– 
fly
-t
ip
pi
ng

 
 

 
6%

 
 

25
%
 

  
2%

 
 0   1 

 
6%

 
 

24
%
 

  
2%

 
 0   1 

 
6%

 
 

24
%
 

  
2%

 
 0   1 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 

b
as
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
LA

A
 p
ro
je
ct
 w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 th

e 
C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il.
   

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
C
om

pl
et
e 
re
vi
ew

 o
f s
w
ee
pe
r 
sc
he
du
le
s.
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

  
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
F
ly
 ti
pp
in
g 
pr
oj
ec
t (
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
l S

er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 
H
ou
si
ng

).
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

         

Page 46



 
29

 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
re
co
gn

is
es
 th
at
 it
 n
ee
ds
 to
 b
e 
a 
w
el
l-m

an
ag
ed
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
n 
to
 e
na
bl
e 
it 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n 
its
 p
rio
rit
ie
s.
  W

hi
ls
t t
hi
s 
is
 n
ot
 a
 p
rio
rit
y 
in
 it
s 
ow

n 
rig
ht
 it
 is
 

es
se
nt
ia
l t
o 
un
de
rp
in
 th

e 
ac
hi
ev
em

en
t o
f i
ts
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
th
e 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 li
st
ed
 b
el
ow

 w
ill
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 th

is
 a
im
. 

    
 

W
E
L
L
 M
A
N
A
G
E
D
  

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
 

K
ey
 O
u
tc
o
m
es
: 
   
 

• 
M
an
ag

in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s.
 

• 
G
ov
er
ni
ng
 th

e 
B
us
in
es
s.
 

• 
M
an
ag

in
g 
R
es
ou
rc
es
. 

• 
M
an
ag

in
g 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
. 

• 
C
us
to
m
er
 P
ro
ce
ss
es
. 

• 
P
ol
iti
ca
l G

ov
er
na
nc
e.
 

• 
S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
s.
 

• 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 E
nh
an
ce
d 
T
w
o 
T
ie
r 
(W

E
T
T
).
 

• 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
nn
in
g.
 

• 
Le
ar
ni
ng
 a
nd
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t. 

• 
H
R
 M
od
er
ni
sa
tio
n.
 

• 
P
os
iti
ve
 E
m
pl
oy
ee
 C
lim

at
e.
 

 
 

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
1 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

M
an
ag

in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s 
- 
T
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
ye
ar
 o
n 

ye
ar
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 
ou
r 
le
ve
l o
f U

se
 o
f 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 ju
dg
em

en
t s
co
re
 

  
    
  � ���
 

 

• 
U
se
 o
f R

es
ou
rc
es
 s
co
re
 fo
r 

M
an
ag

in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s 

 
 

M
in
im
um

 
sc
or
e 
of
 3
 

fo
r 
ea
ch
 

el
em

en
t 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

 
T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
In
te
gr
at
ed
 fi
na
nc
ia
l a
nd
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 r
ep
or
tin
g.
 

• 
B
ud
ge

ts
 a
lig
ne
d 
to
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
th
ro
ug
h 
an
nu
al
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e/
C
M
T
 a
w
ay
 d
ay
 

an
d 
fin
an
ci
al
/s
er
vi
ce
 p
la
nn
in
g 
tim

et
ab
le
. 

• 
B
ud
ge

t c
on
su
lta
tio
n,
 in
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
, b
ud
ge
t j
ur
y 
an
d 
on
-li
ne
 c
on
su
lta
tio
n.
 

Q
tr
 3
 2
01
0/
11
 

Ju
ly
 2
01
0 

 Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
11
 

    

Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 
 

 H
ug

h 
B
en
ne
tt 

  

Page 47



 
30

 

   

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
2 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

G
ov
er
ni
ng
 th

e 
B
us
in
es
s 
- 
T
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
ye
ar
 

on
 y
ea
r 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 
ou
r 
le
ve
l o
f U

se
 o
f 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 ju
dg
em

en
t s
co
re
 

 
    
  � ���
 

 

• 
U
se
 o
f R

es
ou
rc
es
 s
co
re
 fo
r 

M
an
ag

in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s 

 
 

M
in
im
um

 
sc
or
e 
of
 3
 

fo
r 
ea
ch
 

el
em

en
t 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

 
T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 c
as
ha
bl
e 
sa
vi
ng

s 
fr
om

 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t p
la
n.
 

• 
R
ev
ie
w
 o
f d

ep
ar
tm
en
ta
l r
is
k 
re
gi
st
er
s.
 

O
n-
go

in
g 

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

 

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
3 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

M
an
ag

in
g 
R
es
ou
rc
es
 -
 T
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
ye
ar
 o
n 

ye
ar
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 
ou
r 
le
ve
l o
f U

se
 o
f 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 ju
dg
em

en
t s
co
re
 

 
    
  � ���
 

 

• 
U
se
 o
f R

es
ou
rc
es
 s
co
re
 fo
r 

M
an
ag

in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s 

 
 

M
in
im
um

 
sc
or
e 
of
 3
 

fo
r 
ea
ch
 

el
em

en
t 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

 
T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
U
pd
at
e 
as
se
t m

an
ag
em

en
t p

la
n 
an
d 
di
sp
os
e/
re
ta
in
 a
ss
et
s 
as
 p
er
 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pr
io
rit
ie
s.
 

• 
R
ed
uc
e 
C
O
2 
em

is
si
on
s 
as
 p
er
 C
le
an
 a
nd
 G
re
en
 p
rio
rit
y.
 

 

O
n-
go

in
g 

 O
n-
go

in
g 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

 H
ug

h 
B
en
ne
tt 

    

Page 48



 
31

 

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
4 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

M
an
ag

in
g 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 -
 T
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
ye
ar
 

on
 y
ea
r 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 
ou
r 
le
ve
l o
f U

se
 o
f 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 ju
dg
em

en
t s
co
re
 

 
    
  � ���
 

 

• 
U
se
 o
f R

es
ou
rc
es
 s
co
re
 fo
r 

M
an
ag

in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s 

 
 

M
in
im
um

 
sc
or
e 
of
 3
 

fo
r 
ea
ch
 

el
em

en
t 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

 
T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 d
at
a 
qu

al
ity
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 a
nd
 r
ev
ie
w
 a
nn
ua
lly
. 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 c
or
po
ra
te
 p
ro
je
ct
 m
an
ag
em

en
t m

et
ho
do
lo
gy
. 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 V
F
M
 m

ea
su
re
s 
to
 tr
ac
k 
ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
ga

in
s.
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

Ju
ne
 2
01
1 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

 H
ug

h 
B
en
ne
tt 

  

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
 W
M
5 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

 T
o 
m
ak
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 m

or
e 
ac
ce
ss
ib
le
, e
ffi
ci
en
t 

an
d 
cu
st
om

er
 fo
cu
ss
ed
 

 

    
 � ���
 

 

    
  � ���
 

 

• 
Lo
ca
l G

ov
er
nm

en
t E

qu
al
iti
es
 S
ta
nd
ar
d 

2 
2 

3 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
U
nd
er
ta
ke
 C
us
to
m
er
 S
er
vi
ce
 E
xc
el
le
nc
e 
ac
cr
ed
ita
tio
n.
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 c
om

m
un
ity
 e
ng
ag

em
en
t s
tr
at
eg
y.
 

• 
U
nd
er
ta
ke
 e
qu

al
iti
es
 p
ee
r 
as
se
ss
m
en
t. 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

      

Page 49



 
32

 

  

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
6 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

E
ns
ur
e 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 p
ol
iti
ca
l g
ov
er
na
nc
e.
 

 

 � ���
 

 � ���
 

In
cr
ea
se
d 
el
ec
to
ra
l t
ur
no
ut
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

(2
00
8 

ba
se
lin
e)
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

T
re
nd
 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
M
an
ag

e 
lo
ca
l e
le
ct
io
ns
. 

E
ac
h 
ye
ar
 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
 o
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 s
cr
ut
in
y 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

                      

Page 50



 
33

 

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
07
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

D
ev
el
op
 a
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
of
 s
ha
re
d 
se
rv
ic
es
  

 

 
    
   
� ���
 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 s
av
in
gs
 a
s 
pe
r 
M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 P
la
n.
 

   
  

  

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
R
ec
ru
it 
tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 
te
am

. 
A
ug

 2
01
0 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 a
nd
 a
pp
ro
va
l t
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 

S
ep
 2
01
0 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

  

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
08
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

D
ev
el
op
 a
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
of
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 

E
nh
an
ce
d 
T
w
o 
T
ie
r 
(W

E
T
T
) 
se
rv
ic
es
  

 

 
    
   
� ���
 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 s
av
in
gs
 a
s 
pe
r 
M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 P
la
n.
 

   
  

  

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
P
ro
pe
rt
y 
S
er
vi
ce
 W

E
T
T
 to
 g
o 
liv
e.
 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

• 
R
eg

ul
at
or
y 
S
er
vi
ce
 W

E
T
T
 to
 g
o 
liv
e.
 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

• 
In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 
S
er
vi
ce
 W

E
T
T
 to
 g
o 
liv
e.
 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

         

Page 51



 
34

 

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
09
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
nn
in
g 

 
    
   
� ���
 

 
   

  
  

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
M
ai
nt
ai
n 
an
d 
de
liv
er
 th

e 
sp
at
ia
l p
la
nn
in
g 
fu
nc
tio
n.
. 

Ju
ne
 2
01
1 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

   

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
10
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

T
o 
de
ve
lo
p 
a 
co
m
pr
eh
en
si
ve
 L
ea
rn
in
g 
an
d 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t P

ro
gr
am

m
e 
su
pp
or
tin
g 
th
e 

co
rp
or
at
e 
pr
io
rit
ie
s,
 in
di
vi
du
al
 n
ee
ds
 a
nd
 

w
or
kf
or
ce
 p
la
nn
in
g.
 

 

   
    
   
  � ���

 
• 

In
ve
st
or
s 
in
 P
eo
pl
e 
ac
cr
ed
ita
tio
n 
 

   
  

A
pr
il 
20
13
 

 

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 c
or
po
ra
te
 w
or
kf
or
ce
 p
la
n.
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 In

ve
st
or
s 
in
 P
eo
pl
e 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n.
 

A
pr
il 
20
13
 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

          

Page 52



 
35

 

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
11
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

H
R
 M
od
er
ni
sa
tio
n 

   
    
   
  � ���

 
 

   
  

  

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
H
ar
m
on
is
at
io
n 
of
 te
rm

s 
an
d 
co
nd
iti
on
s 

D
ec
 2
01
0 

(s
ub
je
ct
 to
 

T
ra
de
s 
U
ni
on
 

ag
re
em

en
t)
 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

• 
C
om

pl
et
io
n 
of
 p
ay
ro
ll 
le
an
 s
ys
te
m
s 
pr
oj
ec
t 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

 

K
ey
 Im

p
ac
ts
 

K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
12
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

L
o
ca
l A
re
a 

A
g
re
em

en
t 

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
10
/1
1 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
11
/1
2 

T
ar
g
et
 

20
12
/1
3 

P
os
iti
ve
 E
m
pl
oy
ee
 C
lim

at
e 

   
    
   
  � ���

 
• 

S
ta
ff 
su
rv
ey
 r
es
ul
ts
 

  
   

  
  

K
ey
 A
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
o
 b
as
e 

b
u
d
g
et
 

L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

• 
C
re
at
io
n 
an
d 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 e
m
pl
oy
ee
 e
ng

ag
em

en
t p
ro
gr
am

m
e.
 

20
10
 a
nd
 

ea
ch
 y
ea
r 

th
er
ea
fte
r 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

     

Page 53



 
36

 

11
. 
R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em

en
t 

 In
 s
et
tin
g 
ou

t o
ur
 p
la
ns
 fo

r 
th
e 
B
or
ou

gh
 w
e 
re
co
gn
is
e,
 a
s 
a 
w
el
l 

m
an
ag
ed

 o
rg
an

is
at
io
n,
 th

at
 th
er
e 
ar
e 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 r
is
ks
 th

at
 m
ay
 

im
pa

ct
 o
n 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
ac
hi
ev
in
g 
al
l w

e 
ha

ve
 s
et
 o
ut
 in
 th

is
 C
or
po
ra
te
 

P
la
n.
 W

e 
w
ill
 m

on
ito
r 
th
es
e 
ris
ks
 a
nd

 ta
ke
 m

iti
ga
tin
g 
ac
tio
ns
, w

he
re
 

pr
ac
tic
ab

le
, t
o 
m
in
im
is
e 
th
e 
im
pa

ct
 o
n 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
bu
t s
om

e 
ris
ks
 a
re
 

un
av
oi
da

bl
e.
 

 T
he
 k
ey
 r
is
ks
 a
re
 r
el
at
ed

 to
: 

 
• 

E
co
no
m
ic
 c
ha
ng
es
 c
re
at
in
g 
ad

di
tio
na

l p
re
ss
ur
es
 o
n 
se
rv
ic
es
 

an
d 
re
so
ur
ce
s.
 

• 
O
ur
 a
bi
lit
y 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
w
he

n 
re
so
ur
ce
s 
ar
e 
re
st
ric
te
d 

or
 s
ys
te
m
s 
fa
il.
 

• 
T
ha
t s
er
vi
ce
 im

pr
ov
em

en
ts
 d
o 
no

t r
es
ul
t i
n 
po
si
tiv
e 
ch
an

ge
s 

in
 u
se
r 
pe
rc
ep

tio
n.
 

• 
T
he
 d
el
iv
er
y 
of
 r
es
ili
en
ce
 a
nd
 e
ffi
ci
en

ci
es
 th
ro
ug
h 

pa
rt
ne

rs
hi
p 
w
or
ki
ng
. 

• 
T
ha
t a
dv
an

ce
s 
in
 te

ch
no

lo
gy
 a
re
 n
ot
 u
til
is
ed

 to
 d
el
iv
er
 

ef
fic
ie
nc
ie
s 
an
d 
im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
 fo
r 
th
e 
cu
st
om

er
. 

• 
M
an

ag
in
g 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 to

 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
rig
ht
 th

in
gs
 a
re
 

de
liv
er
ed

, i
n 
th
e 
rig
ht
 w
ay
, f
or
 th
e 
rig
ht
 p
eo

pl
e.
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
R
is
k 
M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ol
ic
y 
re
qu
ire

s 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 a
ll 
ris
ks
. T

he
 P
ol
ic
y 
re
la
te
s 
to
 a
ll 
ris
ks
 b
ot
h 
at
 s
tr
at
eg
ic
 a
nd

 s
er
vi
ce
 

le
ve
l. 
T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha

s 
es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
a 
R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em

en
t W

or
ki
ng
 G
ro
up

 
to
 m
on

ito
r 
pr
og
re
ss
 o
n 
th
e 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
s 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
to
 m
an

ag
e 
al
l 

ex
is
tin
g 
an

d 
em

er
gi
ng
 h
ig
h 
le
ve
l r
is
ks
.  

      

     
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
   
  

 
 

Page 54



 
37

 

12
. 
E
q
u
al
it
ie
s 

R
ed

di
tc
h 
ha

s 
on
e 
of
 th
e 
m
os
t d

iv
er
se
 p
op

ul
at
io
ns
 a
cr
os
s 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
.  
T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 
re
co
gn
is
es
 th
e 
im
po

rt
an

ce
 o
f e

m
br
ac
in
g 

cu
ltu
ra
l d
iff
er
en

ce
s 
to
 s
ha

pe
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il.
   
 

 R
ed

di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
pr
ov
id
es
 a
 w
id
e 
ra
ng
e 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
to
 a
 

va
rie
ty
 o
f p

eo
pl
e 
an
d 
is
 o
ne
 o
f t
he
 la
rg
es
t e
m
pl
oy
er
s 
w
ith
in
 th

e 
B
or
ou

gh
.  
A
s 
su
ch
 it
s 
ac
tio
ns
 a
nd
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 a
ffe

ct
 th
e 
liv
es
 o
f e

ve
ry
on

e 
in
 R
ed

di
tc
h 
to
 s
om

e 
de
gr
ee

.  
 

 Y
ou

ng
 p
eo
pl
e 
ag
ed
 0
 –
 1
9 
ye
ar
s 
co
ns
tit
ut
e 
25
.1
%
 o
f t
he

 p
op
ul
at
io
n 

an
d 
pe

op
le
 a
ge
d 
60
 o
r 
ov
er
 c
on

st
itu
te
 1
9.
2%

 o
f t
he
 p
op
ul
at
io
n.
 T
hi
s 

co
nt
ra
st
s 
w
ith
 o
th
er
 a
re
as
 in
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 w
he

re
 th

e 
pr
op
or
tio
n 
of
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le
 is
 2
3.
5%

 o
f t
he

 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
an
d 
th
e 
pr
op

or
tio
n 
of
 p
eo
pl
e 

ag
ed

 6
0 
or
 o
ve
r 
is
 2
4.
6%

 o
f t
he

 p
op
ul
at
io
n.
   

 51
%
 o
f R

ed
di
tc
h’
s 
po

pu
la
tio
n 
is
 fe
m
al
e;
 h
ow

ev
er
 it
 is
 p
ro
je
ct
ed

 th
at
 th
e 

m
al
e 
po
pu

la
tio
n 
w
ill
 h
av
e 
ex
pe

rie
nc
ed

 a
 g
re
at
er
 in
cr
ea

se
 b
y 
20

11
. 

 In
 th
e 
20
01
 c
en

su
s 
0.
18
%
 o
f p

eo
pl
e 
ag
ed

 1
6 
or
 o
ve
r 
de

fin
ed
 

th
em

se
lv
es
 a
s 
liv
in
g 
w
ith
 a
 p
ar
tn
er
 o
f t
he
 s
am

e 
se
x.
  T

he
 c
en

su
s 
do
es
 

no
t, 
ho

w
ev
er
, i
de

nt
ify
 th

e 
se
xu
al
 o
rie
nt
at
io
n 
of
 in
di
vi
du

al
s 
no
t l
iv
in
g 
in
 

sa
m
e 
se
x 
co
up

le
s.
 

 T
he
re
 is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 n
o 
st
an

da
rd
 m
ea

su
re
 o
f e

st
im
at
e 
of
 th
e 
nu
m
be

r 
of
 

di
sa
bl
ed
 p
eo
pl
e;
 h
ow

ev
er
, a

pp
ro
xi
m
at
el
y 
16
%
 o
f t
he

 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
ha
d 
a 

lo
ng
 te

rm
 li
m
iti
ng
 il
ln
es
s 
in
 2
00
1 
an

d 
fo
r 
th
os
e 
in
 th

e 
ov
er
-6
5 
ag
e 
gr
ou
p 

th
e 
pr
op

or
tio
n 
w
as
 4
8%

.  
 T
he
 B
la
ck
 a
nd
 E
th
ni
c 
M
in
or
ity
 p
op

ul
at
io
n 
co
ns
tit
ut
es
 6
.9
%
 o
f t
he
 to
ta
l 

po
pu
la
tio
n1
, t
he
 la
rg
es
t e
th
ni
c 
gr
ou
p 
be
in
g 
th
e 
P
ak
is
ta
ni
 g
ro
up
 w
hi
ch
 

co
ns
tit
ut
es
 2
.3
%
 (
1,
80
0)
 o
f t
he

 p
op
ul
at
io
n.
  O

th
er
 g
ro
up

s 
in
cl
ud

e 
B
la
ck
  

  B
rit
is
h,
 A
fr
ic
an
 a
nd
 C
ar
ib
be

an
, I
nd
ia
n,
 B
an
gl
ad

es
hi
, C

hi
ne

se
 a
nd

 
M
ix
ed

.  
T
he
re
 h
as
 a
ls
o 
be

en
 a
n 
in
flu
x 
of
 in
di
vi
du

al
s 
fr
om

 th
e 
co
un
tr
ie
s 

w
hi
ch
 jo
in
ed

 th
e 
E
ur
op
ea

n 
U
ni
on

 in
 2
00
4,
 w
ith
 th
e 
la
rg
es
t p

ro
po

rt
io
n 
of
 

th
es
e 
be

in
g 
P
ol
is
h.
   

 R
ed

di
tc
h 
al
so
 c
on

si
st
s 
of
 m
ul
ti-
fa
ith
 c
om

m
un

iti
es
.  
C
hr
is
tia
ni
ty
 r
em

ai
ns
 

th
e 
pr
ed

om
in
an

t f
ai
th
 in
 th
e 
B
or
ou

gh
 a
nd

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
al
so
 h
as
 th
e 
la
rg
es
t 

pe
rc
en

ta
ge
 o
f i
nd

iv
id
ua

ls
 o
f M

us
lim

 fa
ith
 in
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire

 a
t 2
.4
%
 o
f 

th
e 
po

pu
la
tio
n.
  T

he
 B
ud

dh
is
t, 
H
in
du
, J
ew

is
h 
an

d 
S
ik
h 
re
lig
io
ns
 a
re
 

al
so
 r
ep

re
se
nt
ed

 a
nd
 1
2.
6%

 o
f t
he

 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
st
at
e 
th
ey
 h
av
e 
no
 

re
lig
io
n.

2  
 

     
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

1
 E
st
im
at
ed
 r
es
id
en
t p

op
ul
at
io
n 
by
 e
th
ni
c 
gr
ou
p 
an
d 
se
x,
 m

id
-2
00
6,
 O
N
S
 (
20

08
) 

2
 C
en
su
s 
2
0
0
1
. 

Page 55



 
38

 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 tr
ea

t a
ll 
pe

op
le
 e
qu
al
ly
 w
he

th
er
 th

ey
 a
re
: 

• 
S
ee

ki
ng
 o
r 
us
in
g 
th
e 
C
ou

nc
il’
s 
se
rv
ic
es
 o
r 
ap
pl
yi
ng
 fo

r 
fu
nd
s;
 o
r 

• 
C
on

tr
ac
tin
g 
to
 s
up
pl
y 
or
 p
ur
ch
as
e 
go
od

s 
or
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
to
 o
r 
fr
om

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

A
ll 
m
em

be
rs
 o
f t
he
 c
om

m
un

ity
 a
nd
 v
is
ito
rs
 to

 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 a
re
 e
nt
itl
ed

 
to
 e
xp
ec
t f
ai
r 
an
d 
eq
ua
l t
re
at
m
en
t i
n 
th
ei
r 
de
al
in
gs
 w
ith
 th

e 
C
ou
nc
il.
  I
t 

is
 im

po
rt
an

t t
ha
t w

e 
ca
n 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
 th
at
 w
e 
up

ho
ld
 th
e 
pr
in
ci
pl
es
 o
f 

eq
ua

lit
y 
an

d 
di
ve
rs
ity
.  
 

 R
ed

di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha

s 
un

de
rt
ak
en
 a
 s
el
f-
as
se
ss
m
en

t a
ga
in
st
   
   
   
 

th
e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er
nm

en
t E

qu
al
ity
 S
ta
nd

ar
d 
an
d 
as
se
ss
ed
 it
se
lf 
at
 L
ev
el
 2
 

of
 th
e 
E
qu
al
ity
 S
ta
nd

ar
d 
fo
r 
Lo
ca
l G

ov
er
nm

en
t; 
ho

w
ev
er
, c
ha

ng
es
 to
 

th
e 
S
ta
nd
ar
d 
ar
e 
be

in
g 
in
tr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd
 th
es
e 
ch
an

ge
s 
w
ill
 b
e 

em
be
dd
ed
 w
ith
in
 th

e 
w
or
k 
of
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il.
   

 R
ed

di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 p
ro
m
ot
e 
pr
oc
ur
em

en
t p
ra
ct
ic
es
 w
hi
ch
 

su
pp
or
t i
ts
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
on
 e
qu
al
iti
es
 a
nd

 d
iv
er
si
ty
.  
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 in
cl
ud

e 
th
e 

pr
ov
is
io
n 
of
 a
dv
ic
e 
on

 e
qu
al
ity
 is
su
es
 to

 s
up
pl
ie
rs
 a
nd

 e
ns
ur
in
g 
th
at
 

co
nt
ra
ct
s 
pr
om

ot
e 
eq
ua
lit
y 
an

d 
di
ve
rs
ity
. 

 T
he
 E
qu
al
iti
es
 a
nd
 D
iv
er
si
ty
 A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 
de

ve
lo
pe

d 
by
 th

e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 

be
 d
el
iv
er
ed

 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n.
  

 R
ed

di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 p
ro
vi
de

 a
pp

ro
pr
ia
te
, s
en

si
tiv
e 
an

d 
ac
ce
ss
ib
le
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
  I
t w

ill
 n
ot
 d
is
cr
im
in
at
e 
on
 th
e 
gr
ou

nd
s 
of
 a
ge
, 

ra
ce
, d

is
ab
ili
ty
, e

th
ni
c 
or
ig
in
, g
en

de
r,
 s
ex
ua

lit
y 
or
 o
n 
an

y 
ot
he
r 

un
ju
st
ifi
ab
le
 g
ro
un
ds
.  

    

Page 56



 
39

 

  13
. 
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 
F
ra
m
ew

o
rk
 

  P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 m

an
ag
em

en
t i
s 
a 
us
ef
ul
 to

ol
 to
 a
ss
es
s 
ho
w
 th

e 
or
ga

ni
sa
tio
n 
is
 

im
pr
ov
in
g 
an
d 
to
 d
et
er
m
in
e 
w
ha
t s
te
ps
 a
re
 s
til
l r
eq
ui
re
d 
to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 it
s 

ob
je
ct
iv
es
. 

 E
ffe

ct
iv
e 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 m
an
ag

em
en
t r
eq
ui
re
s:
 

 
• 

S
ys
te
m
at
ic
al
ly
 d
ec
id
in
g 
an
d 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
in
g 
w
ha
t n

ee
ds
 to
 b
e 
do
ne
 

(a
im
s,
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
, p
rio
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
ta
rg
et
s)
; 

• 
A
 p
la
n 
fo
r 
en
su
rin
g 
th
at
 it
 h
ap
pe
ns
 (
im
pr
ov
em

en
t, 
ac
tio
n 
or
 s
er
vi
ce
 

pl
an
s)
; 

• 
S
om

e 
m
ea
ns
 o
f a
ss
es
si
ng
 if
 th
is
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
ac
hi
ev
ed
 (
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

m
ea
su
re
s)
; a
nd
 

• 
In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
re
ac
hi
ng
 th

e 
rig

ht
 p
eo
pl
e 
at
 th

e 
rig
ht
 ti
m
e 
(p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

re
po
rt
in
g)
 s
o 
th
at
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 a
re
 m

ad
e 
an
d 
ac
tio
ns
 ta
ke
n.
 

 
T
hi
s 
m
ea
ns
 th

at
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh

 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
: 

 
• 

cl
ea
rly
 d
ef
in
e 
its
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
; 

• 
id
en
tif
y 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 w
ith
 m

ile
st
on
es
 a
nd
 ta
rg
et
 d
at
es
; 

• 
id
en
tif
y 
m
ea
su
re
s 
an
d 
se
t t
ar
ge
ts
 fo
r 
ac
hi
ev
em

en
t; 

• 
id
en
tif
y 
ris
ks
 a
nd
 m

an
ag
e 
th
em

; 
• 

al
lo
ca
te
 o
w
ne
rs
hi
p 
an
d 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s 
to
 n
am

ed
 o
ffi
ce
rs
; a
nd
 

• 
m
on
ito
r 
an
d 
re
po
rt
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
at
 ti
m
el
y 
in
te
rv
al
s.
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 M
an
ag

em
en
t F

ra
m
ew

or
k 
se
ts
 o
ut
 th

e 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 

an
d 
pr
oc
es
se
s 
to
 b
e 
fo
llo
w
ed
 a
nd
 c
an
 b
e 
ac
ce
ss
ed
 o
n 
ou
r 
w
eb
si
te
 a
t 

w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hb
c.
go

v.
uk
. 

   

O
u
r 
P
ro
m
is
e 
to
 Y
o
u
 

 W
e 
ai
m
 t
o
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
h
ig
h
 q
u
al
it
y 
se
rv
ic
es
 f
o
r 
al
l o
u
r 
cu
st
o
m
er
s.
  W

e 
p
ro
vi
d
e 
a 
w
id
e 
ra
n
g
e 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 a
im
 t
o
 d
el
iv
er
 a
n
d
 d
ev
el
o
p
 

se
rv
ic
es
 t
o
 m
ee
t 
o
u
r 
cu
st
o
m
er
s’
 n
ee
d
s.
 

 W
e 
ha
ve
 a
 C
us
to
m
er
 C
ha
rt
er
 th
at
 s
et
s 
ou
t t
he
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
 o
f c
us
to
m
er
 s
er
vi
ce
 

yo
u 
ca
n 
ex
pe
ct
 fr
om

 u
s.
  Y

ou
 c
an
 s
ee
 th
is
 o
n 
ou
r 
w
eb
si
te
 a
t 

w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hb
c.
go

v.
uk
. 

      T
o 
fin
d 
ou
t m

or
e 
ab
ou
t w

ha
t t
he
 B
or
ou
gh

 C
ou
nc
il 
do
es
, v
is
it 
ou
r 
w
eb
si
te
 a
t 

w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hb
c.
go

v.
uk
 o
r 
co
nt
ac
t: 

  
T
he
 P
ol
ic
y 
T
ea
m
 

 
T
ow

n 
H
al
l, 
W
al
te
r 
S
tr
an
z 
S
qu

ar
e,
 

 
R
E
D
D
IT
C
H
, W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 B
98
 8
A
H
 

 
T
el
ep
ho
ne
 0
15
27
 6
42
52
 

 
E
m
ai
l: 
 p
ol
ic
y.
te
am

@
re
dd
itc
hb
c.
go

v.
uk
 

     

 

Page 57



Page 58



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

Review of Redditch Borough Council’s Sheltered Housing Stock further to 
Community Consultation  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Brandon Clayton 
Relevant Head of Service Liz Tompkin 
Key Decision  

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

This report is brought to you further to the decision of the Executive 
Committee on 26th August 2009 to approve the Council’s Older Persons 
Housing and Support Strategy and its Action Plan subject to community 
consultation.  That consultation has now been carried out (see 
Consultation Statistics, Appendix 1) and the Committee is asked to 
approve the proposed revised categories following the Review of Redditch 
Borough Council’s Sheltered Housing as attached (see Proposed Revised 
Categories, Appendix 2).  The draft action plan has been updated based 
on progress made and is attached for approval (see Draft Action Plan, 
Appendix 3). 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that 
 
1)  the preferred options, as determined by Members, from those 

detailed in Appendix 2, Section 6.1 and 6.2 be approved; 
 
2) up to £166,150.00 capital funding be approved for the essential 

improvement works recommended in Appendix 4; 
 
3) up to £31,051.00 revenue funding be approved to fund the post of 

Older Persons’ Housing Liaison Officer as detailed in Appendix 16 
and paragraph 5.5 of this report; and 

 
RESOLVE that 
 
4) based on the findings of the Review of Redditch Borough Council’s 

Sheltered Housing, the categorisation of properties on page 11 in 
Appendix 2 be adopted; 

 
5) officers undertake a feasibility study to consider the findings and 

options in Appendix 2, Section 6.3 and bring a further report back to 
Councillors within 12 months of this report; 

Agenda Item 8Page 59



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

 
6) if approved, the above changes only be applied to new tenants from 

1st April 2011 with all current residents keeping their tenancy, even if 
they do not meet the new criteria;  

 
7) the revised Action Plan in Appendix 3 be adopted, subject to 

Councillors’ comments; 
 
8) an additional member of staff be appointed for twelve months to 

facilitate the change management process (see Appendix 16); and 
 

subject to the Council’s approval of the budgetary implications, as 
specified separately above, and consequent adjustment of the 
Capital Programme 

 
9) approval be given to incur up to the expenditure detailed in 2) above 

for the purposes detailed in the report, in accordance with Standing 
Order 41. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Government is strongly driving change in the housing and support of 

older people, based on the national profile of an ageing population.  Its 
intention is to raise standards based on ‘quality, choice and independence’ 
and to ensure support and services are delivered, as far as possible, at 
the first level of intervention, in the community and in peoples’ homes. 

 
3.2 A Strategy was written which shows that significant parts of the Redditch 

housing stock for older people were set up 25 or more years ago, in 
accordance with the standards of the day.  These do not necessarily meet 
contemporary standards or peoples’ expectations, especially for mobility.  
The Council undertook a comprehensive assessment of the current stock 
to look at their fitness for the needs of older people, both now and in the 
future and produced an Action Plan. 

 
3.3 The Executive Committee approved the Older Persons Housing and 

Support Strategy at their meeting on 26th August 2009 and approved a 
recommendation for the implementation of the Action Plan, subject to 
community consultation.   

 
3.4 An active period of consultation followed from September to November 

2009, during which time various awareness events were held including 
workshops for scheme residents.  A newsletter offering feedback followed.  

Page 60



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

The “My Home, My Future, My Choice Residents Group was formed in 
January, 2010 and continues to meet monthly.  A feedback conference 
was held at the end of March 2010.  Questionnaires were taken by the 
Home Support Officers during May 2010 to vulnerable residents to assess 
their awareness and understanding and any requests for further contact or 
information have now been followed up.   All scheme tenants and all 
Councillors were sent invitations to the conferences and press releases 
were also published.  A total of 9 Councillors attended the scheme visit 
events (see Appendix 1).  

 
4. KEY ISSUES 

 
4.1 It is important that we are able to meet the needs of many different types 

of customers.  This opportunity will allow us to explore other options for 
housing those with sensory impairments, younger people with physical 
disabilities and those with learning difficulties.  National statistics show 
that disabilities are affecting a greater number of people and there is a 
need to prepare for this in the future. 

 
4.2 The Borough has a large and generally excellent portfolio of stock, but few 

schemes met all the standards we defined.  Among the best performing 
were bungalows, except where there were problems of mobility due to 
access, poor internal arrangement or inadequate size.  The schemes that 
were least fit for purpose included schemes with a high amount of bedsits, 
first floor flats, those with poor access and schemes in undesirable or 
difficult locations.  Inadequate parking was also a concern. 

 
4.3 Lowering the age limit in some schemes met the objective of reducing the 

length of time a property was empty and saved loss of revenue.  It has 
worked very well in some schemes but it has lead to instances of anti-
social behaviour in other schemes due to differing lifestyles.  The recent 
implementation of introductory tenancies will allow the Council to monitor 
new tenants (where they were not previously a secure tenant) and in the 
event of a breach of tenancy being highlighted can intervene and act 
much more quickly.  An anti-social behaviour policy exists for all tenancy 
types so all instances will be addressed, irrespective of tenure. 

 
4.4 In April 2009 the Supporting People contract changed from an 

accommodation based contract to a Floating Support contract for the 
Home Support Service.  Tenants can now choose if they want to receive 
the support and in accordance with the contract, support can only be 
offered where there is an assessed need.  This has lead to very 

Page 61



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

independent people living alongside those who are dependant on the 
Home Support Service. 

 
4.5 The “My Home, My Future, My Choice” Consultation to produce the 

Strategy commenced in 2007, the Strategy was not brought to the 
Executive Committee for approval until 26th August, 2009.  At that time it 
was approved, however only subject to further community consultation of 
the implementation of the Action Plan.  The length of time the process has 
taken has lead to increasing anxiety among current residents.  It is 
essential that any changes made as a result of this report are carried out 
as quickly and as sensitively as possible. 

 
4.6 The change management process was adopted when the Strategy was 

approved and to be applied effectively will require sufficient resource.  It is 
essential that the practicalities of change or any fears of change, however 
small, are met with a full, personal and dedicated support programme by 
an experienced compliment of staff. 

 
4.7 Recent consultation has identified that residents would feel more secure in 

older persons housing if the allocation process were more specialised.  
Further investigation would be required to examine the full implications of 
this change.  The “My Home, My Future, My Choice Residents Group” 
who meets monthly with officers has already begun discussing Local 
Lettings Plans criteria.  Further consultation surrounding both Local 
Lettings Plans and the allocation process with affected schemes is 
essential. 

 
4.8 There have been concerns, during the consultation period, that reducing 

the age of entry to older persons accommodation below 60 will attract the 
‘Right to Buy’ and that this may lead to problems in the future.  The entry 
age has already been reduced in some schemes and no applications have 
been made to be able to measure its effect.  It is felt to be a minimal risk 
as those choosing to rent older persons accommodation are unlikely to opt 
for an investment in this market.  This has however been taken into full 
consideration. 

 
4.9 Fire safety has been highlighted as a serious issue following the recent 

property inspections in some schemes.  It is essential that appropriate 
precautions are taken urgently. 

 
4.10 Some of the Schemes currently qualify for the concessionary T.V. licence 

and others are on preserved rights. To continue to be eligible for the 

Page 62



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

concessionary licence, all tenants within the schemes must fulfil all the 
four criteria (refer to Appendix 6).  

 
4.11 The term “sheltered” accommodation has been under much debate both 

nationally and locally during recent consultation.  The majority of those 
who expressed a preference agreed it provided a sense of security whilst 
others found the term derogatory.  The Council felt it was important to 
recognise that as views were mixed it should agree new wording and 
specific criteria which have been detailed in Appendix 2 on page 11.   

 
4.12 The Council has worked closely with staff and Councillors to identify a 

variety of ways to engage residents.  There was an active consultation 
period which started with staff and public conferences and then various 
events during September and October 2009.  A newsletter was sent out in 
December 2009 to all scheme tenants, all Councillors, relevant staff, over 
50’s on the waiting list and those who had expressed an interest during 
the active consultation period. The project group continued to 
communicate with tenants from January to March 2010 when a feedback 
conference was held.  Full details of this can be found in Appendix 1. 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 In order to improve standards to an acceptable level and taking into 

account the feelings of residents during consultation the council have 
proposed a schedule of works that should be carried out. 

 
5.2 The Schedule of proposed works and costings can be found at Appendix 

4.  Listed in the schedule are details of works required to bring the 
schemes up to the measured standards (see Appendix 7) further to 
consultation with scheme residents.  Essential works are considered to be 
those that will enhance safety and security.  Desirable works are those 
that would improve quality of life and fixtures and fittings works are those 
which would improve the look of the scheme. 

 
The total cost of essential works are:   £ 166,150 
(Priority is the lift installation at Harry Taylor House £45,000) 
 
Works classed as desirable total:     £ 136,700 
 
Fixtures and Fittings total:  £   29,000 
 
Total costs of works to improve standards   £ 331,850 
(See Appendix 4) 

Page 63



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

 
5.3 The essential works required at the 3 communal schemes that we are 

proposing should be in Category A, are broken down as follows: (figures 
are already included in the above total). 

 
Harry Taylor House £55,500 
Arthur Jobson House £10,100 
Ibstock House £9,000 

Total £74.600 
 

See Appendix 4 for more details. 
 

Additional Financial Implications 
 

5.4 The issues raised regarding car parking will be addressed as part of the 
existing Car Parking Project which Councillors and Officers are already 
undertaking across the borough. 

 
5.5 In addition to the schedule of works, the council feel that it is essential to 

engage the services of an Older Persons’ Housing Liaison Officer.  This is 
imperative to ensure a sensitive approach and smooth transition period.  A 
draft Job Description can be found in Appendix 5.  The total cost of this 
additional member of staff would be £31,051.00.   

 
5.6 Essential upgrading to the Lifeline system in the existing Older Persons 

Housing will be required in the next few years, with some schemes 
requiring upgrade by 2012 due to the BT21CN Digital Switchover.  The 
total estimated cost of those works will be approximately £305,000.00.  
The three communal schemes proposed for Category A (Arthur Jobson 
House, Harry Taylor House and Ibstock House) have already been 
upgraded.  If lower levels of support are still required within any other 
scheme, they would be best served by installing independent dispersed 
Lifeline units to ensure that a call alarm service is delivered and removed 
when required.  A dispersed unit would cost £121.00 plus installation 
(based at current Tunstall Telecom prices).  The latest quotation and 
breakdown of costs by scheme can be found in Appendix 19. 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (DDA) places duties on service 

providers and requires ‘reasonable adjustments’ to be made when 
providing access to goods, facilities, services and premises. 

 

Page 64



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

6.2 Since 1st October 2004, Service providers may have to make ‘reasonable 
adjustments’ in relation to the physical features of their premises to 
overcome physical barriers to access (refer to Appendix 8). 

 
6.3 Section 167 (1) of the Housing Act 1996 requires each Local Authority to 

have a scheme for determining priorities in allocating housing 
accommodation.  The existing Housing Allocations Policy already meets 
the Local Authorities legal requirements.  

 
6.4 In order for a dwelling to be exempt from the Right to Buy Scheme the 

following criteria must be satisfied under paragraph 11 of Schedule 5 of 
the Housing Act 1985:    
B 
 
a) It is one of a group particularly suitable for occupation by elderly 

persons (having regard to its location, size, design, heating system 
and other features). 

 
b) The dwelling houses in the group are usually let to persons aged 60 

or above.  They need not be let exclusively to the elderly if the other 
occupants are persons with a physical disability. 

 
c) The group is warden controlled.  If the warden is not resident, there 

must be a system for calling him/her and the use of a nearby 
common room. 

 
6.5 If these conditions are not satisfied, the dwelling will not be exempt and 

(subject to the other requirements of the HA 1985 being fulfilled) the tenant 
will be entitled to exercise the right to buy (see Appendix 9). 

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 The current Housing Strategy provides the strategic direction generally for 

older person’s housing.  This Older Persons Housing Strategy was 
approved by Full Council on 18th September 2009. 

 
7.2 The proposed changes would not require any amendment to the 

Allocations Policy as the Director and Portfolio holder have the delegated 
authority to introduce Local Lettings Plans where required.   

 

Page 65



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 The Review of Redditch Borough Council’s Sheltered Housing has 

highlighted that older people see Safety and Security as being key 
priorities and this has been addressed in the Strategy and Action Plan.  A 
commitment for all new residents in Category A properties to receive 
support from the Home Support Service will increase the time that staff 
are on site and promote the feeling of additional security.  A move towards 
allocations to only over 65 year olds in particular schemes will also seek to 
reduce the difficulties experienced as a result of lifestyle differences 
between older and younger residents and contribute towards them feeling 
safer.  

 
8.2 The review has highlighted a number of priorities for the improvement of 

Older Persons Housing which will make the accommodation more suitable 
for residents and a more pleasant place to live.  The Council has also 
identified where sensor lighting can be installed and heating systems 
upgraded which will reduce the running costs of schemes and reduce 
harmful CO2 emissions. 

 
8.3 The proposed new categorisation for Older Persons Housing (see 

Appendix 2 page 11) aims to make it easier for younger people with 
disabilities to access accommodation suitable to meet their needs.  The 
review has highlighted that there is inequality between the speed at which 
those with a disability that are under the age of 50 are able to access 
accommodation as opposed to those over the age of 50.  Currently it 
takes disabled individuals under 50 years of age 13% longer to access 
adapted accommodation than disabled individuals over 50 years of age. 
Research demonstrates that meeting the housing needs of disabled 
people is key to ensuring that they have the best possible chance of 
remaining independent, accessing employment and leading fulfilling lives. 
Given that 38% of those in current Older Persons Housing have little or no 
support needs it is clear that more priority should be given to younger 
disabled people with a support need who need to access appropriate 
accommodation.  

 
8.4 In the past twelve months the average allocation time for Older Persons 

bed-sit accommodation was 23.33 days compared to 12.5 in general let 
bed-sit accommodation.  The difference is due to the low numbers of 
elderly people interested in bed-sit accommodation and properties often 
being offered to several people before they are accepted.  There are 
significantly larger numbers of people in housing need under 60 years of 
age who want bed-sit accommodation and it is clear that widening the age 

Page 66



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

range in certain schemes would increase the demand for the 
accommodation and assist the authority to improve its performance in 
respect of the following indicators: 

 
• BV212 - Average Number of Days taken to Re-let Council Housing; 

and 
• HH2 – Void Loss Expressed as a percentage of Gross Rent  

 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 Failure to approve the recommendations will make it difficult for the 

Council to achieve national, regional, county and local strategic aims.   
 
9.2 If we do not consider reducing the entry age for the allocation of Older 

Persons Housing in the long term the Council will impede its performance 
in relation to average re-let times and void loss and may not achieve the 
required standards during housing inspections.    

 
9.3 The Council could be in breach of the Disability Discrimination Act 1995 in 

that it has not made reasonable adjustments to remove access barriers to 
accommodation for disabled people.   

 
9.4 The Council may not be able to meet the demand in housing and support 

from the growing population. 
 
9.5 Failure to provide sufficient staffing resource to facilitate the proposed 

changes could lead to delays and unnecessary distress to tenants.  This 
could also put additional pressure on other front line teams such as the 
Housing Options Service which is already seeing an increase of 
customers of up to 30%. 

 
9.6 There have been significant changes to Health and Safety Legislation and 

Fire Regulations.  It is predicted that over the next 16 years regulations 
will become increasingly stringent and that the Council may struggle to 
make some buildings legally compliant.  Failure to consider the options at 
an early stage may leave the Council at risk of litigation and increased 
financial burden in some cases.  

 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The Council is committed to providing appropriate accommodation and 

support for older people that meets required standards.  The Council is 

Page 67



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

equally committed to working with residents during the change 
management process to minimise any impact on lifestyle the changes 
incur. 

 
10.2 Tenants affected by the outcomes of this report may decide they no longer 

wish to reside in their current accommodation.  The Council will need to 
prioritise their request for a move and increase front line services 
accordingly.  A dedicated officer will be appointed to any tenant wishing to 
move to assist with practicalities.  

 
10.3 Tenants wishing to remain in their current accommodation may have 

concerns about the effect any changes will have on their lifestyle.  The 
Council will offer full support in an advisory capacity.  This will form part of 
the change management programme. 

 
10.4 Where the option of disposal is approved an enhanced change 

management procedure will apply.  Tenants will be fully consulted 
regarding their options and a dedicated officer will be appointed to each 
tenant. 

 
10.5 Reasonable costs of moving may be reimbursed, all applications will be 

considered.  
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The Council must act in accordance with the Disability Discrimination Act 

1995, with particular reference to the amendment on 1 October 2004 (see 
legal implications) 

 
11.2 An impact assessment has been carried out which has been attached as 

Appendix 10. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
12.1 All orders for work issued to contractors will be tendered for on the open 

market within Standing order 46 Procurement guidelines.  This will 
safeguard the Council’s budgets and quality of work to the residents. 

 
12.2 Further work is required to identify way forward in relation to disposal 

options where deemed appropriate and it is proposed that a further report 
will follow within twelve months.   

 

Page 68



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

12.3 The Action Plan which is included as Appendix 3 recommends further 
consultation regarding the usage of communal areas.  It is anticipated that 
in some schemes additional revenue could be generated if communal 
areas were converted into dwellings for rental. 

 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 

Property inspections carried out have identified where sensor lighting and 
upgraded heating systems are required.  The installations of energy 
saving lighting and heating systems to the schemes will reduce running 
costs and reduce harmful CO2 emissions whilst keeping our residents 
safe and warm.   

 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 The report seeks approval of the appointment of an Older Persons’ 

Housing Liaison Officer for 12 months to manage the change 
management process.   

 
14.2 There may be staff implications in respect of the Home Support Service as 

the Action Plan is implemented.  The details of that will be brought back to 
Councillors for agreement in a further report. 

 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The proposed changes will assist the Council to make better use of 

housing stock and reduce the time taken to re-let properties which will 
have an impact on its performance and increase the revenue to the 
Authority. 

 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
 
 The Council, as is duty bound, has considered crime and disorder 

implications during consultation.  Safety and security have featured in the 
measured standards and the possibility of increased anti-social behaviour 
has been discussed during consultation with tenants.  Introductory 
tenancies and a review of the allocation procedure is proposed. 

 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
17.1 The Comprehensive Area Assessment highlighted inequalities in respect 

of the life expectancy of females, alcohol related hospital admissions and 

Page 69



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

obese adults.  The review of Older Persons’ Housing and Support 
highlighted that preventing adverse health conditions that limit their 
independence is a key priority for older people in Redditch.  Key actions in 
the Strategy which may contribute to addressing these inequalities are: 

 
i) Extension of the Home Support Service into the Private Sector so that the 

service can be accessed by all regardless of tenure; 
 
ii) Review the Home Support Service so that the support delivered has a 

greater emphasis on preventing adverse health conditions and maximising 
independence; 

 
iii) Review of the communal areas to examine the levels of communal 

involvement and identify where enhancements could be made to increase 
the level of activity and meet the priorities highlighted by older people.  

 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
18.1 A planned consultation programme with full co-operation and support from 

residents has been essential to informing and influencing proposals.  
 
18.2 Forming a residents group has proved to be successful in allowing mutual 

understanding to be formed between Officers and residents. 
 
18.3 It was clear from consultation that some customers perceived the length of 

time that it took the Council to review Older Persons Services and agree 
the proposals to be too lengthy.  In response Officers have agreed to 
produce some guidance which will draw together the methods found to 
work best regarding consultation, research and planning which can be 
used to assist the delivery of future projects 

 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
 Tenants, residents, councillors and staff have been consulted about the 

Older Persons Housing and Support Strategy and about the 
implementation of the Action Plan.  Relevant partners and professional 
bodies were also invited to attend the conferences held.  Officers have 
also consulted the Borough Tenants Panel, Neighbourhood groups and 
the Community Forum (see Appendix 1). 

 

Page 70



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

No 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

No 

Executive Director – Planning & 
Regeneration, Regulatory and Housing 
Services  
 

Yes 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

No 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

Housing Advisory Panel 
 

Yes 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All Wards. 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Consultation Statistics 
Appendix 2 Proposed Revised Categories 
Appendix 3 Updated Action Plan  
Appendix 4 Schedule of Proposed Works and Costings  
Appendix 5 Draft Job Description for Older Persons’ Housing Liaison Officer  
Appendix 6 Concessionary TV licences  
Appendix 7 Measured standards  
Appendix 8 Understanding the DDA 1995 

Page 71



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSReportFinal0.DOC/amended lms/280610/amended 
120710/lms/amended/lms/130710/amended/200710/lms/final 

Appendix 9 Right to buy legislation 
Appendix 10 Impact assessment 
Appendix 11 Waiting List Information  
Appendix 12 Chiltern House Floor Plan   
Appendix 13 Scheme Reports 
Appendix 14 Home Buy Scheme  
Appendix 15 Terms of Reference for My Home My Future My Choice Residents 

Group. 
Appendix 16 Change Management Process 
Appendix 17 Roxboro House Fire Risk Assessment 
Appendix 18  Statistical Information 
Appendix 19 Lifeline Upgrade Charges 
 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
i) Feedback forms from 2009 / 2010 Consultation; 
ii) Minutes from 2009 / 2010 Consultation; 
iii) 2007 - My Home My Future My Choice Consultation Papers; 
iv) Older Person’s Housing and Support Strategy Committee Report from 26 

August 2010.  
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Liz Tompkin 
E Mail: liz.tompkin@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel:  (01527) 64252 ext: 3304 

Page 72



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSExecutiveSummaryFinal0.doc/lms/200710/final 

REVIEW OF REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL’S SHELTERED HOUSING 
STOCK FURTHER TO COMMUNITY CONSULTATION 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 

Introduction 
 
The Older Persons’ Housing and Support Strategy and its Action Plan were approved by Full 
Council on 18th September, 2009 subject to Community Consultation.  That consultation has 
now been carried out and this is the first report being brought back to Councillors for further 
approval.   
 
This report addresses objectives 2 and 3 of the Action Plan’s first priority which are:  

• Housing designated for Older People meets the defined level of standards and 
meets their needs.    

 
• Review Housing designated for Older People that do not meet a defined level of 

standards  
 
The defined level of Standards can be found at Appendix 7 
 
Consultation 
 
Consultation on this specific objective and other areas of the Action Plan was commenced in 
September, 2009 with staff and public conferences.  Workshops were held at schemes during 
October, 2009 where the standards and Action Plan objectives were discussed.  Various 
other events were held to ensure all members of the Community were included.  A Residents 
Group was formed to allow members of the public to work with officers.  Home Support 
Officers visited service users to clarify and answer queries or concerns. Full details can be 
found at appendix 1. 
 
Desired Outcomes 
 
The Older Persons’ Housing and Support Strategy Action Plan outcomes in relation to these 
priorities are: 
 

• To ensure that existing Council Housing meets Older Peoples expressed needs 
including those of security, comfort and mobility 

• Fewer void properties in Older Persons’ Schemes 
• Increased numbers of accommodation for general letting 

 
Review of the Sheltered Stock  
 
All the Council’s Sheltered Housing Stock has been inspected and measured against the 
defined standards (app. 7).  Of the 1169 units of accommodation currently held, 608 units with 
communal facilities or bungalows with appropriate access were considered suitable for 
proposed Category A.   
 
There are a further 141 units which were considered to be reasonable and with potential to 
either meet Disability Discrimination Act 1995 regulations in the future with some investment 
or are reasonable and in high demand now, these would be suitable for proposed Category B.   
 
A further 215 units of either communal accommodation or bungalows with access problems 
were considered suitable for Over 50’s without mobility issues.  
 

Proposed Revised Categories 

Page 73



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\7\AI00004730\OPHSExecutiveSummaryFinal0.doc/lms/200710/final 

 

Category A - Older Persons Supported Housing  
                        Communal Accommodation - Aged 65 and over with a support need  
     Bungalows – aged 60 and over or other adults with severe mobility issues 
      (Priority given to those with an assessed support need). 
 

Category B – Older Persons Housing  
                        Communal Accommodation – Aged 60 and over with or without a support 
     need 
 

Category C – Over 50’s Housing  
                        Communal or bungalow accommodation for persons aged 50 and over with 
     or without a support need.  Not suitable for those with mobility issues. 
 

Full details can be found at page 11 of Appendix 2 and these are assuming 
recommendations for essential works are approved (see below and Appendix 4). 

 
 

Essential Works Required 
 
Officers have identified improvement works that would allow a scheme to remain in our 
proposed Older Persons Housing Categories.    Where it was felt that standards had not been 
fully reached but could be reached within a reasonable period of time, approximate costs 
have been included at Appendix 4.  If the costs are not approved the proposed category may 
have to be reconsidered.  After consultation with residents other costs have been included for 
works that have been classed as desirable or relate to fixtures and fittings. 
 

Properties not deemed suitable as Older Persons’ Housing 
 
There are 201 units of accommodation over 12 schemes that have been deemed unsuitable 
as Older Persons’ Housing.  Councillors are being asked to approve that some of these 
schemes are returned to general let.  Further information including the options to be 
considered and approved can be found at Section 6 of Appendix 2. 
 

Change Management Process 
 
The Change Management Process which can be found at Appendix 16 was approved along 
with the Older Persons’ Housing and Support Strategy last year.  In order to effectively 
manage the outcomes of decisions reached and to continue to implement and review the 
Action Plan officers are asking for approval for an additional temporary member of staff to 
facilitate this process (see Appendix 5).   
 

Conclusion 
 
In summary, Officers are proposing revised categories for Older Persons Council Housing in 
Redditch and recommending which schemes are appropriate for inclusion in those categories 
(see pages 21-24 of Appendix 2).  Research and consultation has informed our proposals and 
several property inspections have been carried out, Councillors and residents were invited to 
inspections.  Where properties have been deemed unsuitable for Older People, officers have 
provided recommendations for consideration where appropriate.  A full change management 
programme is planned and in order to carry this out sensitively approval is sought for a 
temporary member of staff.  The ‘My Home, My Future, My Choice Residents Group’ will 
continue to meet to ensure Residents, Councillors and Officers work together. 
 
The benefits of approving proposals will ensure the desired outcomes are achieved and the 
Council are compliant with the Disability Discrimination Act 1995.  It will improve the lifestyle 
and standard of accommodation for Older People living in Redditch and provide opportunities 
for the Council to provide housing to other client groups.  The allocation process and demand 
for Older Persons’ Housing will be reviewed annually in line with the Action Plan and the need 
for reviews on this scale will be minimised in the future. 

Page 74



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME OUTTURN 2009/10  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Michael Braley, Portfolio Holder for 

Corporate Management 
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas 
Non-Key Decision  

 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 To report on the actual expenditure and funding of the capital programme 

for 2009/10. 
 
1.2 The figures included in this report will be subject to examination by the 

Audit Commission as part of the final accounts audit. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that subject to any comments, 
the report be noted. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 

The approved Capital Programme for 2009/10 totalled £15.3 million.  The 
Programme includes a number of schemes that span more than one 
financial year and it is necessary during the year to profile the budget 
according to the actual progress made during the year. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The detail included at Appendix 1 shows actual expenditure of £13.5 

million, of which £1.7 million is work in progress.  The appendix also shows 
the variances between the budget and actual spend.  Appendix 1 also 
contains comments regarding the status of each scheme.  The current 
expenditure on some schemes is treated as being complete, although the 
balance remaining will be transferred to 2010/11.  This treatment is applied 
to schemes such as work to public buildings because the expenditure 
relates to discrete areas of work. 

 
 Financing of the Capital Programme 

 
4.2 The 2009/10 Capital Programme has been funded as detailed in the 

following table: 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 75



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

Funding Source £ 
Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) 3,722,644 
Prudential Borrowing  
- HRA 5,873,665 
- General Fund 1,193,195 
Capital Receipts 233,867 
Grants 618,844 
Section 106 Monies 135,523 
Revenue Contributions 17,678 
  
Total 11,795,416 

 
Capital Grants 

 
4.3 Grants and contributions from third parties are an important source of 

capital finance.  In 2009/10 a total of £618,844 in terms of grants were 
utilised to fund the capital programme.  The table below details the sources 
of grant and their use: 

  
Grants £ Details 
Disabled Facilities 
Grants (DFGs) 

240,000 Government 
support for 
DFGs 
 

Regional Housing Pot 232,760 Government 
support for 
Decent 
Homes 
including 
Repairs 
Grants and 
Houses in 
Multiple 
Occupation 
Grants and 
Licensing  
 

Rugby Football Union 24,822 Pitch works 
 

Fair Play Playbuilder 96,347 Contribution 
from County 
Council 
 

Page 76



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

Free Swimming 7,679 Hewell Road 
 

DWP 17,235 IT equipment 
and software 
 

Total 618,844  
 

Capital Receipts 
  

4.4 Since the pooling of housing capital receipts was introduced on the 1st April 
2004 and the downturn in the housing market the level of capital receipts 
has diminished.  In 2009/10 the Council sold 6 dwellings under the Right to 
Buy (RTB) scheme this compares to 246 in 2003/04.  Capital receipts of 
£10,000 or less are treated as revenue income. 

 
Use of Capital Receipts £’000 
Balance as at 1 April 2009 1,337 
Amounts received in year 627 
less payment of RTB receipts to central 
government 

 
389 

Funding of 2009/10 capital expenditure 550 
  
Total 1,025 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The financial implications are detailed within the report. 
 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 the Local Authority 

must make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial 
affairs. 

 
6.2 The main definition of capital expenditure is set out in the Local 

Government Act 1989. 
 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no specific policy implications. 
 
 
 

Page 77



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 The scheme included in the Capital Programme enables the Council to 

meet its objectives. 
 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 It is important for the outturn position to be reported publicly for budgetary 

control purposes. 
 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no direct customer implications. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no equalities and diversity implications. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
 Investment via the Capital Programme enables the Council to maintain 

and/or enhance the quality of its physical resources.  Officers are required 
to follow the Council’s procurement procedures in letting contracts 
associated with individual schemes within the programme.  This should 
ensure value for money in terms of procurement. 

 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
 There are no climate change, carbon implications or biodiversity 

implications. 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no human resources implications. 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Capital Programme is managed by service managers and through the 
Capital Programme Officers Group. 

 

Page 78



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 
CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 

 
 There are no community safety implications. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no health inequalities implications. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
 None 
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
 None. 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Yes 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

Page 79



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 None. 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Capital Programme 2009/10 
 

23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Records held on CEDAR accounting system; 
Spreadsheets maintained within Financial Services; 
Various Council minutes approving the schemes within the Capital 
Programme. 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Teresa Kristunas 
E Mail: teresa.kristunas@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 64252 ext: 3295 
 

Page 80



Appendix 1

Leisure & Tourism
Job 
No.

Description Budget Actuals Variance % Comments

C0036 Car Park Arrow Valley Park 155,000 160,933.39 -5,933.39 -3.83 Works complete.
C0026 Birchensale Playing Fields 65,250 58,688.55 6,561.45 10.06 Works complete.
C0044 Hewell Road - Electrical Upgrade 44,000 32,893.52 11,106.48 25.24 Works complete.
C0045 Hewell Road - Heat Exchange 21,000 20,999.56 0.44 0.00 Works complete.
C0046 Abbey Stadium Hall Floor Covering 40,000 37,428.06 2,571.94 6.43 Works complete.
C0050 Sound Desk Replacement - Pt 14,000 12,750.00 1,250.00 8.93 Works complete.
C0051 Batchley Cc (S106) 27,850 26,655.67 1,194.33 4.29 Works complete.
C0053 Free Swimming 7,680 7,679.00 1.00 0.01 Works complete.
C0106 Sensory Play Avcc 50,000 48,566.24 1,433.76 2.87 Works complete.
C0107 Play Adaption Msp 48,000 47,781.34 218.66 0.46 Works complete.
C1117 Forge Mill -Upgrade Pumping Station 22,130 12,701.36 9,428.64 42.61 Works complete.

Total Leisure & Tourism 494,910 467,076.69 27,833.31 5.62

Well Managed Organisation
Job 
No.

Description Budget Actuals Variance % Comments

C0202 IT Replacement Programme 86,620 63,919.12 22,700.88 26.21 Ongoing scheme.

C0214 Benefits Replacement System 46,830 17,235.55 29,594.45 63.20
Grant funded. Balance of 
original tender sum used to 
develop system.

C0217 Income Replacement System 16,400 6,722.10 9,677.90 59.01 Complete.
C0220 E-Shop Crm Software 21,700 21,700.00 0.00 0.00 Complete.
C0221 Internal Service Challenge 59,350 59,386.12 -36.12 -0.06 Complete.
C0222 Edms Housing And Asset Man 44,800 46,069.00 -1,269.00 -2.83 Complete.
C0223 Job Evaluation Software 40,500 9,829.14 30,670.86 75.73 Complete.

C2303 Health & Safety 8,500 3,568.18 4,931.82 58.02
No further expenditure. Budget 
deminimus

C1110 Public Building 230,250 112,727.74 117,522.26 51.04 Ongoing scheme.
C1006 Energy Manage/Measure 27,530 2,185.00 25,345.00 92.06 Ongoing scheme.

Total Well Managed Organisation 582,480 343,341.95 239,138.05 41.06

Housing
Job 
No.

Description Budget Actuals Variance % Comments

C1009 Purchase Ex-Council Hses 315,710 252,263.45 63,446.55 20.10 Complete.
C1201 Catch Up Rep-Bath Replacemts 1,449,330 1,345,108.04 104,221.96 7.19
C1202 Catch Up Rep-Kitchen Upgrades 2,929,680 2,821,171.30 108,508.70 3.70
C1203 Catch Up Repairs 693,980 694,081.96 -101.96 -0.01
C1204 Asbestos General 462,680 461,714.05 965.95 0.21
C1205 Structural Repairs 246,820 250,039.05 -3,219.05 -1.30
C1206 General Roofing 318,640 319,407.57 -767.57 -0.24
C1207 Rewiring 1,141,130 1,141,363.53 -233.53 -0.02
C1209 Upgrade Of Ch Systems 686,790 649,977.30 36,812.70 5.36
C1210 Window Replacements 110,250 110,778.14 -528.14 -0.48
C1216 Roof Works - C/Hill & Wood 68,660 61,770.66 6,889.34 10.03
C1222 Disabled Adaptations 620,000 526,540.22 93,459.78 15.07 Balance c/fwd to 2010/11.
C1239 Housing Stock Improvements 927,000 916,024.79 10,975.21 1.18 Balance c/fwd to 2010/11.
C2000 Home Repairs Grant(Over 60'S) 184,420 151,771.04 32,648.96 17.70 Balance c/fwd to 2010/11.
C2001 Disabled Facilities Grant 531,380 528,304.55 3,075.45 0.58 Complete.
C2301 Hmo Grants 48,980 45,625.05 3,354.95 6.85 Complete.
C2302 Energy & Efficiency Installs 164,000 30,463.05 133,536.95 81.42 Balance c/fwd to 2010/11.
C2304 Hmo Licensing Scheme 48,380 32,114.44 16,265.56 33.62 Grant funded. Ongoing.

C4003 Private Sector Stock Survey 6,000 14,250.00 -8,250.00 -137.50
Grant funded plus £12k 
received from the LAs. 
Ongoing.

C4005 Gypsy & Trav Assess 4,000 1,000.00 3,000.00 75.00 Grant funded. Ongoing.

Total Housing 10,957,830 10,353,768 604,062 5.51

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2009/10

All under/overspends on the 
2009/10 capital budgets will be 
carried over to the 4th year of 
the Five Year Decent Homes 
Programme.

Page 81



Community Safety
Job 
No.

Description Budget Actuals Variance % Comments

C1230 Cctv District Centres Prog 47,900 24,060.43 23,839.57 49.77 Complete.
C1236 Cctv Audio Points 15,510 15,391.02 118.98 0.77 Complete.

C2222 Memorial Safety 17,180 6,010.00 11,170.00 65.02
Ongoing paritally funded by 
revenue contributiions.

Total Community Safety 80,590 45,461 35,129 43.59

Environment & Transport
Job 
No.

Description Budget Actuals Variance % Comments

C2202 L'Scape Imp Programme 200,000 158,634.86 41,365.14 20.68 Ongoing scheme.
C2210 Park Infrastructure 43,600 14,009.72 29,590.28 67.87 Rolling programme of works.
C0049 Car Parking  - Pay And Disp 28,800 18,352.18 10,447.82 36.28 End of current phase.
C1121 Batchley Brook 404,970 384,584.18 20,385.82 5.03 Complete.
C0052 Avcc Bus Route 10,248 10,187.04 60.96 0.59 Complete.

Total Environment & Transport 687,618 585,768 101,850 14.81

TOTAL 12,803,428 11,795,416 1,008,012 7.87 0.00

12,683,428

Page 82



WORK IN PROGRESS AT YEAR END

Leisure & Tourism
Job Description Budget Actuals Balance
C0012 Abbey Stadium Redevelopment 701,300 691,884.44 9,415.56
C0029 Bmx Track 356,000 256,415.65 99,584.35

Well Managed Organisation
Job 
No.

Description Budget Actuals Balance

C0215 Finance Replacement System 158,900 136,767.36 22,132.64

C1120 Redevelopment Of Churchill Centre 35,700 35,694.64 5.36

C2234 Drainage Works Cemetery 74,900 51,094.00 23,806.00

Housing
Job 
No.

Description Budget Actuals Balance

C1240 Upper Norgrove - Costs (See Jy) 0 25,963.08 -25,963.08

Environment & Transport
Job 
No.

Description Budget Actuals Balance

C0054 Astwood Bank Recreation Ground (S106) 12,000 10,509.51 1,490.49
C1218 Est Enhancement-Lodgepark 383,530 210,744.71 172,785.29

C1219 Est Enhancement-Woodrow 59,170 23,132.96 36,037.04

C1220 Est. Enhancement-Winyates 237,820 108,782.33 129,037.67
C2208 Town Centre Landscape Scheme 64,520 3,944.67 60,575.33
C2226 Oakenshaw Woods 20,000 3,267.53 16,732.47
C2229 Wirehill Woods 15,000 3,104.00 11,896.00
C2221 L'Scaping Astwood Bank 75,300 70,192.84 5,107.16
C2203 Recycling Project 139,340 41,863.31 97,476.69
C2213 Liveability 20,800 16,143.98 4,656.02
C1124 Small Area Improvements 0 6,075.00 -6,075.00
C1302 Improved Parking Scheme 0 340.00 -340.00
C2219 Brockhill Community Woodlands 15,000 10,054.50 4,945.50
C0047  Land Drain Works - Old Forge Dr 92,000 4,348.90 87,651.10
C0048  Land Drain Works - Dolphin Road 28,000 500.00 27,500.00

Total Work in Progress 2,489,280 1,710,823 778,456.59

Work ongoing.

Work programmed for 2010/11

Completed early 2010/11.
Budget set up in 2010/11(£100k)

Completed early 2010/11.
Budget set up in 2010/11 (£250k)

Work ongoing.
Work ongoing.
Yet to be completed.
Completed early 2010/11.

Scheme ongoing

Work programmed for 2010/11

Further work to be undertaken.

Comments

To be funded from the disposal of 
Upper Norgrove.

Comments

Some finishing works outstanding.
Work ongoing.
Minor finishing works planned for early 
2010/11.
Work ongoing.

Further work to be undertaken.

%

Additional module to be implemented.

Comments
Ongoing scheme.

Page 83



Page 84



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

 

WRITE OFF POLICY - UPDATE 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Michael Braley, Portfolio Holder for 

Corporate Management 
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas 
Key Decision 
This report contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph(s)       of Part I 
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended 
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 The report proposes an amended policy for the write off of debts due to the 

authority. 
 

1.2 The policy would operate across all debt streams and authority to delegate 
all debts, except those where the write off is being made due to hardship, 
vulnerability or as part of a debt matching arrangement, will be delegated to 
the Council’s Section 151 Officer. 

 
1.3 The policy introduces a requirement for information on the level of bad debt 

write off to be reported to the Executive Committee on a quarterly basis. 
 
1.4 Introduction of the policy will require an amendment to the Council’s 

financial regulations at D10 and D11.   
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that the draft Write Off 

Policy included at Appendix 1 be approved. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The write off of bad debts is a necessary function of any organisation which 

deals with the collection of debt.  Effective write off procedures contribute to 
the efficient management off debt as officers time can be concentrated on 
monitoring and recovering the collectible debt. 

 
3.2 The existing policy for write off of debt was approved in 2004.  A LEAN 

processing review of the procedures for write offs found that:- 
 

• The process was wasteful in terms of the number of officers and 
levels of authorisation that are required prior to write off. 

 

Agenda Item 10Page 85



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

 

• That the referral of write off for Executive Committee approval rarely 
resulted in authorisation to write off being withheld; 

 
• That the process of referring debts to Executive Committee caused 

delays to the timely write off of debt; 
 

• Executive Committee wrote off debt without any knowledge of the 
effect of the write off on the provision for bad debt. 

 
3.3 The major impact on the provision for bad debt was the larger volumes of 

small value write offs and liquidation write offs which were approved at 
levels below Executive Committee.  For example for Non-Domestic Rates 
write offs of £378,883.16 have been processed from 1st February 2009, 
none of these write offs required Executive Committee approval as they 
were either irrecoverable by virtue of being an insolvency debt or they fell 
below the £1,500.00 threshold. 

 
3.4 The review highlighted that improvements to the efficiency of the write of 

process could be obtained if revisions were made to the debts which were 
referred for Executive Committee approval and better management 
information were provided to Executive Committee.  The improved 
management information would allow scrutiny of the reasons for write off 
and the effects of all write off on the provision for bad debt. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The revised policy delegates the authority to write off all debts - except 

those where write off is requested due to hardship, illness or other 
exceptional circumstances and those being written off as part of a 
negotiated debt matching arrangement - to the Council’s Section 151 
Officer. 

 
4.2 The process of reporting debts for write off will be simplified and the 

majority of write offs will be approved on bulk schedules – this will allow for 
better automation of the write off approval process and provide efficiency to 
the procedure.   

 
4.3 Evidence of all checks carried out prior to write off will be prepared by the 

officer requesting write off and will be available for inspection at the 
approval and authorisation stages. 

 
4.4 Quarterly monitoring reports will be provided to Executive Committee 

providing a profile of the existing debt by age and the proportion of debt 

Page 86



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

 

outstanding for that year.  The value of debt written off to date (profiled by 
reason for write off) and the effect of write offs on the bad debt provision. 

 
4.5 Information may also be provided on the level of debt which may become 

subject to write off. 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The policy will operate within the existing provisions for bad debt, the 

additional monitoring proposed will improve the ability to monitor the 
appropriateness of those provisions and the total impact of write offs on the 
provision. 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Approval of the revised policy will require an amendment to be made to the 

Council’s financial regulations. 
 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 A revised policy for the write off of debt is proposed. 
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 

The proposed procedures should enable the Council to improve the process 
for the write off of debt by clarifying the situations in which debt can be 
written off and reducing the number of officers involved in the process. 

 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 

There is a risk that recoverable debts may be written off or that debts may 
be written off without the appropriate checks being carried out.  Sample 
testing off write offs by Internal Audit will identify any weaknesses in 
procedures.  Inappropriate write offs can then be reversed and recovery 
action recommenced. 

 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no customer implications. 
 

Page 87



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

 

 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no equalities and diversity implications. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 

The revised write off procedure should be more effective in terms of the use 
of officer time.  There are no procurement or asset management 
implications. 

 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
 There are no climate change, carbon implications or biodiversity 

implications. 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no human resources implications. 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
 It is proposed that performance information is reported to the Executive 

Committee on a quarterly basis. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
 
 There are no community safety implications. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no health inequalities implications. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
 None. 
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
 None. 
 

Page 88



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  28th July 2010 
 

 

20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No. 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 

Yes 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Yes 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 None. 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 – Draft Write Off Policy. 
 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Existing Write Off Policy and procedure. 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Teresa Kristunas 
E Mail: teresa.kristunas@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 64252 ext: 3295 

Page 89



Page 90



Page 1 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Draft Write Off Policy 

Page 91



Page 2 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

 
 
 Contents  
1 Introduction 3 
2 Aims and Objectives 4 
3 Categories of write off 5 
4 
5 

Credit balance write on 
Authorisation for write off 

 

6 Monitoring  
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Page 92



Page 3 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
The purpose of this document is to set out a framework for the authorisation 
and reporting of debt to be written off. 
 
The Council delivers a wide range of services that involve the recovery of 
debt.  Implementing an effective method for reporting and authorising the 
write off of irrecoverable debts will ensure that the functions of the council are 
carried out in an effective and efficient manner. 
 
The effectiveness of the council’s debt management will be improved by 
revising the authority to write off debts and empowering suitably competent 
officers to authorise the write off of debt. 
 
The authorisation for write off of debt will only be referred to Executive 
Committee in cases where the write off would have a significant and material 
impact on the financial standing of the authority or where the decision to write 
off the debt is exceptional and the debt management and write off policy does 
not provide guidance. 
 
The write off policy introduces a requirement for the Executive Committee to 
be informed on a quarterly basis of the present position with regard to overall 
debt, the value of debt written off within the financial year and the impact of 
these write offs on the authority’s bad debt provision. 
 

Page 93



Page 4 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

 
2.0 Aims and Objectives 
 
Redditch Borough Council recognises that the prevention of indebtedness and 
the effective management of debt are crucial in maximising the resources 
available to the council and ensuring the well-being of the residents of the 
Redditch Borough. 
 
The key aims of the policy are: 
 
To improve the level of income collected by the Council; 
 
To identify the circumstances when it will be appropriate to write off debts; 
 
To summarise the steps which need to be taken before a debt is written off; 
 
To introduce a scheme for authorising the write off of debt that ensures the 
decision to write off is made by an appropriate officer of the Council; 
 
To ensure that members are informed of the level of debt owed to the council, 
the position regarding debts written off and the impact on the council’s 
financial position. 
 
To ensure that there is a coordinated approach to the sharing of debtor 
information across council departments and to the management and write off 
of debt. 
 
The policy will apply to the following debts and to any combination of these 
debts; 
 
Council Tax 
Non-Domestic Rates 
Housing Benefit Overpayments 
Sundry debts 
Housing rents 
Parking Enforcement Notices 

Page 94



Page 5 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

3.0 Procedures for write off of debt 
 
Each service will have procedures or policies in place to enable timely billing 
and collection of debts and to ensure that in appropriate cases recovery 
action is taken promptly.  The service’s procedures and policies will identify 
the mechanisms provided by legislation for the recovery of debts.   
 
As a general rule – except in cases of hardship, low value debt or cases 
where recovery is prevented by law - all recovery processes will be attempted 
before a debt is considered for write off.   
 
The council recognises that there will be cases where it is not practical for the 
recovery process to continue because either the debtor has absconded or the 
costs of recovery are greater than the value of the debt outstanding. 
 
The circumstances listed below are indicative of the situations in which a debt 
will be written off, the fact that a case falls within the criteria will not compel 
the council to write the debt off as there may be other factors which would 
indicate that recovery action is appropriate. 
 
Circumstances where debts may be written off 
 
Closed accounts with debt below £50.00 
 
The costs of pursuing the debt through court action will exceed the 
outstanding balance.  In addition the costs of pursuing a debt from an 
individual no longer resident in the property could further increase the costs. 
 
Letters warning of the potential for court action will be issued if this does not 
prompt recovery the debt may be written off. 
 
Individual debts below £5.00 
 
It is not cost effective to pursue recovery of cases where the debt is below 
£5.00 and there is no ongoing liability to the Council.  In these circumstances 
the debts will be written off. 
 
Debtor Absconded 
 
Trace Action will be undertaken and the debtor’s details will be checked 
across all appropriate Council databases, with credit reference agencies and 
appropriate trace databases i.e. Experian and LOCTA. 
 
If enquiries do not yield a forwarding address then the debt will be written off, 
if the debtor subsequently reappears the debt will be written back on and 
recovery action recommenced. 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



Page 6 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

Live debt which is uneconomic to pursue 
 
The costs of commencing bankruptcy action, applying for charging orders or 
making an application for committal to prison can be high with no guarantee 
that the debt will be recovered.  Where an assessment of the debtor’s 
circumstances indicates that further action would be costly and collection of 
the outstanding balance is unlikely the debt will be written off. 
 
Insolvency – bankrupt individual or insolvent company 
 
Where an individual has been made bankrupt or a company has entered 
liquidation no further recovery action can be taken and the debt will be written 
off. 
 
If a bankrupt individual remains in receipt of Housing Benefit then recovery of 
Housing Benefit Overpayments can be made from any ongoing benefit 
entitlement up until the individual’s discharge from bankruptcy. 
 
Dissolved Companies 
 
On dissolution the company will have no legal identity and any property of the 
company will become bona vacantia.  There will be no prospect of recovery in 
these cases and the debt will be written off. 
 
Limited companies in administration 
 
In administrations the debt will be proved in the proceedings and written off.  
On going trading liabilities will be payable by the administrators and they will 
be advised to make payment. 
 
Debtor deceased with no prospect of recovery from estate 

It is a common misconception that when a person dies, his/her debts are 
automatically discharged. Debts are not discharged on death unless specific 
provision has been made for them to be discharged, e.g. by an insurance 
policy. All debts that are not provided for must be met from the assets of the 
deceased debtor. Where the assets are insufficient to meet all the debts, the 
estate is insolvent.  

In these circumstances if it is not appropriate to apply for an insolvency 
administration order then the debt will be written off. 

Debtor sentenced to term of imprisonment in respect of the debt 
 
Where a term of imprisonment has been served in respect of a debt the 
council will be precluded from taking any further action to recover the 
outstanding balance and the debt will be written off. 
 
 
 

Page 96



Page 7 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

Debt remitted by court 
 
Magistrates have the power to remit all or part of a debt.  If the magistrates 
have taken a decision to remit the debt no further recovery action can be 
taken and the debt will be written off. 
 
Out of time for recovery action 
 
Debts over 6 years of age where action for recovery has not been taken will 
be statute barred and write off will be necessary. 
 
Where a liability order or judgement has been made in respect of the debt 
execution of the judgement will still be permitted.  Therefore attachment of 
earnings order or the use of distress can still be made. 
 
Debtor out of jurisdiction 
 
Where a debtor is outside of the jurisdiction of England and Wales and there 
is unlikely to be any prospect of recovering the debt, it will be written off. 
 
Debtor’s circumstances are such that it is not appropriate for council to pursue 
Debtor Infirm or suffering from hardship 
 
There will be cases where it is not felt to be appropriate to continue with 
recovery action due to the debtor’s mental or physical health or due to 
particular circumstances of the case.  In these cases the Service Manager will 
recommend that the Executive Committee approve write off the debt. 
 
For Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates debts the Revenue Service 
Manager should first consider whether a reduction of the debt under the 
provisions of Section 13a of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 or 
Section 49 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 is more appropriate. 
 
Debtor enters into a debt matching agreement 
 
Debt matching is an agreement with the debtor whereby if payments are 
made under an agreed payment arrangement the Council will write off a 
portion of the debt, either on receipt of each payment or where payments 
have been made for a specified period of time. 
 
Debt matching will only be undertaken where there are no prospects of 
recovering the debt in full and an assessment of the debtors income indicates 
that any payment arrangement would extend beyond three years. 
 
Debt matching arrangement will be reviewed periodically to ensure there has 
not been a change in the debtor’s circumstances.  If the debtor’s 
circumstances change then the arrangement may be amended or cancelled. 
 
Debt matching will only be undertaken on recommendation of the Service 
Manager and approval of the Executive Committee. 

Page 97



Page 8 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

Credit balance write offs 
 
Where accounts are closed and a credit balance is held on the account the 
credit will be refunded preferably by BACS where the customer’s bank 
account details are held. 
 
In cases where no bank account details are held we will write to the customer 
advising them of the credit and requesting details of the account into which 
the credit can be refunded.  If we do not hold a forwarding address we will 
issue notification of the credit to the last known address of the individual. 
 
If after a period of three months the customer has not requested a refund then 
the amount of the credit will be written off.  Where the customer makes 
contact at a later date or is located at a new address within the area the 
amount can be written back on and repaid. 
 
Credits held on open accounts will be rolled forward and offset against future 
year’s charges if a request for refund is not made. 
 
In cases where the credit balance is less than £5.00 refunds will not be made 
unless requested by the customer as the costs of making payment are greater 
than the credit held.  Credit balances below £5.00 will be written off when 
identified. 
 
Where mutual credits and debits exist across separate debt streams we will 
offer the customer the opportunity to transfer the credit to offset any debit 
balances before a refund is made. 
 
4.0 Authorisation of write offs 
 
The table at appendix A details the authorisations required before a debt is 
written off. 
 
5.0 Reporting write offs 
 
The table at appendix B summarises the action that will be taken prior to write 
off and the method of reporting the debt.  
 
The Council’s Section 151 Officer will approve procedures for the reporting, 
approval and authorisation of debts for write off. 
 
6.0 Monitoring 
 
Each section will be responsible for ensuring that the policy is applied 
correctly and is effective.  For each debt type management information will be 
compiled on a quarterly basis.  The information will include a profile of debt by 
age, the value of debt written off to date (profiled by reason code), and the 
effect on the provision for bad debt. 

 

Page 98



Page 9 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

Information will also be provided on debt which could become subject to write 
off; this would include debts where recovery is unlikely because the debtor 
has absconded, there is ongoing insolvency or a write off is pending.   

Page 99



Page 10 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

Appendix A – Authorisation levels for write off 
 
Value Recommendation Examined / 

Approved 
 

Authorised 

Credit 
balances 

Income Officer 
(IO) 
Rent & Welfare 
Officer (RWO) 
Housing Database 
Officer. 
Revenue Officer 
(RO) 
Benefits 
Overpayments 
Officer (BOP) 

Appropriate 
Service 
Supervisors/ 
Team Leaders 

Appropriate Service 
Managers 

Debts up to 
£100 

Income Officer 
(IO) 
Rent & Welfare 
Officer (RWO) 
Revenue Officer 
(RO) 
Benefits 
Overpayments 
Officer (BOP) 

 Appropriate Service 
Supervisors/ Team 
Leaders. 

£101 - £2,000 Income Officer 
(IO) 
Rent & Welfare 
Officer (RWO) 
Revenue Officer 
(RO) 
Benefits 
Overpayments 
Officers (BOP) 

 Appropriate Service 
Managers 

Debts over 
£2,000 

Income Officer 
(IO) 
Rent & Welfare 
Officer (RWO) 
Revenue Officer 
(RO) 
Benefits 
Overpayments 
Officers (BOP) 

Service 
Managers 

Executive Director 
(Finance and 
Corporate 
Resources) - Section 
151 Officer 
 
Financial Services 
Manager (deputy 
Section 151 Officer). 
 
Head of Finance & 
Resources. 
 
Head of Housing 
Services (HRA debt 
only) 

Page 100



Page 11 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

Value Recommendation Examined / 
Approved 
 

Authorised 

Debts remitted 
by Magistrates 
or where a 
term of 
imprisonment 
has been 
served 

Income Officer 
(IO) 
Rent & Welfare 
Officer (RWO) 
Revenue Officer 
(RO) 
Benefits 
Overpayments 
Officer (BOP) 

 Appropriate Service 
Managers 

Insolvency 
proceedings 
Administration 
Order (where 
claim has 
been formally 
acknowledged 

Income Officer 
(IO) 
Rent & Welfare 
Officer (RWO) 
Revenue Officer 
(RO) 
Benefits 
Overpayments 
Officer (BOP) 

 Appropriate Service 
Managers 

Debtor is 
deceased no 
prospect of 
dividend from 
estate 

Income Officer 
(IO) 
Rent & Welfare 
Officer (RWO) 
Revenue Officer 
(RO) 
Benefits 
Overpayments 
Officer (BOP) 

 Appropriate Service 
Managers 

Debt matching 
agreements 

Appropriate 
Service Managers 

 Executive 
Committee 

Cases of 
hardship or 
discretionary 
write offs  

Appropriate 
Service Managers 

 Executive 
Committee 

  
 

Page 101



Page 12 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

Appendix B – Actions to be taken prior to write off 
 
Write off reason Actions Prior to W/Off Procedure for Write/off 
Credit Balances < £5.00 None Cases reported on bulk 

write off schedule for 
appropriate 
authorisation 

Credit Balances > £5.00 Notice of credit issued 
to customer. 
 

Cases reported on bulk 
write off schedule for 
appropriate 
authorisation 

Closed accounts with 
debt below £50.00 
 

Invoice/Demand issued 
to customer 
 
No ongoing liability. 
 
Debt static for 12 
months 
 

 

Individual debts below 
£5.00 
 

Invoice/Demand issued 
to customer. 
 
No ongoing liability. 
 
Debt static for 12 
months 

Cases reported on bulk 
schedule for appropriate 
authorisation. 

Debtor Absconded Check internal 
databases and trace 
database, enquiries with 
property agents. 
 

Cases reported on bulk 
schedule for appropriate 
authorisation 

Live debt which is 
uneconomic to pursue 
 

All appropriate recovery 
routes attempted. 
 
Assessment of costs 
and likelihood of 
recovery to be made. 

Cases reported on bulk 
schedule for appropriate 
authorisation. 

Insolvency – bankrupt 
individual or insolvent 
company 
 

Claim lodged in 
proceedings. 

Cases reported on bulk 
schedule for appropriate 
authorisation. 

Dissolved Companies Confirmation of 
dissolution received 

Cases reported on bulk 
schedule for appropriate 
authorisation. 

Limited companies in 
administration. 
 

Confirmation of 
administration. 
 
Debt lodged in 
proceedings. 
 

Cases reported on bulk 
schedule for appropriate 
authorisation. 

Page 102



Page 13 of 13 
Debt Management and Write Off Policy 

Write off reason Actions Prior to W/Off Procedure for Write/off 
Debtor Infirm or 
suffering from hardship 

Appropriate recovery 
procedures to be 
attempted. 
 
 

Case referred to 
Executive Committee for 
W/off consideration. 

Debtor’s circumstances 
are such that it is not 
appropriate for council 
to pursue recovery. 

Appropriate recovery 
procedures to be 
attempted. 
 
 

Case referred to 
Executive Committee for 
W/off consideration. 

Debtor deceased with 
no prospect of recovery 
from estate 
respect of the debt 
 

Confirmation of value of 
the estate and 
outstanding liabilities 
obtained. 

Cases reported on bulk 
schedule for appropriate 
authorisation. 

Debtor sentenced to 
term of imprisonment in 
respect of debt. 

No further powers of 
recovery 

Cases reported on bulk 
schedule for appropriate 
authorisation. 

Debtor out of jurisdiction 
 

  

Debt remitted by court 
 

No further powers of 
recovery 

Cases reported on bulk 
schedule for appropriate 
authorisation. 

Out of time for recovery 
action 
 

No further powers of 
recovery 

Cases reported on bulk 
schedule for appropriate 
authorisation. 

Debtor enters into a 
debt matching 
agreement 
 

Debt matching 
agreement approved by 
Executive Committee. 
 
Payments monitored – 
portion of debt written 
off at agreed intervals. 

Cases reported on bulk 
schedule for appropriate 
authorisation. 

 

Page 103



Page 104



 
 

 

Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

 

 

23rd June 2010 

 

 

 Chair 
 

 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Diane Thomas (Chair), and Councillors Robin King, 
Wanda King, William Norton, Brenda Quinney, Mark Shurmer and 
Graham Vickery 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillors Andrew Brazier, Adam Griffin and Gay Hopkins.  
 

 Officers: 
 

 H Bennett, A Heighway, L Jones, T Kristunas and S Skinner 
 

 Committee Services Officer: 
 

 J Bayley and J Smyth. 
 

13. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors 
Banks, A Clayton and Hartnett. 
 
An apology was also received on behalf of Councillor Braley 
(Portfolio Holder for Corporate Management). 
 
 

14. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP  
 
There were neither declarations of interest nor of Party Whip. 
 
 

15. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 28th April 
2010 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
 

Agenda Item 11Page 105



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 
16. ACTIONS LIST  

 
The Committee considered the latest version of the Actions List and 
specific mention was made on the following matters: 
 
a) Action 2: Convergence between Council and Registered 

Social Landlords (RSL) Rents 
 

Further to a request at the previous meeting, Members were 
provided with a written detailed breakdown of the 
methodology and Government formula for calculating rents.   
The national average formula rent for 2010/11, deemed to be 
the target for convergence, was £66.04, however the actual 
average rent for Redditch Borough Council was £63.38.   

 
Officers clarified a number of points raised, in relation to the 
difference between the national average figure and that for 
Redditch Borough Council and explained that, as well as 
applying the Government formula rent, other factors were 
taken into account in respect of capital values of individual 
properties, which varied across the country, numbers of 
bedrooms and average earnings.   Members were advised 
that, whilst authorities aimed for the “target” formula rent, the 
average was generally either lower or higher dependent on 
local factors. Officers further advised that the gap between 
the Government formula rent and actual average rents was 
much wider than Redditch’s in some areas.   

 
Officers advised that local authorities had very little input into 
the process other than to undertake the calculations required 
based on the Government formula provided.   

 
b) Action 6:  Letter to former Councillor Phil Mould 
 

Copies of a letter from the Chair on behalf of the Committee, 
sent to former Councillor Phil Mould, previous Chair of the 
Committee, were circulated for Members information. 

 
c) Action 8: Garden Waste Collection – Pre-scrutiny 
 

Members were advised that the Garden Waste Collection 
report, scheduled on the Forward Plan for consideration at 
the 29th September Executive Committee, had been 
included on the Committee’s Work Programme for pre-
scrutiny at its meeting on 15th September 2010. 

 
 

Page 106



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 

RESOLVED that 
 
the reports be noted. 
 

17. CALL-IN AND PRE-SCRUTINY  
 
It was noted that there had been no specific call-ins relating to the 
Decision Notice of the Executive Committee meeting held on 16th 
June 2010. 
 
In respect of pre-scrutiny requests, the Committee discussed 
various items scheduled on the Forward Plan for consideration by 
the Executive Committee.  Members agreed that several of the 
items were suitable for pre-scrutiny, namely:  
 
a) REDI Centre Options – Update report (28th July 2010 

Executive) 
 
b) Older Persons Housing and Support Strategy (28th July 

2010 Executive); 
 
c) Children and Young Peoples Plan (12th January 2011 

Executive); and 
 
d) Improvement Plan 2010/11 (28th July 2010 Executive - 

Members noted that this item might be removed from the 
Forward Plan); 

 
It was noted that the Joint Worcestershire Scrutiny into Flood Task 
and Finish Group’s recommendations had still to be considered by 
the Executive Committee, although no specific date for it to be 
considered had been scheduled on the Forward Plan.  Officers 
were requested to advise Committee Services on the proposed 
date for the Executive to consider the matter as soon as possible 
for scheduling on the Forward Plan.  
 
Reference was made to an item on the Decision Notice from the 
25th May 2010 Executive Committee meeting relating to the 
Supporting People Strategy.  Officers advised that, whilst the matter 
could no longer be called in, and the Executive Committee’s 
recommendation to adopt the strategy was due to be considered at 
full Council on the 28th June (where Members would have an 
opportunity comment if they wished), it could still be subject to 
further scrutiny.  Particular concerns were expressed about the 
style of writing and language used which, it was suggested, 
rendered the report incomprehensible, unclear and not suitable for 
a public audience. 

Page 107



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 

 
Members were informed that the report had, in fact, been produced 
by the County Council for circulation to District Councils.  Officers 
were asked to report the Committee’s concerns regarding the 
strategy to the Worcestershire Supporting Peoples’ Group and 
provide a further presentation on the subject of the strategy for the 
Committee’s consideration in due course.  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the REDI Centre – options report be provided for pre-

scrutiny by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior 
to the Executive Committee considering the item; 

 
2) the Older Persons Housing and Support Strategy report 

be provided for pre-scrutiny by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee prior to the Executive Committee 
considering the item; 

 
3) the Children and Young Peoples Plan be provided for 

pre-scrutiny by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
prior to the Executive Committee considering the item; 

 
4) subject to the item remaining on the Forward Plan, the 

Improvement Plan 2010/11 be provided for pre-scrutiny 
by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to 
consideration by the Executive Committee; 

 
5) a further presentation on the subject of the Supporting 

People Strategy be provided for the Committee’s 
consideration in due course; and  

 
6) in respect of the Joint Worcestershire Scrutiny in to 

Flooding Task and Finish Group recommendations, 
currently listed on the Forward Plan with no scheduled 
date, appropriate Officers be requested to provide 
Committee Services with a date when the item was to be 
considered by the Executive Committee, as soon as 
possible. 

 
18. TASK & FINISH REVIEWS - DRAFT SCOPING DOCUMENTS  

 
There were no draft scoping documents for the Committee to 
review. 
 
Members reiterated their previous concerns on the continuing lack 
of Officer support for the work the Committee wished to undertake 

Page 108



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 

on both existing and future Task and Finish reviews.  It was 
reported that the Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic 
Services would be applying herself to resolving the issue as a 
matter of urgency. 
   

19. TASK AND FINISH GROUPS - PROGRESS REPORTS  
 
The Committee received oral reports in relation to current reviews, 
namely: 
 
a) Local Strategic Partnership 
 
 It was reported that eight further recommendations had been 

drafted at the most recent meeting of the Task and Finish 
Group.  An additional witness interview was due to take 
place in June.  The review was still considered to be on 
course for completion ahead of schedule and it was likely 
that the Group’s final report would be presented in July / 
August 2010.  

 
b) Worcestershire Hub Review 
 
 The Chair thanked Councillor Hopkins for attending the 

meeting on behalf of the Committee.  It was acknowledged 
that she had only recently taken on the role of the Council’s 
co-opted Member on the Group and that she was not, 
therefore, fully conversant with the work of the review to 
date. 

 
 Councillor Hopkins reported that she had attended the most 

recent meeting of the Task and Finish Group and referred 
Members to her notes attached to the Agenda.  She provided 
the following answers to the questions on the subject of the 
Worcestershire Hub service and Task and Finish review that 
had been proposed by members: 

 
 1) What stage has the Joint Worcestershire Hub Scrutiny 

Task Group reached in the review of the 
Worcestershire Hub Service? 

 
  Councillor Hopkins advised that, from what she had 

understood from the meeting, the review of the Hub 
was well past the half-way stage. 

 
 2) What actions are likely to be suggested to improve the 

delivery of the service? 
 

Page 109



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 

  Councillor Hopkins reported that a number of actions 
were already being implemented; specifically for 
Redditch, a similar change to that already made by 
Bromsgrove who have provided one telephone 
number for their Revenues and Benefits service which 
has, it would seem, helped to reduce the number of 
enquiries to their back offices.  It was anticipated that 
a similar set up in Redditch would have a similar 
impact on reducing calls through the Hub. 

 
  Redditch had introduced the option for its Switchboard 

to offer callers the opportunity to key in Office 
extension numbers (if known) which provided 
automatic transfers of calls and speeded up the 
process for passing on calls.  

 
 3) During the course of the Neighbourhood Groups 

Review in Redditch we consulted with residents who 
frequently complained about the Worcestershire Hub 
at Neighbourhood Group meetings.  Has any attempt 
been made during the review to consult with residents 
about the service? 

 
  It was reported that a number of consultation 

processes were undertaken, namely: 
 
  i) Customer Questionnaire – January / February 
  ii) Worcester Viewpoint in May – a general 

newsletter but included an article on the Hub 
for feedback 

  iii) Your Views Count – an online area on the Hub 
website which provided a questionnaire for 
users to complete and submit.  

 
 4) What measures are being taken to improve the 

Worcestershire Hub telephone service? 
 

 Councillor Hopkins advised that she had no further 
information on other measures to be taken at this 
time.  It was reported that the Group’s Chair had 
suggested that perceptions had indicated that the 
service had much improved.   This view was not 
shared by the Committee and Members highlighted 
several of their own experiences when dealing with 
enquires through the Hub, namely: 

 

Page 110



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 

  i) A Member reported that during an enquiry 
through the Hub until they mentioned they were 
a Borough Councillor; they had been treated in 
an unsatisfactory manner.  

 
  ii) A Member recently ordered a new wheelie bin 

and after several calls, which lasted between 
ten and fifteen minutes each, they ended up 
with five wheelie bins.  

 
  iii) A Member attempted to report a problem with a 

pavement to the Highways Unit.  This had not 
resulted in any action and they had eventually 
been advised to contact a County Councillor to 
resolve the issue.   

 
  iv) A Member reported that, in his experience, 

using the Hub to access services was very 
frustrating because you could not approach 
individual services to discuss issues. 

 
 It was questioned what value was added to the delivery of 

services if people were prevented from having direct contact 
with relevant services.   Officers reported that the ultimate 
vision for the Hub had been that a customer could contact 
any Hub in the County to resolve an issue regardless of 
where they lived in the County or who the responsible 
authority was.   Due to technical difficulties, however, this 
ideal of service delivery still remained to be achieved.     

 
 Councillor Hopkins was asked to report the concerns and 

experiences highlighted by Members to the Joint Scrutiny 
Review Group for further consideration.  It was noted that 
Councillor Hopkins would provide written updates for the 
Committee after every Review Group meeting.   

 
 In the context of external appointments, it was highlighted 

that, as Councillors, Members were appointed to a number of 
outside bodies, such as the Worcestershire Hub Board.  
However, they were not aware of providing updates on the 
work of these outside bodies for other Members’ 
consideration.  It was reported that feedback on outside 
Body appointments was supposed to be directed through the 
Executive Committee, although this rarely happened.    

 

Page 111



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 

RESOLVED that 
 
1) the updates be noted; 
 
2) Councillor Hopkins be asked to report the Committee’s 

concerns and comments on the Worcestershire Hub 
service back to the Joint Scrutiny Review Group for 
consideration; and 

 
3) Officers be requested to review the arrangements 

currently in place for delivering reports on the subject of 
Members’ work on outside bodies. 

 
20. BUS PASS SCHEME: COUNTY PROVISION - UPDATE  

 
The Committee received an update report on progress to date in 
relation to the Bus Pass Scheme for the County. 
 
Officers reported on a number of specific areas, in particular in 
relation to:  
 
a) Age of eligibility for concessionary bus travel 
 

Members noted that the age of eligibility for concessionary 
bus travel had been altered in line with changes made to the 
State Pension Scheme from April 2010.  The changes, which 
would only impact on those due to turn 60 on or after 6th 
April 2010, had led to a lot of confusion for residents as there 
had been very little publicity nationally with the added issue 
that there would be a phased approach to issuing passes.  
Eligible residents would not necessarily receive their bus 
passes immediately upon application.   

 
b) Concessionary fares funding 
 

The 2010/11 grant for Redditch had remained unchanged 
at £239,400.  Members were reminded, however, that 
from 2011 the County Council would be the designated 
Travel Concession Authority for the County’s six Districts 
and all funding will be directed to them.    

 
Members were advised that the County Council had been 
instructed to have a main-stream, uniform approach to 
the scheme.  Dependant on what scheme they decide to 
adopt, District Councils might ultimately have to fund any 
enhanced concessionary schemes they wished to have 
over and above the County Council’s standard scheme.  

Page 112



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 

Officers reported that JMP Consulting would be providing 
estimates on the overall cost of pre-9.30am travel 
concession by the end of June.  Members requested that 
a copy of the information be circulated to them for 
information.  It was noted that two Districts had already 
removed this enhanced concession.   

 
c) Branding  
 

In response to a Member’s query on why the 
Concessionary Passes could not display both County and 
Redditch Councils Logos on the front of cards, Officers 
advised that current legislation only allowed for the Travel 
Concession Authority’s logo (the County Council’s in this 
instance) to be displayed.  

 
Members expressed their concerns that Redditch would have no 
real input into the decisions on the scheme and how it operated.  
They were particular concerned that the pre-9.30am travel scheme 
might be lost.    
  
It was noted that, ultimately the responsibility for the Concessionary 
Fares Scheme and the decision as to whether to adopt the National 
scheme or to allow enhancements such as pre-9.30am travel would 
rest with the County Council.  It was suggested and agreed that the 
relevant Worcestershire County Council Portfolio Holder and 
appropriate County Council Officers with responsibility for 
concessionary fares should be invited to attend the next meeting of 
the Committee to discuss the matter in more detail.    
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the Officers’ report and oral update be noted;   
 
2) Officers to circulate a copy of the information due to be 

provided by JMP Consulting on the costs associated 
with providing the pre-9.30am travel concession for 
members’ consideration; and 

 
3) the relevant Worcestershire County Council Portfolio 

Holder and Responsible Officer(s) be invited to attend 
the 14th July 2010 meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, to discuss the matter in more detail.  

   
 
 

Page 113



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 
21. CHARGING POLICY - MONITORING REPORT  

 
The Committee received an oral report in relation to monitoring of 
the Council’s Charging Policy on the Council’s process for setting 
fees and charges.  
 
Officers provided background information on the Charging Policy 
that had been approved by Council in accordance with the 
recommendations made by the Fees and Charges Task and Finish 
Group in 2008.  It was clarified that the purpose of bringing the 
matter to Committee was for Members to monitor the impact of the 
Charging Policy on the Council’s fees and charges setting process, 
its weaknesses and positive outcomes.   
 
Members were informed that, there had been some significant 
changes to services since 2008, particularly in the Leisure Services.  
However, it was difficult to determine to what extent this had been 
influenced by the Charging Policy as the introduction of the 
charging policy had coincided with the economic downturn which 
was also likely to have impacted on the use of many services.  
Officers, though, believed that the spirit of the policy was being 
followed leading to improvements across various services, including 
Planning, Leisure and Garden Waste collection.   
 
Members noted the information provided by Officers but considered 
that a comprehensive written report was required in order for them 
to exercise a proper monitoring role.  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
Officers provide the Committee with a detailed written report 
on the impact of the Council’s Charging Policy on the fees and 
charges setting process as soon as possible. 
   

22. CONSOLIDATED REVENUE OUTTURN - FINANCIAL YEAR 
2009/10  
 
The Committee received a report which detailed the Council’s 
overall financial outturn and actual income and expenditure for the 
2009/10 financial year with a comparison to the budget for General 
Fund Services and the Housing Revenue Account.  
 
Officers provided details on various aspects of the report in relation 
to major variations in budgets and in particular in respect of 
significant changes in the Corporate employee costs subsequent to 
the review of senior management posts and redundancies and it 
was noted that, whilst the figures were still subject to examination 

Page 114



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 

by the Audit Commission during July 2010, in general terms the 
Council had saved more than anticipated.   
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted.   
 
 

23. QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE MONITORING - QUARTER 4 - 
JANUARY TO MARCH 2010  
 
The Committee received a report on the Council’s performance for 
the forth quarter of the 2009/10 financial year for comment and 
noting. 
 
Officers reported on various indicators that had shown 
improvements and highlighted Benefits and Housing Repairs as 
well as reductions, particularly those relating to recycling and levels 
of detritus.  Members commented that solutions were being 
implemented to improve clearance of detritus through staff training 
and increased use of equipment such as mechanical sweepers. 
 
Members also discussed NI 151 regarding the slight fall in the local 
overall employment rate (working age) and queried what Redditch 
Borough Council, as a local employer, was doing to help improve 
employment in the town.   In the absence of specific knowledge on 
the matter, Officers suggested that Local Authority influence on 
general employment in the town was fairly marginal although a 
number of events had been staged as part of the Local 
Development Strategy work and more were planned.   The 
Committee agreed that relevant Officers be requested to circulate a 
written answer to the query for Members information.   
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the update on key performance indicators for the period 

ending March 2010 be noted; and 
 
2) in relation to NI 151, regarding the overall employment 

rate (working age), relevant Officers be requested to 
circulate a written answer to Committee Members in 
respect of the query on what Redditch Borough Council 
was doing to help improve employment in the town, as 
soon as possible.   

  
 

Page 115



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 
24. ITEMS FOR SCRUTINY - SUGGESTIONS FROM THE 

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM  
 
The Committee was asked to consider a list of potential items for 
scrutiny that had been proposed by the Council’s Corporate 
Management Team and to determine which, if any, they considered 
might be suitable for inclusion on the Committee’s Work 
Programme for the forthcoming year.   
 
Members agreed that the “red flag” issues of education attainment 
and health inequalities were suitable for ongoing scrutiny.  It was 
noted that the Redditch Partnership was currently working on both 
of these issues and that a Health Action Plan was to be produced.  
Officers suggested that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee might 
wish to look at the Health Action Plan in more detail and invite a 
representative of the NHS to a future meeting to for this purpose. It 
was also reported that the Local Strategic Partnership Task and 
Finish Group would be making recommendations regarding the 
partnership that would help the Committee in the long-term to 
scrutinise these issues.    
 
The Committee further agreed that Shared Services and the WETT 
services would be suitable for scrutiny.  Whilst joint scrutiny might 
be undertaken, Members were keen to consider both issues from a 
district perspective in order to gauge any direct benefits for the 
residents of Redditch.   
 
A proposal was also put forward that the Committee consider 
setting up a Task and Finish Group to look into environmental 
standards on local estates.  The Member concerned was requested 
to complete the required scoping document outlining their proposals 
for the review for formal submission to the Committee for 
consideration.   
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the list of potential items for scrutiny and Task and 

Finish Reviews provided by the Council’s Corporate 
Management Team, be noted;  

 
2) the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be provided with a 

copy of the Health Action Plan and a representative of 
the NHS be invited to attend a future meeting of the 
Committee to discuss the document in more detail;  

 
 

Page 116



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 

3) appropriate reports on the subjects of Shared Services 
and WETT Services be provided at regular intervals for 
the Committee’s information and consideration, 
commencing with the report on the WETT Regulatory 
Service for the 14th July 2010 meeting; and 

 
4) a scoping document be submitted by Councillor Vickery 

in respect of his request for a Task and Finish review of 
environmental standards on local estates, for the 
Committee’s consideration.  

 
 

25. WORCESTERSHIRE ENHANCED TWO TIER (WETT) 
REGULATORY SERVICE - QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
SERVICE  
 
The Committee was asked to consider whether it wished to propose 
a list of questions on the Worcestershire Enhanced Two Teir 
(WETT) Regulatory Service which would be addressed by relevant 
Officers at a presentation at the following meeting of the 
Committee.  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
Members provide the Overview and Scrutiny Support Officer, 
in advance of the meeting, with their questions (if any) on the 
subject of the WETT Regulatory Service for the consideration 
of relevant Officers. 
  
 

26. WORCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - SUGGESTIONS FOR 
SCRUTINY  
 
The Committee was informed that it had been invited by 
Worcestershire County Council to consider whether it wished to 
propose any appropriate items for consideration by a selection of 
the County Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
Further to their invitation, the following items be put to 
Worcestershire County Council’s appropriate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees for consideration: 
 
1) road surfaces in Redditch; 
 

Page 117



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 

2) the County’s response to needs analysis as detailed in 
the Supporting People Strategy; 

 
3) the funding of QUANGOS, in terms of Worcestershire 

accessing a fair share and how it is subsequently 
distributed County-wide; and 

 
4) plans for economic development in North 

Worcestershire. 
 

27. REFERRALS  
 
The Committee was asked to consider a referral from the Local 
Strategic Partnership (LSP) Task and Finish Group relating to the 
potential for Redditch Borough Council to adopt a Staff Volunteering 
Policy.  Members were provided with a copy of Bromsgrove District 
Council’s Staff Volunteering Policy, which had been approved in 
February 2010, as an example.   
 
Officers reported that, as the Bromsgrove Policy had only recently 
been adopted, it was much too early to assess its impact, take-up 
and benefits to staff at this time.  With regard to the query on 
consultation, Officers suggested that at the very least, the Unions 
should be consulted but that it would be wise to consult with staff to 
gauge interest.  
 
Members were generally supportive of the Council pursuing a Staff 
Volunteering Policy, but agreed that it would be prudent to monitor 
the impact of the Policy in Bromsgrove for a period of time to 
provide further information and allow an informed decision on 
whether a similar policy would be appropriate in Redditch.  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the Overview and Scrutiny Committee review the 

proposal for a Staff Volunteering Policy in twelve 
months time once further information is available from 
Bromsgrove District Council on its success or 
otherwise; and 

 
2) the Committee’s Work Programme be amended 

accordingly.  
  
 
 
 
 

Page 118



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23rd June 2010 
 
28. WORK PROGRAMME  

 
Members were reminded that the Scrutiny Work Programme 
Planning Event was due to be held on the 26th July 2010 at 6pm  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
subject to any updates previously agreed during the course of 
the meeting, the Committee’s Work Programme be noted.  
 
 
 

 
 

 Chair 
 

The Meeting commenced at 7.00pm 
and closed at 8.45pm 

Page 119



Page 120



Agenda Item 13Page 121
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 126



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   28th July 2010 

 

 

ADVISORY PANELS, WORKING GROUPS, ETC -  UPDATE REPORT  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Michael Braley, Portfolio Holder for 

Corporate Management 
Relevant Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities 

and Democratic Services 
Non-Key Decision 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
 To provide, for monitoring / management purposes, an update on the work 

of the Executive Committee’s Advisory Panels, and similar bodies which 
report via the Executive Committee. 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 
subject to Members’ comments, the report be noted. 
 

3. UPDATES 
 

A. ADVISORY PANELS 
 

 Meeting : Lead Members / 
Officers :   
 
(Executive Members 
shown underlined) 

Position : 

(Oral updates to  be 
provided at the meeting by 
Lead Members or Officers, 
if no written update is 
available.) 

1.  Climate Change 
Advisory Panel 
(formerly 
Environment 
Advisory Panel 

Chair: Cllr B Clayton / 

Vice-Chair: Cllr Hopkins 
 
Guy Revans. 

Next meeting – 3rd August 
2010. 

 

2.  Economic Advisory 
Panel 

Chair: Cllr Pearce  / 
Vice-Chair: Cllr Braley 

John Staniland / 
Georgina Harris 

Last meeting – 8th February 
2010. 

 

Agenda Item 14Page 127



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   28th July 2010 

 

 

 

3.  Housing Advisory 
Panel 

 

Chair Cllr B Clayton /  
Vice-Chair 
Cllr Quinney 

Liz Tompkin 

Last meeting – 22nd June 
2010. 
 
 

4.  Leisure Contracts 
Advisory Panel   
 

 

Chair Cllr Anderson / 
Vice-Chair 
Cllr Hopkins 

Kevin Cook 

Last meeting – 1st February 
2010. 

 

 

5.  Planning Advisory 
Panel 

 

Chair Cllr  Pearce / 

Vice-Chair Cllr M Chalk 

John Staniland /  
Ruth Bamford 

Next meetings – 21st July & 
11th August 2010. 

 

 

 

 
B. OTHER MEETINGS 
 

6.  Constitutional 
Review Working 
Party 

Chair Cllr Gandy /  
Vice Chair  
Cllr Braley 

Steve Skinner 

 

Last meeting - 
24th February 2010. 

7.  Grants Panel 

 

Chair /  
Vice Chair  
Cllr Braley  

Angie Heighway 

Next meeting – to be 
arranged. 
 

 

8.  Independent 
Remuneration 
Panel 

Independent Members / 
Chair Mr Andrew Powell 

 

Last meeting – 5th February 
2010. 

 

9.  Member 
Development 
Steering Group 

 

Chair Brunner  / Vice-
Chair Cllr Braley 

Steve Skinner / Trish 
Buckley 

Last meeting – 23rd March 
2010 

 

Page 128



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   28th July 2010 

 

 

10.  Procurement 
Steering Group 

Chair Cllr Braley / Vice-
Chair Cllr Hall 

Sue Hanley 

Last meeting – 18th 
January 2010. 

 

11.  Church Hill District 
Centre – Members’ 
Panel 

Chair Cllr B Clayton  

Jim Prendergrast 

Last meeting – 25th May 
2010. 

 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 None. 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:   Ivor Westmore  
E Mail:  ivor.westmore@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 64252 (Extn. 3269) 

Page 129



Page 130



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   28th July 2010 

 

 

ACTION MONITORING 
 
Portfolio 
Holder(s) /         
Responsible 
 Officer  

Action requested Status 

13th January 
2009 
 

  

 
 
Cllr Gandy / 
Executive 
Committee 

Third Sector Task and Finish Group 
 
The Executive to consider the further work 
to be undertaken (detailed in 
recommendation 5) and come back with 
suggestions for further work in due course. 
 

 
 
Awaiting further 
consideration by 
relevant 
Members. 

27th January 
2010 
 

  

Cllr Gandy / 
A Heighway 

Single Equalities Scheme 
 
Members requested that a report/action 
plan be submitted to a future meeting of the 
Committee or Council detailing what the 
Council, as Community Leader, expected 
to receive in terms of education provision 
for the Borough and its children and young 
people. 
 

 

Cllr Braley / 
Property 
Services 
Manager /  
B Haycock 

Easemore Road Site – Consultation with 
Tenants 
 
Officers undertook to carry out a basic 
check of all such Leases held by the 
Council by the end of the financial year. 

 

3rd February 
2010 

  

Cllr Braley / 
T Kristunas 

Initial Estimates 2010/11 
 
Officers to write, in the first instance, to 
Worcestershire County Council highlighting 
the increasing pressure on the Council’s 
budgets for staff pensions. 

 

Agenda Item 15Page 131



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   28th July 2010 

 

 

 
26th May 
2010 

  

C Gandy / 
H Bennett 

Council Plan 2010-13 
 
Officers undertook to circulate a definition 
of the acronym GV to Members of the 
Committee following the meeting. 
 
Amendments to be made to the Plan to 
reflect Members’ comments on layout and 
content. 
 

 

B Clayton /  
L Tompkin 

Capital Budget Provision 2009/10 and 
2011/12 for Asbestos Removal 
 
Officers were requested to include a 
detailed update on asbestos removal as a 
separate appendix to the forthcoming half-
yearly report on the Housing Capital 
Programme. 
 

 

16th June 
2010 

  

M Braley / H 
Bennett / J 
Godwin / T 
Kristunas 

Quarterly Performance Monitoring – 
Quarter 4 
 
Officers undertook to provide: 
 
1. Councillor Chance with additional 

information on the percentage of 
Council Tax collected by the 
Authority in the year (BV009) and 
One Stop Shop: customer 
satisfaction (WMO 003) 
 

2. all members of the Executive 
Committee with information relating 
to adult participation in sport and 
active recreation (NI008) both 
countywide and nationally. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Information 
relating to 
participation in 
sport circulated to 
the Committee 
(22nd June) 
 

Page 132



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   28th July 2010 

 

 

M Braley / T 
Kristunas 

Quarterly Budget Monitoring – Quarter 4 
 
Officers undertook to provide: 
 
1. Councillor Chance with additional 

information regarding Item 8 Debit; 
and 
 

2. all members of the Executive 
Committee a breakdown of amounts 
held in specific reserves from public 
donations. 

 

 

Note: No further debate should be held on the above 
matters or substantive decisions taken, without 
further report OR unless urgency requirements are 
met. 

Report period: 
13/01/09 to 16/6/10 

 

Page 133



Page 134


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Restricted Minutes , 16/06/2010 Executive

	7 Council Plan 2010 / 2013
	RBC Corporate Plan 2010-2013

	8 Review of Redditch Borough Council's Sheltered Housing Stock further to Community Consultation
	OPHS - Executive Summary Final

	9 Capital Programme Outturn 2009/10
	Capital Outturn 2009 10 Exec - Appendix 1 FINAL

	10 Write Off Policy Update
	Write Off - Appendix 1 FINAL

	11 Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	13 Shared Services Board
	14 Advisory Panels - update report
	15 Action Monitoring

